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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K/A
Amendment No. 2

b ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007
OR
0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 1-33249

Legacy Reserves LP
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 16-1751069
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
303 W. Wall Street, Suite 1400 79701
Midland, Texas (Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant s telephone number, including area code:
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Units representing limited partner interests listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC.

Securities registered pursuant to 12(g) of the Act:
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None.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yeso Nop

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act. Yeso Nop

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yesp Noo

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. b

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,

or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting
company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer p Smaller reporting
company o
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yeso Nop

The aggregate market value of units held by non-affiliates was approximately $459,526,531 based on the average bid
and ask price of the units as of June 29, 2007.

29,671,470 units representing limited partner interests in the registrant were outstanding as of March 14, 2008.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Parts of the definitive proxy statement for the registrant s 2008 annual meeting of unitholders are incorporated by
reference into Part III of this annual report on Form 10-K.
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Explanatory Note

Legacy Reserves LP filed an Annual Report on Form 10-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

March 14, 2008 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 (the _Original Filing ) and an amendment to its Form 10-K
on March 27, 2008. This Amendment No. 2 amends the Original Filing and the Form 10-K/A filed on March 27,

2008, and is being filed solely for the purpose of correcting a typographical error contained in Exhibit 32.1 of the
Original Filing. The remainder of the Form 10-K is unchanged and is reproduced in this Amendment No. 2. This
Amendment No. 2 speaks as of the file date of the Original Filing and does not reflect events occurring after the filing
date of the Original Filing, or modify or update the disclosures therein in any way other than as required to reflect the
amendment described above.

Table of Contents 4



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

Table of Contents

LEGACY RESERVES LP

Table of Contents

Glossary of Terms
PART I

ii

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 1
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 8
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 22
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 22
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 30
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 30
PART II 30
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S UNITS, RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 30
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 32
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION 35
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK 49
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 49
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 50
ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 50
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 51
PART III 51
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 51
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 51
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS 51
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE 51
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 51
PART IV 52
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 52
1i
Table of Contents 5



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

Table of Contents

GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Bbl. One stock tank barrel or 42 U.S. gallons liquid volume.
Bcf. Billion cubic feet.

Boe. One barrel of o0il equivalent, determined using a ratio of six Mcf of natural gas to one Bbl of crude oil,
condensate or natural gas liquids.

Boe/d. Barrels of oil equivalent per day.

Btu. British thermal unit, which is the heat required to raise the temperature of a one-pound mass of water from 58.5
to 59.5 degrees Fahrenheit.

Developed acreage. The number of acres that are allocated or assignable to productive wells or wells capable of
production.

Development Project. A drilling or other project which may target proven reserves, but which generally has a lower
risk than that associated with exploration projects.

Development well. A well drilled within the proved area of an oil or natural gas reservoir to the depth of a
stratigraphic horizon known to be productive.

Dry hole or well. A well found to be incapable of producing hydrocarbons in sufficient quantities such that proceeds
from the sale of such production would exceed production expenses and taxes.

Field. An area consisting of a single reservoir or multiple reservoirs all grouped on or related to the same individual
geological structural feature and/or stratigraphic condition.

Gross acres or gross wells. The total acres or wells, as the case may be, in which a working interest is owned.
MBbls. One thousand barrels of crude oil or other liquid hydrocarbons.

MBoe. One thousand barrels of crude oil equivalent, using a ratio of six Mcf of natural gas to one Bbl of crude oil,
condensate or natural gas liquids.

Mecf. One thousand cubic feet.
MMBbls. One million barrels of crude oil or other liquid hydrocarbons.

MMBoe. One million barrels of crude oil equivalent, using a ratio of six Mcf of natural gas to one Bbl of crude oil,
condensate or natural gas liquids.

MMBtu. One million British thermal units.

MMcf. One million cubic feet.
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Net acres or net wells. The sum of the fractional working interests owned in gross acres or gross wells, as the case
may be.

NGLs. The combination of ethane, propane, butane and natural gasolines that when removed from natural gas become
liquid under various levels of higher pressure and lower temperature.

NYMEX. New York Mercantile Exchange.
Oil. Crude oil, condensate and natural gas liquids.

Productive well. A well that is found to be capable of producing hydrocarbons in sufficient quantities such that
proceeds from the sale of such production exceed production expenses and taxes.

Proved developed reserves. Reserves that can be expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing
equipment and operating methods. Additional oil and natural gas expected to be obtained through the application of
fluid injection or other improved recovery techniques for supplementing the natural forces and mechanisms of primary
recovery are included in proved developed reserves only after testing by a pilot project or

iii
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after the operation of an installed program has confirmed through production response that increased recovery will be
achieved.

Proved developed non-producing or PDNP s. Proved oil and natural gas reserves that are developed behind pipe,
shut-in or can be recovered through improved recovery only after the necessary equipment has been installed, or when
the costs to do so are relatively minor. Shut-in reserves are expected to be recovered from (1) completion intervals
which are open at the time of the estimate but which have not started producing, (2) wells that were shut-in for market
conditions or pipeline connections, or (3) wells not capable of production for mechanical reasons. Behind-pipe
reserves are expected to be recovered from zones in existing wells that will require additional completion work or
future recompletion prior to the start of production.

Proved reserves. Proved oil and natural gas reserves are the estimated quantities of natural gas, crude oil and natural
gas liquids that geological and engineering data demonstrates with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future
years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions, i.e., prices and costs as of the date the
estimate is made. Prices include consideration of changes in existing prices provided only by contractual
arrangements, but not on escalations based on future conditions.

Proved undeveloped drilling location. A site on which a development well can be drilled consistent with spacing
rules for purposes of recovering proved undeveloped reserves.

Proved undeveloped reserves or PUDs. Proved oil and natural gas reserves that are expected to be recovered from
new wells on un-drilled acreage or from existing wells where a relatively major expenditure is required for
re-completion. Reserves on un-drilled acreage are limited to those drilling units offsetting productive units that are
reasonably certain of production when drilled. Proved reserves for other un-drilled units are claimed only where it can
be demonstrated with certainty that there is continuity of production from the existing productive formation. Estimates
for proved undeveloped reserves are not attributed to any acreage for which an application of fluid injection or other
improved recovery technique is contemplated, unless such techniques have been proved effective by actual tests in the
area and in the same reservoir.

Recompletion. The completion for production of an existing wellbore in another formation from that which the well
has been previously completed.

Reserve acquisition cost. The total consideration paid for an oil and natural gas property or set of properties, which
includes the cash purchase price and any value ascribed to units issued to a seller adjusted for any post-closing items.

R/P ratio (reserve life). The reserves as of the end of a period divided by the production volumes for the same period.

Reserve replacement. The replacement of oil and natural gas produced with reserve additions from acquisitions,
reserve additions and reserve revisions.

Reserve replacement cost. An amount per BOE equal to the sum of costs incurred relating to oil and natural gas
property acquisition, exploitation, development and exploration activities (as reflected in our year-end financial
statements for the relevant year) divided by the sum of all additions and revisions to estimated proved reserves,
including reserve purchases. The calculation of reserve additions for each year is based upon the reserve report of our
independent engineers. Management uses reserve replacement cost to compare our company to others in terms of our
historical ability to increase our reserve base in an economic manner. However, past performance does not necessarily
reflect future reserve replacement cost performance. For example, increases in oil and natural gas prices in recent
years have increased the economic life of reserves adding additional reserves with no required capital expenditures.
On the other hand, increases in oil and natural gas prices have increased the cost of reserve purchases and reserves
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added through development projects. The reserve replacement cost may not be indicative of the economic value added
of the reserves due to differing lease operating expenses per barrel and differing timing of production.

Reservoir. A porous and permeable underground formation containing a natural accumulation of producible oil
and/or natural gas that is confined by impermeable rock or water barriers and is individual and separate from other
reserves.

v
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Standardized measure. The present value of estimated future net revenues to be generated from the production of
proved reserves, determined in accordance with assumptions required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
and the Securities and Exchange Commission (using prices and costs in effect as of the period end date) without
giving effect to non-property related expenses such as general and administrative expenses, debt service and future
income tax expenses or to depreciation, depletion and amortization and discounted using an annual discount rate of
10%. Because we are a limited partnership that allocates our taxable income to our unitholders, no provisions for
federal or state income taxes have been provided for in the calculation of standardized measure. Standardized measure
does not give effect to derivative transactions.

Undeveloped acreage. Lease acreage on which wells have not been drilled or completed to a point that would permit
the production of commercial quantities of oil and natural gas regardless of whether such acreage contains proved
reserves.

Working interest. The operating interest that gives the owner the right to drill, produce and conduct operating
activities on the property and a share of production.

Workover. Operations on a producing well to restore or increase production.

v
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This document contains forward-looking statements that are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, many of
which are beyond our control, which may include statements about:

our business strategy;

the amount of oil and natural gas we produce;

the price at which we are able to sell our oil and natural gas production;

our ability to acquire additional oil and natural gas properties at economically attractive prices;

our drilling location and our ability to continue our development activities at economically attractive costs;

the level of our lease operating expenses, general and administrative costs and finding and development costs,
including payments to our general partner;

the level of our capital expenditures;
our future operating results; and
our plans, objectives, expectations and intentions.

All of these types of statements, other than statements of historical fact included in this document, are forward-looking
statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as may, could, should,
expect, plan, project, intend, anticipate, believe, estimate, predict, potential, pursue, target,

such terms or other comparable terminology.

The forward-looking statements contained in this document are largely based on our expectations, which reflect
estimates and assumptions made by our management. These estimates and assumptions reflect our best judgment
based on currently known market conditions and other factors. Although we believe such estimates and assumptions
to be reasonable, they are inherently uncertain and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that are beyond our
control. In addition, management s assumptions about future events may prove to be inaccurate. All readers are
cautioned that the forward-looking statements contained in this document are not guarantees of future performance,
and our expectations may not be realized or the forward-looking events and circumstances may not occur. Actual
results may differ materially from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements due to factors
described in Item 1A. under Risk Factors. The forward-looking statements in this document speak only as of the date
of this document; we disclaim any obligation to update these statements unless required by securities law, and we
caution you not to rely on them unduly.

vi
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

References in this annual report on Form 10-K to Legacy Reserves, Legacy, we, our, us, orlike
terms prior to March 15, 2006 refer to the Moriah Group, Legacy Reserves LP s predecessor, including the oil and
natural gas properties we acquired in exchange for units and cash from the Moriah Group, the Brothers Group,
H2K Holdings, MBN Properties (our Founding Investors ) and certain charitable foundations in connection
with our private equity offering on March 15, 2006. When used for periods from March 15, 2006 forward, those
terms refer to Legacy Reserves LP and its subsidiaries.

Legacy Reserves LP

We are an independent oil and natural gas limited partnership headquartered in Midland, Texas, and are focused on
the acquisition and development of oil and natural gas properties primarily located in the Permian Basin and
Mid-continent regions of the United States. We were formed in October 2005 to own and operate the oil and natural
gas properties that we acquired from our Founding Investors and three charitable foundations in connection with the
closing of our private equity offering on March 15, 2006. On January 18, 2007, we completed our initial public
offering.

Our primary business objective is to generate stable cash flows allowing us to make cash distributions to our
unitholders and to increase quarterly cash distributions per unit over time through a combination of acquisitions of

new properties and development of our existing oil and natural gas properties.

We have grown primarily through two activities: the acquisition of producing oil and natural gas properties and the
development of producing properties as opposed to higher risk exploration of unproved properties.

Our oil and natural gas production and reserve data as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:
we had proved reserves of approximately 32.1 MMBoe, of which 74% were oil and natural gas liquids and
87% were classified as proved developed producing, 3% were proved developed non-producing, and 10% were
proved undeveloped;

our proved reserves had a standardized measure of $690.5 million; and

our proved reserves to production ratio was approximately 14 years based on the average daily net production
of 6,453 Boe/d for the three months ended December 31, 2007.

Recent Developments
On November 8, 2007 we closed a private placement of 3,642,369 Units for $20.50 per unit for net proceeds of
approximately $73.0 million. We used the net proceeds of the private placement primarily to reduce debt outstanding

under or revolving credit facility.

Acquisition Activities
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During the year ended December 31, 2007, we invested approximately $200.4 million, including non-cash asset
retirement obligations, in 15 acquisitions of proved oil and natural gas properties. Based on reserve data prepared
internally at the time of these acquisitions, we added a total of approximately 14.25 MMBoe of proved reserves at an
average reserve acquisition cost of $13.59 per Boe, which excludes associated non-cash asset retirement obligations.
The recent acquisitions discussed below are also included in the reserve acquisition cost calculation, along with
immaterial acquisitions closed during 2007.

On April 16, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties and other interests in the East Binger
(Marchand) Unit in Caddo County, Oklahoma from Nielson & Associates, Inc. for a net purchase price of

$44.2 million ( Binger Acquisition ). The purchase price was paid with the issuance of 611,247 units valued at
$15.8 million and $28.4 million paid in cash. The effective date of this purchase was February 1, 2007. The

$44.2 million purchase price was allocated with $14.7 million recorded as lease and well equipment, $29.4 million

1
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of leasehold costs and $0.1 million as investment in equity method investee related to the 50% interest acquired in
Binger Operations, LLC. Asset retirement obligations of $184,636 were recorded in connection with this acquisition.
The operations of these Binger Acquisition properties have been included from their acquisition on April 16, 2007.

On May 1, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Permian Basin from

Ameristate Exploration, LLC for a net purchase price of $5.2 million ( Ameristate Acquisition ). The effective date of
this purchase was January 1, 2007. The $5.2 million purchase price was allocated with $0.5 million recorded as lease
and well equipment and $4.7 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations of $51,414 were recorded in
connection with this acquisition. The operations of these Ameristate Acquisition properties have been included from
their acquisition on May 1, 2007.

On May 25, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Permian Basin from Terry S.
Fields for a net purchase price of $14.7 million ( TSF Acquisition ). The effective date of this purchase was March 1,
2007. The $14.7 million purchase price was allocated with $1.8 million recorded as lease and well equipment and
$12.9 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations of $99,094 were recorded in connection with this
acquisition. The operations of these TSF Acquisition properties have been included from their acquisition on May 25,
2007.

On May 31, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Permian Basin from Raven
Resources, LLC and Shenandoah Petroleum Corporation for a net purchase price of $13.0 million ( Raven Shenandoah
Acquisition ). The effective date of this purchase was May 1, 2007. The $13.0 million purchase price was allocated
with $6.0 million recorded as lease and well equipment and $7.0 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement
obligations of $378,835 were recorded in connection with this acquisition. The operations of these Raven Shenandoah
Acquisition properties have been included from their acquisition on May 31, 2007.

On August 3, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located primarily in the Permian Basin
from Raven Resources, LLC and private parties for a net purchase price of $20.0 million ( Raven OBO Acquisition ).
The effective date of this purchase was July 1, 2007. The $20.0 million purchase price was allocated with $1.6 million
recorded as lease and well equipment and $18.4 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations of $224,329
were recorded in connection with this acquisition. The operations of these Raven OBO Acquisition properties have
been included from their acquisition on August 3, 2007.

On October 1, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Texas Panhandle from The
Operating Company, et al, for a net purchase price of $60.5 million ( TOC Acquisition ). The effective date of this
purchase was September 1, 2007. The $60.5 million purchase price was allocated with $23.7 million recorded as lease
and well equipment and $36.8 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations of $1.6 million were recorded
in connection with this acquisition. The operations of these TOC Acquisition properties have been included from their
acquisition on October 1, 2007.

Also on October 1, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Permian Basin from
Summit Petroleum Management Corporation for a net purchase price of $13.4 million ( Summit Acquisition ). The
effective date of this purchase was September 1, 2007. The $13.4 million purchase price was allocated with

$2.1 million recorded as lease and well equipment and $11.3 million of leasehold cost. Asset retirement obligations of
$128,705 were recorded in connection with this acquisition. The operations of these Summit Acquisition properties
have been included from their acquisition on October 1, 2007.

During November and December, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties from multiple parties

in the Permian Basin and Texas Panhandle for an aggregate $17.8 million. The acquisitions have various effective
dates. The $17.8 million purchase price was allocated with $4.5 million recorded as lease and well equipment and

Table of Contents 14



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

$13.3 million of leasehold cost. The operations of these acquired properties have been included from their acquisition
dates over November and December, 2007.
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Development Activities

We have also added reserves and production through development projects on our existing and acquired properties.
Our development projects include accessing additional productive formations in existing well-bores, formation
stimulation, artificial lift equipment enhancement, infill drilling on closer well spacing, secondary (waterflood) and
tertiary (miscible CO, and nitrogen) recovery projects, drilling for deeper formations and completing unconventional
and tight formations.

As of December 31, 2007, we identified 109 gross (72.8 net) proved undeveloped drilling locations and 43 gross (16
net) re-completion and re-fracture stimulation projects, over 93% of which we intend to drill and execute over the next
four years. Excluding acquisitions, we expect to make capital expenditures of approximately $18.2 million during the
year ending December 31, 2008, including drilling 24 gross (17.3 net) development wells and executing 12 gross (5.8
net) re-completions and re-fracture stimulations. We believe that drilling rigs will be available to execute our 2008
development program.

Oil and Natural Gas Derivative Activities

Our strategy includes entering into oil and natural gas derivative contracts which are designed to mitigate price risk
for a majority of our oil, NGL and natural gas production over a three to five-year period. We have entered into these
derivative contracts for approximately 73% of our expected oil and natural gas production from total proved reserves
for the year ending December 31, 2008. We have also entered into these derivative contracts for approximately 54%
of our expected oil and natural gas production from total proved reserves for 2009 through 2012. All of our derivative
contracts are in the form of fixed price swaps for NYMEX WTI oil, Mont Belvieu OPIS natural gas liquids
components, NYMEX Henry Hub natural gas, West Texas Waha natural gas and ANR-Oklahoma natural gas. In July
2006, we entered into basis swaps to receive floating NYMEX Henry Hub natural gas prices less a fixed basis
differential and pay prices based on the floating Waha index, a natural gas hub in West Texas. The prices that we
receive for our Permian Basin natural gas sales follow Waha more closely than NYMEX Henry Hub. The basis swaps,
thereby, provide a better match between our natural gas sales and the settlement payments on our natural gas swaps.
We have entered into basis swaps covering approximately 100% of our NYMEX Henry Hub natural gas basis
differential risk on our NYMEX Henry Hub natural gas swaps.

Business Strategy
The key elements of our business strategy are to:

Make accretive acquisitions of producing properties generally characterized by long-lived reserves with stable
production and reserve development potential;

Add proved reserves and maximize cash flow and production through development projects and operational
efficiencies;

Maintain financial flexibility; and
Reduce commodity price risk through derivative transactions.
Marketing and Major Purchasers

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, Legacy sold oil and natural gas production representing 10%
or more of total revenues to purchasers as detailed in the table below:
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Conoco Phillips

Navajo Crude Oil Marketing
Plains Marketing, LP
Teppco Crude Oil, LP
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2005

10%
16%
18%

5%

2006

4%
12%
14%

5%

2007

3%
11%
13%
13%
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Our oil sales prices are based on formula pricing and calculated either using a discount to NYMEX WTI oil or using
the appropriate buyer s posted price, plus Platt s P-Plus monthly average, plus the Midland-Cushing differential less a
transportation fee.

If we were to lose any one of our oil or natural gas purchasers, the loss could temporarily cause a loss or deferral of
production and sale of our oil and natural gas in that particular purchaser s service area. If we were to lose a purchaser,
we believe we could identify a substitute purchaser. However, if one or more of our larger purchasers ceased
purchasing oil or natural gas altogether, the loss of such purchasers could have a detrimental effect on our production
volumes in general and on our ability to find substitute purchasers for our production volumes in a timely manner.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive environment for acquiring properties, marketing oil and natural gas and securing
trained personnel. Many of our competitors possess and employ financial, technical and personnel resources
substantially greater than ours. As a result, our competitors may be able to pay more for productive oil and natural gas
properties and exploratory prospects and to evaluate, bid for and purchase a greater number of properties and
prospects than our financial or personnel resources permit. Our ability to acquire additional prospects and to find and
develop reserves in the future will depend on our ability to evaluate and select suitable properties and to consummate
transactions in a highly competitive environment. Also, there is substantial competition for capital available for
investment in the oil and natural gas industry.

We are also affected by competition for drilling rigs, completion rigs and the availability of related equipment. In the
past, the oil and natural gas industry has experienced shortages of drilling and completion rigs, equipment, pipe and
personnel, which has delayed development drilling and other development projects and has caused significant
increases in the prices for this equipment and personnel. We are unable to predict when, or if, such shortages may
occur or how they would affect our development program.

Seasonal Nature of Business

Generally, but not always, the demand for natural gas decreases during the summer months and increases during the
winter months thereby affecting the price we receive for natural gas. Seasonal anomalies such as mild winters or
hotter than normal summers sometimes lessen this fluctuation.

Environmental Matters and Regulation

General. Our operations are subject to stringent and complex federal, state and local laws and regulations governing
environmental protection as well as the discharge of materials into the environment. These laws and regulations may,
among other things:

require the acquisition of various permits before drilling commences;

restrict the types, quantities and concentration of various substances that can be released into the environment
in connection with oil and natural gas drilling and production activities;

limit or prohibit drilling activities on certain lands lying within wilderness, wetlands and other protected
areas; and
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require remedial measures to mitigate pollution from former and ongoing operations, such as requirements to
close pits and plug abandoned wells.

These laws, rules and regulations may also restrict the rate of oil and natural gas production below the rate that would
otherwise be possible. The regulatory burden on the oil and natural gas industry increases the cost of doing business in
the industry and consequently affects profitability. Additionally, Congress and federal and state agencies frequently
revise environmental laws and regulations, and any changes that result in more stringent and costly waste handling,
disposal and cleanup requirements for the oil and natural gas industry could have a significant impact on our operating
costs.
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The following is a summary of some of the existing laws, rules and regulations to which our operations are subject.

Waste Handling. The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, or RCRA, and comparable state statutes, regulate the
generation, transportation, treatment, storage, disposal and cleanup of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes. Under the
auspices of the federal Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, the individual states administer some or all of the
provisions of RCRA, sometimes in conjunction with their own, more stringent requirements. Drilling fluids, produced
waters, and most of the other wastes associated with the exploration, development, and production of crude oil or
natural gas are currently regulated under RCRA s non-hazardous waste provisions. However, it is possible that certain
oil and natural gas exploration and production wastes now classified as non- hazardous could be classified as
hazardous wastes in the future. Any such change could result in an increase in our costs to manage and dispose of
wastes, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial position.

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act. The Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act, or CERCLA, also known as the Superfund law, imposes joint and several
liability, without regard to fault or legality of conduct, on classes of persons who are considered to be responsible for
the release of a hazardous substance into the environment. These persons include the owner or operator of the site
where the release occurred, and anyone who disposed or arranged for the disposal of a hazardous substance released at
the site. Under CERCLA, such persons may be subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up the
hazardous substances that have been released into the environment, for damages to natural resources and for the costs
of certain health studies. In addition, it is not uncommon for neighboring landowners and other third-parties to file
claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by the hazardous substances released into the
environment.

We currently own, lease, or operate numerous properties that have been used for oil and natural gas development and
production for many years. Although we believe that we have utilized operating and waste disposal practices that were
standard in the industry at the time, hazardous substances, wastes, or hydrocarbons may have been released on or
under the properties owned or leased by us, or on or under other locations, including off-site locations, where such
substances have been taken for disposal. In addition, some of our properties have been operated by third parties or by
previous owners or operators whose treatment and disposal of hazardous substances, wastes, or hydrocarbons was not
under our control. These properties and the substances disposed or released on them may be subject to CERCLA,
RCRA, and analogous state laws. Under such laws, we could be required to remove previously disposed substances
and wastes, remediate contaminated property, or perform remedial plugging or pit closure operations to prevent future
contamination.

Water Discharges. The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, or the Clean Water Act, and analogous state laws,
impose restrictions and strict controls with respect to the discharge of pollutants, including spills and leaks of oil and
other substances, into waters of the United States. The discharge of pollutants into regulated waters is prohibited,
except in accordance with the terms of a permit issued by EPA or an analogous state agency. Federal and state
regulatory agencies can impose administrative, civil and criminal penalties for non-compliance with discharge permits
or other requirements of the Clean Water Act and analogous state laws and regulations.

Air Emissions. The Federal Clean Air Act, and comparable state laws, regulate emissions of various air pollutants
through air emissions permitting programs and the imposition of other requirements. In addition, EPA has developed,
and continues to develop, stringent regulations governing emissions of toxic air pollutants at specified sources.
Federal and state regulatory agencies can impose administrative, civil and criminal penalties for non-compliance with
air permits or other requirements of the Federal Clean Air Act and associated state laws and regulations.

National Environmental Policy Act. Oil and natural gas exploration and production activities on federal lands are
subject to the National Environmental Policy Act, or NEPA. NEPA requires federal agencies, including the
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Department of Interior, to evaluate major agency actions having the potential to significantly impact the environment.
In the course of such evaluations, an agency will prepare an Environmental Assessment that assesses the potential
direct, indirect and cumulative impacts of a proposed project and, if necessary, will prepare a more detailed
Environmental Impact Statement that may be made available for public review and comment. All of our current
exploration and production activities, as well as proposed exploration and development plans, on federal lands require
governmental permits that are subject to the requirements of NEPA. This process has the potential to delay the
development of oil and natural gas projects.
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OSHA and Other Laws and Regulation. We are subject to the requirements of the federal Occupational Safety and
Health Act (OSHA) and comparable state statutes. The OSHA hazard communication standard, the EPA community
right-to-know regulations under Title III of CERCLA and similar state statutes require that we organize and/or
disclose information about hazardous materials used or produced in our operations. We believe that we are in
compliance with these applicable requirements and with other OSHA and comparable requirements.

Recent studies have suggested that emissions of certain gases may be contributing to warming of the Earth s
atmosphere. In response to these studies, many nations have agreed to limit emissions of greenhouse gases pursuant to
the United Nations Framework Convention of Climate Change, also known as the Kyoto Protocol. Methane, a primary
component of natural gas, and carbon dioxide, a byproduct of the burning of oil and natural gas, and refined petroleum
products, are greenhouse gases regulated by the Kyoto Protocol. Although the United States is not participating in the
Kyoto Protocol, several states have adopted legislation and regulations to reduce emissions of greenhouse gases. For
example, California adopted the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006, which required the California Air
Resources Board to achieve a 25% reduction in emissions of greenhouse gases from sources in California by 2020.
Restrictions on emissions of methane or carbon dioxide that may be imposed in various states of the United States

could adversely affect our operations and demand for our products. Additionally, the U.S. Supreme Court only

recently held in a case, Massachusetts, et al. v. EPA, that greenhouse gases fall within the federal Clean Air Act s
definition of air pollutant, which could result in the regulation of greenhouse gas emissions from stationary sources
under certain Clean Air Act programs. New legislation or regulatory programs that restrict emissions of greenhouse
gases in areas in which we conduct business could have an adverse affect on our operations and demand for our

services. Currently, our operations are not adversely impacted by existing state and local climate change initiatives

and, at this time, it is not possible to accurately estimate how potential future laws or regulations addressing

greenhouse gas emissions would impact our business.

We believe that we are in substantial compliance with all existing environmental laws and regulations applicable to
our current operations and that our continued compliance with existing requirements will not have a material adverse
impact on our financial condition and results of operations. For instance, we did not incur any material capital
expenditures for remediation or pollution control activities for the year ended December 31, 2007. Additionally, as of
the date of this document, we are not aware of any environmental issues or claims that require material capital
expenditures during 2008. However, we cannot assure you that the passage of more stringent laws or regulations in
the future will not have a negative impact on our financial position or results of operation.

Other Regulation of the Oil and Natural Gas Industry

The oil and natural gas industry is extensively regulated by numerous federal, state and local authorities. Legislation
affecting the oil and natural gas industry is under constant review for amendment or expansion, frequently increasing
the regulatory burden. Also, numerous departments and agencies, both federal and state, are authorized by statute to
issue rules and regulations binding on the oil and gas industry and its individual members, some of which carry
substantial penalties for failure to comply. Although the regulatory burden on the oil and natural gas industry
increases our cost of doing business and, consequently, affects our profitability, these burdens generally do not affect
us any differently or to any greater or lesser extent than they affect other companies in the oil and natural gas industry
with similar types, quantities and locations of production.

Legislation continues to be introduced in Congress and development of regulations continues in the Department of
Homeland Security and other agencies concerning the security of industrial facilities, including oil and natural gas
facilities. Our operations may be subject to such laws and regulations. Presently, it is not possible to accurately
estimate the costs we could incur to comply with any such facility security laws or regulations, but such expenditures
could be substantial.
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Drilling and Production. Our operations are subject to various types of regulation at federal, state and local levels.
These types of regulation include requiring permits for the drilling of wells, drilling bonds and reports concerning
operations. Most states, and some counties and municipalities, in which we operate also regulate one or more of the
following:

the location of wells;

the method of drilling and casing wells;

Table of Contents 23



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

Table of Contents

the surface use and restoration of properties upon which wells are drilled;
the plugging and abandoning of wells; and
notice to surface owners and other third parties.

State laws regulate the size and shape of drilling and spacing units or pro-ration units governing the pooling of oil and
natural gas properties. Some states allow forced pooling or integration of tracts to facilitate exploration while other
states rely on voluntary pooling of lands and leases. In some instances, forced pooling or unitization may be
implemented by third parties and may reduce our interest in the unitized properties. In addition, state conservation
laws establish maximum rates of production from oil and natural gas wells, generally prohibit the venting or flaring of
natural gas and impose requirements regarding the ratability of production. These laws and regulations may limit the
amount of oil and natural gas we can produce from our wells or limit the number of wells or the locations at which we
can drill. Moreover, each state generally imposes a production or severance tax with respect to the production and sale
of oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids within its jurisdiction.

Natural gas regulation. The availability, terms and cost of transportation significantly affect sales of natural gas. The
interstate transportation and sale for resale of natural gas is subject to federal regulation, including regulation of the
terms, conditions and rates for interstate transportation, storage and various other matters, primarily by the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission. Federal and state regulations govern the price and terms for access to natural gas
pipeline transportation. The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission s regulations for interstate natural gas
transmission in some circumstances may also affect the intrastate transportation of natural gas.

Although natural gas prices are currently unregulated, Congress historically has been active in the area of natural gas
regulation. We cannot predict whether new legislation to regulate natural gas might be proposed, what proposals, if
any, might actually be enacted by Congress or the various state legislatures, and what effect, if any, the proposals
might have on the operations of the underlying properties. Sales of condensate and natural gas liquids are not currently
regulated and are made at market prices.

State regulation. The various states regulate the drilling for, and the production, gathering and sale of, oil and natural
gas, including imposing severance taxes and requirements for obtaining drilling permits. For example, Texas currently
imposes a 4.6% severance tax on oil production and a 7.5% severance tax on natural gas production. States also
regulate the method of developing new fields, the spacing and operation of wells and the prevention of waste of
natural gas resources. States may regulate rates of production and may establish maximum daily production
allowables from natural gas wells based on market demand or resource conservation, or both. States do not regulate
wellhead prices or engage in other similar direct economic regulation, but there can be no assurance that they will not
do so in the future. The effect of these regulations may be to limit the amounts of natural gas that may be produced
from our wells, and to limit the number of wells or locations we can drill.

The petroleum industry is also subject to compliance with various other federal, state and local regulations and laws.
Some of those laws relate to resource conservation and equal employment opportunity. We do not believe that
compliance with these laws will have a material adverse effect on us.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had 58 full-time employees, including nine petroleum engineers, six accountants and

two landmen, none of whom are subject to collective bargaining agreements. We also contract for the services of
independent consultants involved in land, engineering, regulatory, accounting, financial and other disciplines as
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needed. We believe that we have a favorable relationship with our employees.

Offices

We currently lease approximately 32,153 square feet of office space in Midland, Texas at 303 W. Wall Street,
Suite 1400, where our principal offices are located. The lease for our Midland office expires in August 2011.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to our Business

We may not have sufficient available cash to pay the full amount of our current quarterly distribution or any
distribution at all following establishment of cash reserves and payment of fees and expenses, including payments
to our general partner.

We may not have sufficient available cash each quarter to pay the full amount of our current quarterly distribution or
any distribution at all. The amount of cash we distribute in any quarter to our unitholders may fluctuate significantly
from quarter to quarter and may be significantly less than our current quarterly distribution. Under the terms of our
partnership agreement, the amount of cash otherwise available for distribution will be reduced by our operating
expenses and the amount of any cash reserves that our general partner establishes to provide for future operations,
future capital expenditures, future debt service requirements and future cash distributions to our unitholders. Further,
our debt agreements contain restrictions on our ability to pay distributions. The amount of cash we can distribute on
our units principally depends upon the amount of cash we generate from our operations, which will fluctuate from
quarter to quarter based on, among other things:

the amount of oil and natural gas we produce;

the price at which we are able to sell our oil and natural gas production;

whether we are able to acquire additional oil and natural gas properties at economically attractive prices;
whether we are able to continue our development projects at economically attractive costs;

the level of our lease operating expenses, general and administrative costs and development costs, including
payments to our general partner;

the level of our interest expense, which depends on the amount of our indebtedness and the interest payable
thereon; and

the level of our capital expenditures.

If we are not able to acquire additional oil and natural gas reserves on economically acceptable terms, our reserves
and production will decline, which would adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

We will be unable to sustain distributions at the current level without making accretive acquisitions or substantial
capital expenditures that maintain or grow our asset base. Oil and natural gas reserves are characterized by declining
production rates, and our future oil and natural gas reserves and production and, therefore, our cash flow and our
ability to make distributions are highly dependent on our success in economically finding or acquiring additional
recoverable reserves and efficiently developing and exploiting our current reserves. Further, the rate of estimated
decline of our oil and natural gas reserves may increase if our wells do not produce as expected. We may not be able
to find, acquire or develop additional reserves to replace our current and future production at acceptable costs, which
would adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make cash
distributions to our unitholders.
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Because we distribute all of our available cash to our unitholders, our future growth may be limited.

Since we will distribute all of our available cash as defined in our partnership agreement to our unitholders, our
growth may not be as fast as businesses that reinvest their available cash to expand ongoing operations. We will
depend on financing provided by commercial banks and other lenders and the issuance of debt and equity securities to

finance any significant growth or acquisitions. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing from these sources, our
ability to grow will be limited.
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If commodity prices decline significantly for a prolonged period, we may be forced to reduce our distribution or not
be able to pay distributions at all.

A significant decline in oil and natural gas prices over a prolonged period would have a significant impact on the
value of our reserves and on our cash flow, which would force us to reduce or suspend our distribution. Prices for oil
and natural gas may fluctuate widely in response to relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for oil and
natural gas, market uncertainty and a variety of additional factors that are beyond our control, such as:

the domestic and foreign supply of and demand for oil and natural gas;
the price and quantity of imports of crude oil and natural gas;
overall domestic and global economic conditions;

political and economic conditions in other oil and natural gas producing countries, including embargoes and
continued hostilities in the Middle East and other sustained military campaigns, and acts of terrorism or
sabotage;

the ability of members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries to agree to and maintain oil price
and production controls;

the level of consumer product demand;
weather conditions;
the impact of the U.S. dollar exchange rates on oil and natural gas prices; and
the price and availability of alternative fuels.
In the past, the prices of oil and natural gas have been extremely volatile, and we expect this volatility to continue.

If commodity prices decline significantly for a prolonged period, a significant portion of our development projects
may become uneconomic, which may adversely affect our ability to make distributions to our unitholders.

Lower oil and natural gas prices may not only decrease our revenues, but also reduce the amount of oil and natural gas
that we can produce economically. Furthermore, substantial decreases in oil and natural gas prices as were
experienced as recently as 2002, when prices of less than $20.00 per Bbl of oil and $2.00 per Mcf of natural gas were
received at the wellhead, would render a significant portion of our development projects uneconomic. This may result
in our having to make substantial downward adjustments to our estimated proved reserves. If this occurs, or if our
estimates of development costs increase, production data factors change or drilling results deteriorate, accounting
rules may require us to write down, as a non-cash charge to earnings, the carrying value of our oil and natural gas
properties for impairments. We may incur impairment charges in the future, which could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations in the period taken and our ability to borrow funds under our credit facility to pay
distributions to our unitholders.

Our estimated reserves are based on many assumptions that may prove inaccurate. Any material inaccuracies in

these reserve estimates or underlying assumptions will materially affect the quantities and present value of our
reserves.
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No one can measure underground accumulations of oil and natural gas in an exact way. Oil and natural gas reserve
engineering requires subjective estimates of underground accumulations of oil and natural gas and assumptions
concerning future oil and natural gas prices, production levels, and operating and development costs. As a result,
estimated quantities of proved reserves and projections of future production rates and the timing of development
expenditures may prove to be inaccurate. Any material inaccuracies in these reserve estimates or underlying
assumptions will materially affect the quantities and present value of our reserves which could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

9

Table of Contents

29



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

Table of Contents

Our credit facility has substantial restrictions and financial covenants, and our borrowing base is subject to
redetermination by our lenders which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition
and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

We will depend on our revolving credit facility for future capital needs. Our revolving credit facility restricts, among
other things, our ability to incur debt and pay distributions, and requires us to comply with certain financial covenants
and ratios. Our ability to comply with these restrictions and covenants in the future is uncertain and will be affected by
the levels of cash flow from our operations and events or circumstances beyond our control. Our failure to comply
with any of the restrictions and covenants under our revolving credit facility could result in a default under our
revolving credit facility. A default under our revolving credit facility could cause all of our existing indebtedness to be
immediately due and payable. Additionally, our revolving credit facility limits the amounts we can borrow to a
borrowing base amount, determined by the lenders in their sole discretion.

We are prohibited from borrowing under our revolving credit facility to pay distributions to unitholders if the amount
of borrowings outstanding under our revolving credit facility reaches or exceeds 90% of the borrowing base, which is
the amount of money available for borrowing, as determined semi-annually by our lenders in their sole discretion. The
lenders will redetermine the borrowing base based on an engineering report with respect to our oil and natural gas
reserves, which will take into account the prevailing oil and natural gas prices at such time. Any time our borrowings
exceed 90% of the then specified borrowing base, our ability to pay distributions to our unitholders in any such
quarter is solely dependent on our ability to generate sufficient cash from our operations.

Outstanding borrowings in excess of the borrowing base must be repaid, and, if mortgaged properties represent less
than 80% of total value of oil and gas properties used to determine the borrowing base, we must pledge other oil and
natural gas properties as additional collateral. We may not have the financial resources in the future to make any
mandatory principal prepayments required under our revolving credit facility.

The occurrence of an event of default or a negative redetermination of our borrowing base could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make distributions to our unitholders.

Please read Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Financing
Activities.

Our business depends on gathering and transportation facilities owned by others. Any limitation in the availability
of those facilities would interfere with our ability to market the oil and natural gas we produce.

The marketability of our oil and natural gas production depends in part on the availability, proximity and capacity of
gathering and pipeline systems owned by third parties. The amount of oil and natural gas that can be produced and
sold is subject to curtailment in certain circumstances, such as pipeline interruptions due to scheduled and
unscheduled maintenance, excessive pressure, physical damage to the gathering or transportation system, or lack of
contracted capacity on such systems. The curtailments arising from these and similar circumstances may last from a
few days to several months. In many cases, we are provided only with limited, if any, notice as to when these
circumstances will arise and their duration. Any significant curtailment in gathering system or pipeline capacity, or
significant delay in the construction of necessary gathering and transportation facilities, could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

Our development projects require substantial capital expenditures, which will reduce our cash available for

distribution. We may be unable to obtain needed capital or financing on satisfactory terms, which could lead to a
decline in our oil and natural gas reserves.
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We make and expect to continue to make substantial capital expenditures in our business for the development,
development, production and acquisition of oil and natural gas reserves. These expenditures will reduce our cash
available for distribution. We intend to finance our future capital expenditures with cash flow from operations and
borrowings under our revolving credit facility. Our cash flow from operations and access to capital are subject to a
number of variables, including:

our proved reserves;
the level of oil and natural gas we are able to produce from existing wells;
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the prices at which our oil and natural gas are sold; and
our ability to acquire, locate and produce new reserves.

If our revenues or the borrowing base under our credit facility decrease as a result of lower oil and/or natural gas
prices, operating difficulties, declines in reserves or for any other reason, we may have limited ability to obtain the
capital necessary to sustain our operations at current levels. Our credit facility restricts our ability to obtain new
financing. If additional capital is needed, we may not be able to obtain debt or equity financing. If cash generated by
operations or available under our revolving credit facility is not sufficient to meet our capital requirements, the failure
to obtain additional financing could result in a curtailment of our operations relating to development of our prospects,
which in turn could lead to a decline in our oil and natural gas reserves, and could adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

We do not control all of our operations and development projects and failure of an operator of wells in which we
own partial interests to adequately perform could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

Much of our business activities are conducted through joint operating agreements under which we own partial
interests in oil and natural gas wells.

If we do not operate wells in which we own an interest, we do not have control over normal operating procedures,
expenditures or future development of underlying properties. The success and timing of our development projects on
properties operated by others is outside of our control.

The failure of an operator of wells in which we own partial interests to adequately perform operations, or an operator s
breach of the applicable agreements, could reduce our production and revenues and could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

Shortages of drilling rigs, equipment and crews could delay our operations, adversely affect our ability to increase
our reserves and production and reduce our cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

Higher oil and natural gas prices generally increase the demand for drilling rigs, equipment and crews and can lead to
shortages of, and increasing costs for, drilling equipment, services and personnel. Shortages of, or increasing costs for,
experienced drilling crews and oil field equipment and services could restrict our ability to drill the wells and conduct
the operations which we currently have planned. Any delay in the drilling of new wells or significant increase in
drilling costs could adversely affect our ability to increase our reserves and production and reduce our revenues and
cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

Increases in the cost of drilling rigs, service rigs, pumping services and other costs in drilling and completing wells
could reduce the viability of certain of our development projects.

The rig count and the cost of rigs and oil field services necessary to implement our development projects have risen
significantly with the increases in oil and natural gas prices. Increased capital requirements for our projects will result
in higher reserve replacement costs which could reduce cash available for distribution. Higher project costs could
cause certain of our projects to become uneconomic and therefore not to be implemented, reducing our production and
cash available for distribution.
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Drilling for and producing oil and natural gas are high risk activities with many uncertainties that could adversely

affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make cash distributions to our
unitholders.

Our drilling activities are subject to many risks, including the risk that we will not discover commercially productive

reservoirs. Drilling for oil and natural gas can be uneconomic, not only from dry holes, but also from productive wells
that do not produce sufficient revenues to be commercially viable.

11
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In addition, our drilling and producing operations may be curtailed, delayed or canceled as a result of other factors,
including:

the high cost, shortages or delivery delays of equipment and services;

unexpected operational events;

adverse weather conditions;

facility or equipment malfunctions;

title disputes;

pipeline ruptures or spills;

collapses of wellbore, casing or other tubulars;

unusual or unexpected geological formations;

loss of drilling fluid circulation;

formations with abnormal pressures;

fires;

blowouts, craterings and explosions; and

uncontrollable flows of oil, natural gas or well fluids.
Any of these events can cause substantial losses, including personal injury or loss of life, damage to or destruction of
property, natural resources and equipment, pollution, environmental contamination, loss of wells and regulatory
penalties.
We ordinarily maintain insurance against various losses and liabilities arising from our operations; however, insurance
against all operational risks is not available to us. Additionally, we may elect not to obtain insurance if we believe that
the cost of available insurance is excessive relative to the perceived risks presented. Losses could therefore occur for
uninsurable or uninsured risks or in amounts in excess of existing insurance coverage. The occurrence of an event that
is not fully covered by insurance could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations, financial

condition and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

Increases in interest rates could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows from operations
and financial condition.

Since all of the indebtedness outstanding under our credit facility is at variable interest rates, we have significant
exposure to increases in interest rates. As a result, our business, results of operations and cash flows may be adversely
affected by significant increases in interest rates. Further, an increase in interest rates may cause a corresponding
decline in demand for equity investments, in particular for yield-based equity investments such as our units. Any
reduction in demand for our units resulting from other more attractive investment opportunities may cause the trading
price of our units to decline.
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We may have assumed unknown liabilities in connection with the formation transactions and our subsequent
acquisitions.

As part of the formation transactions and subsequent acquisitions, our properties may be subject to existing liabilities,
some of which may have been unknown at the closing of such transactions. Unknown liabilities might include
liabilities for cleanup or remediation of undisclosed or unknown environmental conditions, claims of vendors or other
persons (that had not been asserted or threatened prior to the closing of such transactions), tax liabilities and accrued
but unpaid liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business.

12
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Properties that we buy may not produce as projected, and we may be unable to determine reserve potential, identify
liabilities associated with the properties or obtain protection from sellers against such liabilities.

One of our growth strategies is to acquire additional oil and natural gas reserves. However, our reviews of acquired
properties are inherently incomplete because it generally is not feasible to review in depth every individual property
involved in each acquisition. Even a detailed review of records and properties may not necessarily reveal existing or
potential problems, nor will it permit a buyer to become sufficiently familiar with the properties to assess fully their
deficiencies and potential. Inspections may not always be performed on every well, and environmental problems, such
as ground water contamination, are not necessarily observable even when an inspection is undertaken. Even when
problems are identified, we often assume environmental and other risks and liabilities in connection with acquired
properties.

Our identified drilling location inventories are scheduled out over several years, making them susceptible to
uncertainties that could materially alter the occurrence or timing of their drilling.

Our management team has specifically identified and scheduled drilling locations as an estimation of our future
multi-year drilling activities on our acreage. These identified drilling locations represent a significant part of our
growth strategy. Our ability to drill and develop these locations depends on a number of factors, including the
availability of capital, seasonal conditions, regulatory approvals, oil and natural gas prices, costs and drilling results.
Our final determination on whether to drill any of these drilling locations will be dependent upon the factors described
above as well as, to some degree, the results of our drilling activities with respect to our proved drilling locations.
Because of these uncertainties, we do not know if the numerous drilling locations we have identified will be drilled
within our expected timeframe or will ever be drilled or if we will be able to produce oil or natural gas from these or
any other potential drilling locations. As such, our actual drilling activities may be materially different from those
presently identified, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and our
ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

Our commodity derivative activities could result in cash losses, could reduce our cash available for distributions
and may limit potential gains.

We have entered into, and we may in the future enter into, oil and natural gas derivative contracts intended to offset
the effects of price volatility related to a significant portion of our oil and natural gas production. Many derivative
instruments that we employ require us to make cash payments to the extent the applicable index exceeds a
predetermined price, thereby limiting our ability to realize the benefit of increases in oil and natural gas prices.

If our actual production and sales for any period are less than our expected production covered by derivative contracts
and sales for that period (including reductions in production due to operational delays) or if we are unable to perform
our drilling activities as planned, we might be forced to satisfy all or a portion of our derivative contracts without the
benefit of the cash flow from our sale of the underlying physical commodity, resulting in a substantial diminution of
our liquidity. Lastly, an attendant risk exists in derivative activities that the counterparty in any derivative transaction
cannot or will not perform under the instrument and that we will not realize the benefit of the derivative. Under our
credit facility, we are prohibited from entering into derivative contracts covering all of our production, and we
therefore retain the risk of a price decrease on our volumes not subject to derivative contracts.

The inability of one or more of our customers to meet their obligations may adversely affect our financial condition
and results of operations.

Substantially all of our accounts receivable result from oil and natural gas sales or joint interest billings to third parties
in the energy industry. This concentration of customers and joint interest owners may impact our overall credit risk in
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that these entities may be similarly affected by changes in economic and other conditions. In addition, our oil and
natural gas hedging arrangements expose us to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties.
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We depend on a limited number of key personnel who would be difficult to replace.

Our operations are dependent on the continued efforts of our executive officers, senior management and key
employees. The loss of any member of our senior management or other key employees could negatively impact our
ability to execute our strategy.

We may be unable to compete effectively with larger companies, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

The oil and natural gas industry is intensely competitive, and we compete with other companies that have greater
resources than us. Our ability to acquire additional properties and to discover reserves in the future will be dependent
upon our ability to evaluate and select suitable properties and to consummate transactions in a highly competitive
environment. Many of our larger competitors not only explore for and produce oil and natural gas, but also carry on
refining operations and market petroleum and other products on a regional, national or worldwide basis. These
companies may be able to pay more for productive natural gas properties and exploratory prospects or define,
evaluate, bid for and purchase a greater number of properties and prospects than our financial or human resources
permit. In addition, these companies may have a greater ability to continue exploration and development activities
during periods of low oil and natural gas market prices and to absorb the burden of present and future federal, state,
local and other laws and regulations. Our inability to compete effectively with larger companies could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make cash distributions to
our unitholders.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report our financial
results or prevent fraud. As a result, current and potential unitholders could lose confidence in our financial
reporting, which would harm our business and the trading price of our units.

Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our
reputation and operating results could be harmed. We cannot be certain that our efforts to develop and maintain our
internal controls will be successful, that we will be able to maintain adequate controls over our financial processes and
reporting in the future or that we will be able to continue to comply with our obligations under Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Any failure to maintain effective internal controls, or difficulties encountered in
implementing or improving our internal controls, could harm our operating results or cause us to fail to meet certain
reporting obligations. Ineffective internal controls could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported
financial information, which could have a negative effect on the trading price of our units.

We are subject to complex federal, state, local and other laws and regulations that could adversely affect the cost,
manner or feasibility of conducting our operations.

Our oil and natural gas exploration and production operations are subject to complex and stringent laws and
regulations. In order to conduct our operations in compliance with these laws and regulations, we must obtain and
maintain numerous permits, approvals and certificates from various federal, state and local governmental authorities.
We may incur substantial costs in order to maintain compliance with these existing laws and regulations. In addition,
our costs of compliance may increase if existing laws and regulations are revised or reinterpreted, or if new laws and
regulations become applicable to our operations. All such costs may have a negative effect on our business, results of
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Our business is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations as interpreted and enforced by governmental
authorities possessing jurisdiction over various aspects of the exploration for and the production of,
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oil and natural gas. Failure to comply with such laws and regulations, as interpreted and enforced, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and our ability to make cash
distributions to our unitholders.

Our operations expose us to significant costs and liabilities with respect to environmental and operational safety
matters.

We may incur significant costs and liabilities as a result of environmental and safety requirements applicable to our oil
and natural gas exploration and production activities. These costs and liabilities could arise under a wide range of
federal, state and local environmental and safety laws and regulations, including regulations and enforcement policies,
which have tended to become increasingly strict over time. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may
result in the assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, imposition of cleanup and site restoration costs
and liens, and to a lesser extent, issuance of injunctions to limit or cease operations. In addition, claims for damages to
persons or property may result from environmental and other impacts of our operations.

Strict, joint and several liability may be imposed under certain environmental laws, which could cause us to become
liable for the conduct of others or for consequences of our own actions that were in compliance with all applicable
laws at the time those actions were taken. New laws, regulations or enforcement policies could be more stringent and
impose unforeseen liabilities or significantly increase compliance costs. If we were not able to recover the resulting
costs through insurance or increased revenues, our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders could be
adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Limited Partnership Structure

Units eligible for future sale may have adverse effects on our unit price and the liquidity of the market for our
units.

We cannot predict the effect of future sales of our units, or the availability of units for future sales, on the market price
of or the liquidity of the market for our units. Sales of substantial amounts of units, or the perception that such sales
could occur, could adversely affect the prevailing market price of our units. Such sales, or the possibility of such sales,
could also make it difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem
appropriate. Factors affecting the likely volume of future sales of our units, and the possible consequences of such
sales, include the following:

All of our units issued in our private equity offerings were restricted securities within the meaning of Rule 144
under the Securities Act. As more of our units become eligible for sale under Rule 144, the volume of sales of
our units may increase, which could reduce the market price of our units.

The Founding Investors and their affiliates, including members of our management, own approximately 43%
of our outstanding units. We granted the Founding Investors certain registration rights to have their units
registered under the Securities Act. Upon registration, these units will be eligible for sale into the market.
Because of the substantial size of the Founding Investors holdings, the sale of a significant portion of these
units, or a perception in the market that such a sale is likely, could have a significant impact on the market
price of our units.

We granted purchasers in our private equity offerings certain registration rights to have the resale of their units

registered under the Securities Act. If purchasers in our private equity offerings were to resell a substantial
portion of their units, it could reduce the market price of our outstanding units.
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Our Founding Investors, including members of our management, own a 43% limited partner interest in us and
control our general partner, which has sole responsibility for conducting our business and managing our
operations. OQur general partner has conflicts of interest and limited fiduciary duties, which may permit it to favor
its own interests to the detriment of our unitholders.

Our Founding Investors, including members of our management, own a 43% limited partner interest in us and
therefore have the ability to effectively control the election of the entire board of directors of our general partner.
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Although our general partner has a fiduciary duty to manage us in a manner beneficial to us and our unitholders, the
directors and officers of our general partner have a fiduciary duty to manage our general partner in a manner
beneficial to its owners, our Founding Investors and their affiliates. Conflicts of interest may arise between our
Founding Investors and their affiliates, including our general partner, on the one hand, and us and our unitholders, on
the other hand. In resolving these conflicts of interest, our general partner may favor its own interests and the interests
of its affiliates over the interests of our unitholders. These conflicts include, among others, the following situations:

neither our partnership agreement nor any other agreement requires our Founding Investors or their affiliates,
other than our executive officers, to pursue a business strategy that favors us;

our general partner is allowed to take into account the interests of parties other than us, such as our Founding
Investors, in resolving conflicts of interest, which has the effect of limiting its fiduciary duty to our unitholders;

our Founding Investors and their affiliates (other than our executive officers and their affiliates) may engage in
competition with us;

our general partner has limited its liability and reduced its fiduciary duties under our partnership agreement and
has also restricted the remedies available to our unitholders for actions that, without the limitations, might
constitute breaches of fiduciary duty. As a result of purchasing units, unitholders consent to some actions and
conflicts of interest that might otherwise constitute a breach of fiduciary or other duties under applicable state
law;

our general partner determines the amount and timing of asset purchases and sales, capital expenditures,
borrowings, issuance of additional partnership securities, and reserves, each of which can affect the amount of
cash that is distributed to our unitholders;

our general partner determines the amount and timing of any capital expenditures and whether a capital
expenditure is a maintenance capital expenditure, which reduces operating surplus, or a growth capital
expenditure, which does not. Such determination can affect the amount of cash that is distributed to our
unitholders;

our general partner determines which costs incurred by it and its affiliates are reimbursable by us;

our partnership agreement does not restrict our general partner from causing us to pay it or its affiliates for any
services rendered to us or entering into additional contractual arrangements with any of these entities on our
behalf;

our general partner intends to limit its liability regarding our contractual and other obligations;

our general partner controls the enforcement of obligations owed to us by it and its affiliates; and

our general partner decides whether to retain separate counsel, accountants, or others to perform services for
us.

Even if unitholders are dissatisfied they cannot remove our general partner without the consent of unitholders
owning at least 662/3% of our units, including units owned by our general partner and its affiliates.

Currently, the unitholders are unable to remove our general partner without its consent because our general partner s
affiliates own sufficient units to be able to prevent our general partner s removal. The vote of the holders of at least
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662/3% of all outstanding units voting together as a single class is required to remove the general partner. Affiliates of
our general partner, including members of our management, own 43% of our units.
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Our partnership agreement restricts the voting rights of those unitholders owning 20% or more of our units.

Unitholders voting rights are further restricted by the partnership agreement provision providing that any units held by
a person that owns 20% or more of any class of units then outstanding, other than our general partner, its affiliates,
their transferees, and persons who acquired such units with the prior approval of the board of directors of our general
partner, cannot vote on any matter. Our partnership agreement also contains provisions limiting the ability of
unitholders to call meetings or to acquire information about our operations, as well as other provisions limiting the
unitholders ability to influence the manner or direction of management.

Our Founding Investors and their affiliates (other than our executive officers and their affiliates) may compete
directly with us.

Our Founding Investors and their affiliates, other than our general partner and our executive officers and their
affiliates, are not prohibited from owning assets or engaging in businesses that compete directly or indirectly with us.
In addition, our Founding Investors or their affiliates, other than our general partner and our executive officers and
their affiliates, may acquire, develop and operate oil and natural gas properties or other assets in the future, without
any obligation to offer us the opportunity to acquire, develop or operate those assets.

Cost reimbursements due our general partner and its affiliates will reduce our cash available for distribution to our
unitholders.

Prior to making any distribution on our outstanding units, we will reimburse our general partner and its affiliates for
all expenses they incur on our behalf. Any such reimbursement will be determined by our general partner in its sole
discretion. These expenses will include all costs incurred by our general partner and its affiliates in managing and
operating us. The reimbursement of expenses of our general partner and its affiliates could adversely affect our ability
to pay cash distributions to our unitholders.

Our partnership agreement limits our general partner s fiduciary duties to our unitholders and restricts the
remedies available to unitholders for actions taken by our general partner that might otherwise constitute breaches
of fiduciary duty.

Our partnership agreement contains provisions that reduce the standards to which our general partner would otherwise
be held by state fiduciary duty law. For example, our partnership agreement:

permits our general partner to make a number of decisions in its individual capacity, as opposed to in its
capacity as our general partner. This entitles our general partner to consider only the interests and factors that it
desires, and it has no duty or obligation to give any consideration to any interest of, or factors affecting, us, our
affiliates or any unitholder;

provides that our general partner will not have any liability to us or our unitholders for decisions made in its
capacity as a general partner so long as it acted in good faith, meaning it believed the decision was in the best
interests of our partnership;

provides that our general partner is entitled to make other decisions in good faith if it believes that the decision
1s in our best interest;

provides generally that affiliated transactions and resolutions of conflicts of interest not approved by the

conflicts committee of the board of directors of our general partner and not involving a vote of unitholders
must be on terms no less favorable to us than those generally being provided to or available from unrelated
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third parties or be fair and reasonable to us, as determined by our general partner in good faith, and that, in
determining whether a transaction or resolution is fair and reasonable, our general partner may consider the
totality of the relationships between the parties involved, including other transactions that may be particularly
advantageous or beneficial to us; and

provides that our general partner and its officers and directors will not be liable for monetary damages to us,
our unitholders or assignees for any acts or omissions unless there has been a final and non-appealable
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judgment entered by a court of competent jurisdiction determining that the general partner or those other
persons acted in bad faith or engaged in fraud or willful misconduct.

Our partnership agreement permits our general partner to redeem any partnership interests held by a limited
partner who is a non-citizen assignee.

If we are or become subject to federal, state or local laws or regulations that, in the reasonable determination of our
general partner, create a substantial risk of cancellation or forfeiture of any property that we have an interest in
because of the nationality, citizenship or other related status of any limited partner, our general partner may redeem
the units held by the limited partner at their current market price. In order to avoid any cancellation or forfeiture, our
general partner may require each limited partner to furnish information about his nationality, citizenship or related
status. If a limited partner fails to furnish information about his nationality, citizenship or other related status within
30 days after a request for the information or our general partner determines after receipt of the information that the
limited partner is not an eligible citizen, our general partner may elect to treat the limited partner as a non-citizen
assignee. A non-citizen assignee is entitled to an interest equivalent to that of a limited partner for the right to share in
allocations and distributions from us, including liquidating distributions. A non-citizen assignee does not have the
right to direct the voting of his units and may not receive distributions in kind upon our liquidation.

We may issue an unlimited number of additional units without the approval of our unitholders, which would dilute
their existing ownership interest in us.

Our general partner, without the approval of our unitholders, may cause us to issue an unlimited number of additional
units. The issuance by us of additional units or other equity securities of equal or senior rank will have the following
effects:

our unitholders proportionate ownership interests in us will decrease;

the amount of cash available for distribution on each unit may decrease;

the risk that a shortfall in the payment of our current quarterly distribution will increase;
the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding unit may be diminished; and
the market price of the units may decline.

The liability of our unitholders may not be limited if a court finds that unitholder action constitutes control of our
business.

A general partner of a partnership generally has unlimited liability for the obligations of the partnership, except for
those contractual obligations of the partnership that are expressly made without recourse to the general partner. Our
partnership is organized under Delaware law, and we conduct business in a number of other states. The limitations on
the liability of holders of limited partner interests for the obligations of a limited partnership have not been clearly
established in some of the other states in which we do business. In some states, including Delaware, a limited partner

is only liable if he participates in the control of the business of the partnership. These statutes generally do not define
control, but do permit limited partners to engage in certain activities, including, among other actions, taking any action
with respect to the dissolution of the partnership, the sale, exchange, lease or mortgage of any asset of the partnership,
the admission or removal of the general partner and the amendment of the partnership agreement. Our unitholders
could, however, be liable for any and all of our obligations as if our unitholders were a general partner if:
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a court or government agency determined that we were conducting business in a state but had not complied
with that particular state s partnership statute; or

our unitholders right to act with other unitholders to take other actions under our partnership agreement that
constitute control of our business.
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Unitholders may have liability to repay distributions that were wrongfully distributed to them.

Under certain circumstances, unitholders may have to repay amounts wrongfully returned or distributed to them.
Under Section 17-607 of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act, we may not make a distribution to
our unitholders if the distribution would cause our liabilities to exceed the fair value of our assets. Delaware law
provides that for a period of three years from the date of the distribution, limited partners who received an
impermissible distribution and who knew at the time of the distribution that it violated Delaware law will be liable to
the limited partnership for the distribution amount. Substituted limited partners are liable for the obligations of the
transferring limited partner to make contributions to the partnership that are known to such substitute limited partner
at the time it became a limited partner and for unknown obligations if the liabilities could be determined from the
partnership agreement. Liabilities to partners on account of their partnership interest and liabilities that are
non-recourse to the partnership are not counted for purposes of determining whether a distribution is permitted.

Tax Risks to Unitholders

Our tax treatment depends on our status as a partnership for federal income tax purposes, as well as our not being
subject to a material amount of additional entity-level taxation by states and localities. If the IRS were to treat us as
a corporation or if we were to become subject to a material amount of additional entity-level taxation for state or
local tax purposes, then our cash available for distribution to our unitholders would be substantially reduced.

The anticipated after-tax economic benefit of an investment in our units depends largely on our being treated as a
partnership for federal income tax purposes. We have not requested, and do not plan to request, a ruling from the IRS
on this or any other tax matter affecting us.

If we were treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes, we would pay federal income tax on our taxable
income at the corporate tax rate, which currently has a top marginal rate of 35%, and would likely pay state and local
income tax at the corporate tax rate of the various states and localities imposing a corporate income tax. Distributions
to our unitholders would generally be taxed again as corporate distributions, and no income, gains, losses, deductions
or credits would flow through to our unitholders. Because a tax would be imposed upon us as a corporation, our cash
available to pay distributions to our unitholders would be substantially reduced. Therefore, treatment of us as a
corporation would result in a material reduction in the anticipated cash flow and after-tax return to our unitholders
likely causing a substantial reduction in the value of our units.

Current law may change, causing us to be treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes or otherwise subject
us to entity-level taxation. In addition, because of widespread state budget deficits and other reasons, several states are
evaluating ways to subject partnerships to entity-level taxation through the imposition of state income, franchise and
other forms of taxation. For example, we are subject to a new entity-level state tax on the portion of our income that is
generated in Texas beginning for tax reports due on or after January 1, 2008. Specifically, the Texas margin tax is
imposed at a maximum effective rate of 0.7% of our gross income that is apportioned to Texas. If any additional states
were to impose a tax upon us as an entity, the cash available for distribution to our unitholders would be reduced.

The tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships or an investment in our units could be subject to potential
legislative, judicial or administrative changes and differing interpretations, possibly on a retroactive basis.

The present U.S. federal income tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships, including us, or an investment in our
units may be modified by administrative, legislative or judicial interpretation at any time. Any modification to the
U.S. federal income tax laws and interpretations thereof may or may not be applied retroactively and could make it
more difficult or impossible to meet the exception for us to be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax
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purposes that is not taxable as a corporation, or Qualifying Income Exception, affect or cause us to change our
business activities, affect the tax considerations of an investment in us, change the character or treatment of portions
of our income and adversely affect an investment in our units. For example, in response to certain recent
developments, members of Congress are considering substantive changes to the definition of qualifying income
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under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code. Legislation has been proposed that would eliminate partnership
tax treatment for certain publicly traded partnerships. Although such legislation would not apply to us as currently
proposed, it could be amended prior to enactment in a manner that does apply to us. It is possible that these legislative
efforts could result in changes to the existing U.S. tax laws that affect publicly traded partnerships, including us. Any
modification to the U.S. federal income tax laws and interpretations thereof may or may not be applied retroactively.
We are unable to predict whether any of these changes, or other proposals, will ultimately be enacted. Any such
changes could negatively impact the value of an investment in our units.

Our unitholders may be required to pay taxes on their share of our income even if they do not receive any cash
distributions from us.

Our unitholders are required to pay federal income taxes and, in some cases, state and local income taxes on their
share of our taxable income, whether or not they receive cash distributions from us. Our unitholders may not receive
cash distributions from us equal to their share of our taxable income or even equal to the actual tax liability that results
from their share of our taxable income.

We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and deduction between transferors and transferees of our units each
month based upon the ownership of our units on the first day of each month, instead of on the basis of the date a
particular unit is transferred.

We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and deduction between transferors and transferees of our units each month
based upon the ownership of our units on the first day of each month, instead of on the basis of the date a particular
unit is transferred. The use of this proration method may not be permitted under existing Treasury regulations, and,
accordingly, our counsel is unable to opine as to the validity of this method. If the IRS were to challenge this method
or new Treasury regulations were issued, we may be required to change the allocation of items of income, gain, loss
and deduction among our unitholders.

A successful IRS contest of the federal income tax positions we take may adversely affect the market for our units,
and the costs of any contest will reduce our cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

We have not requested any ruling from the IRS with respect to our treatment as a partnership for federal income tax
purposes or any other matter affecting us. The IRS may adopt positions that differ from our counsel s conclusions or
the positions we take. It may be necessary to resort to administrative or court proceedings to sustain some or all of our
counsel s conclusions or the positions we take. A court may disagree with some or all of our counsel s conclusions or
the positions we take. Any contest with the IRS may materially and adversely impact the market for our units and the
price at which they trade. In addition, the costs of any contest with the IRS will result in a reduction in cash available
to pay distributions to our unitholders and thus will be borne indirectly by our unitholders.

Tax-exempt entities and foreign persons face unique tax issues from owning units that may result in adverse tax
consequences to them.

Investment in our units by tax-exempt entities, including employee benefit plans and individual retirement accounts
(known as IRAs) and non-U.S. persons raises issues unique to them. For example, virtually all of our income allocated
to organizations exempt from federal income tax, including individual retirement accounts and other retirement plans,
will be unrelated business taxable income and will be taxable to such a unitholder. Distributions to non-U.S. persons
will be reduced by withholding taxes imposed at the highest effective applicable tax rate, and non-U.S. persons will be
required to file United States federal income tax returns and pay tax on their share of our taxable income.
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Tax gain or loss on the disposition of our units could be more or less than expected because prior distributions in
excess of allocations of income will decrease our unitholders tax basis in their units.

If our unitholders sell any of their units, they will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount
realized and their tax basis in those units. Prior distributions to our unitholders in excess of the total net
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taxable income they were allocated for a unit, which decreased their tax basis in that unit, will, in effect, become
taxable income to our unitholders if the unit is sold at a price greater than their tax basis in that unit, even if the price
our unitholders receive is less than their original cost. A substantial portion of the amount realized, whether or not
representing gain, may be ordinary income to our unitholders. In addition, if our unitholders sell their units, our
unitholders may incur a tax liability in excess of the amount of cash our unitholders receive from the sale.

We will treat each purchaser of our units as having the same tax benefits without regard to the units purchased.
The IRS may challenge this treatment, which could adversely affect the value of the units.

Because we cannot match transferors and transferees of units, we will adopt depletion, depreciation and amortization
positions that may not conform with all aspects of existing Treasury regulations. Our counsel is unable to opine as to
the validity of such filing positions. A successful IRS challenge to those positions could adversely affect the amount
of tax benefits available to our unitholders. It also could affect the timing of these tax benefits or the amount of gain
on the sale of units and could have a negative impact on the value of our units or result in audits of and adjustments to
our unitholders tax returns.

A unitholder whose units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of units may be considered as having
disposed of those units. If so, the unitholder would no longer be treated for tax purposes as a partner with respect
to those units during the period of the loan may recognize gain or loss from the disposition.

Because a unitholder whose units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of units may be considered as having
disposed of the loaned units, he may no longer be treated for tax purposes as a partner with respect to those units

during the period of the loan to the short seller and the unitholder may recognize gain or loss from such disposition.
Moreover, during the period of the loan to the short seller, any of our income, gain, loss or deduction with respect to
those units may not be reportable by the unitholder and any cash distributions received by the unitholder as to those

units could be fully taxable as ordinary income. Our counsel has not rendered an opinion regarding the treatment of a
unitholder where our units are loaned to a short seller to cover a short sale of our units; therefore, unitholders desiring

to assure their status as partners and avoid the risk of gain recognition from a loan to a short seller are urged to modify
any applicable brokerage account agreements to prohibit their brokers from borrowing their units.

Our unitholders may be subject to state and local taxes and return filing requirements in states where they do not
live as a result of investing in our units.

In addition to federal income taxes, our unitholders will likely be subject to other taxes, including state and local
income taxes, unincorporated business taxes and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that are imposed by the various
jurisdictions in which we do business or own property now or in the future, even if they do not reside in any of those
jurisdictions. Our unitholders will likely be required to file state and local income tax returns and pay state and local
income taxes in some or all of these various jurisdictions. Further, our unitholders may be subject to penalties for
failure to comply with those requirements. We currently do business and own assets in Texas, New Mexico,
Oklahoma, Alabama, Mississippi, Wyoming, North Dakota, Colorado and Arkansas. As we make acquisitions or
expand our business, we may do business or own assets in other states in the future. It is the responsibility of each
unitholder to file all United States federal, state and local tax returns that may be required of such unitholder. Our
counsel has not rendered an opinion on the state or local tax consequences of an investment in our units.

We will be considered to have terminated for tax purposes due to a sale or exchange of 50% or more of our
interests within a twelve-month period.

We will be considered to have terminated our partnership for federal income tax purposes if there is a sale or exchange
of 50% or more of the total interests in our capital and profits within a twelve-month period. Our termination would,
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among other things result in the closing of our taxable year for all unitholders and could result in a deferral of
depreciation deductions allowable in computing our taxable income.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2007 we owned interests in producing oil and natural gas properties in 214 fields in the Permian
Basin, Texas Panhandle and Anadarko Basin of Oklahoma, operated 1,547 gross productive wells and owned
non-operated interests in 2,207 gross productive wells. The following table sets forth information about our proved oil
and natural gas reserves as of December 31, 2007. The standardized measure amounts shown in the table are not
intended to represent the current market value of our estimated oil and natural gas reserves. For a definition of
standardized measure please see the glossary of terms at the beginning of this annual report on Form 10-K.

As of December 31, 2007
Proved Reserves Standardized Measure

% Qil and % of

Field MMBoe R/P(a) NGL s Amount Total
($in
Millions)

Texas Panhandle Fields 4.6 19 81% $ 86.9 12.6%
Spraberry 3.6 14 67 84.7 12.3
East Binger 34 13 83 77.0 11.1
Denton 2.2 16 87 48.1 6.9
Farmer 1.8 19 66 30.9 4.5
Langlie Mattix 1.3 17 85 29.2 4.2
Howard Glasscock/Iatan/Iatan East Howard 1.3 17 99 26.7 3.9
Total Top 7 fields 18.2 16 79% $ 383.5 55.5%
All others 13.9 13 66 307.0 44.5
Total 32.1 14 74% $ 690.5 100.0%

(a) Reserves as of December 31, 2007 divided by annual production volumes.

Summary of Qil and Natural Gas Properties and Projects

Our most significant fields are the Texas Panhandle, Spraberry, East Binger, Denton, Farmer, Langlie Mattix and
Howard Glasscock/Iatan/Iatan East Howard. As of December 31, 2007 these seven fields accounted for approximately
56.7% of our total estimated proved reserves.

Texas Panhandle Fields. In October of 2007, Legacy Reserves acquired producing properties in the Texas Panhandle
fields located in Carson, Gray, Hartley, Hutchinson, Moore, and Potter Counties, Texas, in two acquisitions. The
fields are produced from multiple formations of Permian age which primarily include the Granite Wash, Brown
Dolomite, and Red Cave formations from 2,500 to 4,000 feet. Legacy operates 277 wells (263 producing, 14
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injecting) in the Texas Panhandle fields with working interests ranging from 81.3% to 100% and net revenue interests
ranging from 69.3% to 100.0%. We also own another 271 wells (268 producing, 3 injecting) with a 3.8% average
non-operated working interest. As of December 31, 2007, our properties in the Texas Panhandle fields contained

4.6 MMBoe (81% liquids) of net proved reserves with a standardized measure of $86.9 million. The average net daily
production from these fields was 1,086 Boe/d in December 2007. The estimated reserve life (R/P) for these fields is
19 years.

Spraberry Field. The Spraberry field is located in Midland, Martin, Reagan and Upton counties, Texas. This field
produces from Spraberry and Wolfcamp age formations from 5,000 to 10,200 feet. We operate 127 active wells in this
field with working interests ranging from 4.0% to 100% and net revenue interests ranging from 4.0% to 90.8%. We
have a 1.3% overriding royalty interest in one non-operated unit in the Spraberry field. We also have three lease line
wells outside the non-operated unit with a working interest of 12.5% and a net revenue interest of 9.4%. As of
December 31, 2007, our properties in the Spraberry field contained 3.6 MMBoe (67% liquids) of net
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proved reserves with a standardized measure of $84.7 million. The average net daily production from this field was
586 Boe/d for the fourth quarter of 2007. The estimated reserve life for this field is 14 years.

Six operated and three non-operated wells were drilled on Legacy Reserves properties in the Spraberry Field in 2007.
We have identified eleven more proved undeveloped projects and eight behind-pipe or proved developed
non-producing ( PDNP ) re-completion projects in this field.

East Binger Field. In April 2007, Legacy Reserves acquired producing properties in the East Binger field located in
Caddo County, Oklahoma. This field which is on the Northeastern shelf of the Anadarko Basin was discovered in
1935 and through December 31, 2007, our properties in this field had gross cumulative production of 22.0 MMBbls of
oil and 130.5 Bcf of natural gas. The Marchand Sand, at depths of 9,700 to 10,100 feet, is the primary reservoir in the
East Binger Field. The East Binger Unit, the major property in the field, is an active miscible nitrogen injection
project and is operated by Binger Operations, LLC (BOL) of which Legacy owns 50%. BOL operates 91 wells in the
East Binger field and Legacy Reserves owns a working interest of 54.5% and net revenue interest of 45.8% in the East
Binger Unit. As of December 31, 2007, our properties in the East Binger field contained 3.4 MMBoe (83% liquids) of
net proved reserves with a standardized measure of $77.0 million. The average net daily production from this field
was 812 Boe/d for the fourth quarter of 2007. The estimated reserve life (R/P) for the field is 13 years.

Two infill wells were drilled in the East Binger Unit in 2007 and we have nine more proved undeveloped projects
identified in this field.

Denton Field. The Denton field is an oil and natural gas field located in Lea County, New Mexico. The Devonian
Formation at depths of 11,000 to 12,700 feet is the primary reservoir in the Denton field. Additional production has
been developed in the Wolfcamp Formation at depths of 8,900 to 9,600 feet. We operate 17 wells in the Denton field
with working interests ranging from 86% to 100% and net revenue interests ranging from 75.1%to 87.5%. We also
own another 6 producing wells with a 15.0% average non-operated working interest. As of December 31, 2007, our
properties in the Denton field contained 2.2 MMBoe (87% liquids ) of net proved reserves with a standardized
measure of $48.1 million. The average net daily production from this field was 390 Boe/d for the fourth quarter of
2007. The estimated reserve life (R/P) for the field is 16 years.

Farmer Field. The Farmer field is an oil and natural gas field located in Crockett and Reagan counties, Texas. The
San Andres Formation at depths of 2,100 to 2,600 feet is the primary reservoir in the Farmer field. We operate

156 wells (148 producing, 8 injecting) in the Farmer field with a 100.0% average working interest and a net revenue
interest ranging from 80.8% to 87.5%. As of December 31, 2007, our properties in the Farmer field contained

1.8 MMBoe (66% liquids) of net proved reserves with a standardized measure of $30.9 million. The average net daily
production from this field was 275 Boe/d for the fourth quarter of 2007. The estimated reserve life (R/P) for the field
is 19 years.

The Farmer field has been developed using 20-acre spacing with the exception of a pilot 10-acre spacing area that
includes eleven 10-acre wells. We currently have 33 10-acre proved undeveloped locations in this field and an
additional 84 unproved 10-acre locations.

Langlie Mattix Field. The Langlie Mattix field is an oil and natural gas field located in Lea County, New Mexico.
The Queen Formation at depths of 3,400 to 3,800 feet is the primary reservoir in the Langlie Mattix field. We operate
104 wells (76 producing, 28 injecting) in the Langlie Mattix Penrose Sand Unit, a subdivision of the Langlie Mattix
Field, with a 51.7% average working interest and a 44.7% average net revenue interest. We also operate two other
properties with 100% and 82.4% working interests and 82.0% and 67.4% net revenue interests. As of December 31,
2007, our properties in the Langlie Mattix field contained 1.3 MMBoe (85% liquids) of net proved reserves with a
standardized measure of $29.2 million. The average net daily production from this field was 218 Boe/d for the fourth

Table of Contents 56



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A
quarter of 2007. The estimated reserve life (R/P) for the field is 17 years.

The Langlie Mattix Penrose Sand Unit was drilled in the late 1930s and early 1940s on 40-acre spacing.
Waterflooding commenced in 1958. Prior to 2007 there had been 14 20-acre infill wells drilled on the Unit; five
drilled in 1983, three drilled in 1992, and six drilled in 2004. All three 20-acre infill programs were successful. We
drilled twelve 20-acre infill wells in 2007 and have 23 more proved undeveloped locations and an additional 55
unproved 20-acre locations.
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Howard Glasscock, Iatan and latan East Howard Fields. The Howard Glasscock, Iatan and Iatan East Howard fields
adjoin one another and are located in Howard and Mitchell counties, Texas. These fields produce from multiple
formations of Permian age which primarily include the San Andres, Yates, Seven Rivers, Queen, Clearfork and
Glorieta Formations from 1,000 to 3,700 feet as well as the Wolfcamp and Canyon Formations from 5,100 to

7,400 feet. We operate 125 wells (115 producing, 10 injecting) in these fields with working interests ranging from
62.5% to 100.0% and net revenue interests ranging from 47.3% to 90.0%. As of December 31, 2007, our properties in
the Howard Glasscock, latan and Iatan East Howard fields contained 1.3 MMBoe (99% liquids) of net proved reserves
with a standardized measure of $26.7 million. The average net daily production from these fields was 208 Boe/d for
the fourth quarter of 2007. The estimated reserve life (R/P) for these fields is 17 years.

Oil and Natural Gas Data
Proved Reserves

The following table sets forth a summary of information related to our estimated net proved reserves as of the dates
indicated based on reserve reports prepared by LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd. The estimates of net proved
reserves have not been filed with or included in reports to any federal authority or agency. Standardized measure
amounts shown in the table are not intended to represent the current market value of our estimated oil and natural gas
reserves.

As of December 31,

2005(a) 2006 2007
Reserve Data:
Estimated net proved reserves:
Oil (MMBBDbIs) 8.1 13.4 19.6
Natural Gas Liquids (MMBbls) 4.0
Natural Gas (Bcf) 24.5 32.5 50.9
Total (MMBoe) 12.2 18.8 32.1
Proved developed reserves (MMBoe) 9.8 15.8 29.0
Proved undeveloped reserves (MMBoe) 2.4 3.0 3.1
Proved developed reserves as a percentage of total proved reserves 80% 84% 90%
Standardized measure (in millions)(b) $ 192.0 $ 240.6 $ 690.5
Oil and Natural Gas Prices (¢)
Oil NYMEX WTI per Bbl $ 57.64 $ 56.73 $ 91.96
Natural gas NYMEX Henry Hub per MMBtu $ 8.82 $ 582 $ 6.39

(a) Includes 3.2 MMBBDIs of oil, 13.0 Bcf of natural gas and $93.0 million of standardized measure held by MBN
Properties LP of which 1.7 MMBBDblIs of oil, 7.0 Bcf of natural gas and $50.2 million of standardized measure was
owned by the non-controlling interest.

(b) Standardized measure is the present value of estimated future net revenues to be generated from the production of
proved reserves, determined in accordance with assumptions required by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board and the Securities and Exchange Commission (using prices and costs in effect as of the period end date)
without giving effect to non-property related expenses such as general administrative expenses and debt service
or to depletion, depreciation and amortization and discounted using an annual discount rate of 10%. Because we
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are a limited partnership that allocates our taxable income to our unitholders, no provision for federal or state
income taxes have been provided for in the calculation of standardized measure. Standardized measure does not
give effect to derivative transactions. For a description of our derivative transactions, please read Management s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Cash Flow from Operating Activities.

(c) Oil and natural gas prices as of each date are based on NYMEX prices per Bbl of oil and per MMBtu of natural
gas at such date, with these representative prices adjusted by field to arrive at the appropriate net price.
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Proved developed reserves are reserves that can be expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing
equipment and operating methods. Proved undeveloped reserves are reserves that are expected to be recovered from
new wells drilled to known reservoirs on undrilled acreage for which the existence and recoverability of such reserves
can be estimated with reasonable certainty, or from existing wells on which a relatively major expenditure is required
to establish production.

The data in the above table represents estimates only. Oil and natural gas reserve engineering is inherently a subjective
process of estimating underground accumulations of oil and natural gas that cannot be measured exactly. The accuracy
of any reserve estimate is a function of the quality of available data and engineering and geological interpretation and
judgment. Accordingly, reserve estimates may vary from the quantities of oil and natural gas that are ultimately
recovered. Please read Risk Factors Our estimated reserves are based on many assumptions that may prove
inaccurate. Any material inaccuracies in these reserve estimates or underlying assumptions will materially affect the
quantities and present value of our reserves. Future prices received for production and costs may vary, perhaps
significantly, from the prices and costs assumed for purposes of these estimates. Standardized measure amounts
shown above should not be construed as the current market value of our estimated oil and natural gas reserves. The
10% discount factor used to calculate standardized measure, which is required by Financial Accounting Standard
Board pronouncements, is not necessarily the most appropriate discount rate. The present value, no matter what
discount rate is used, is materially affected by assumptions as to timing of future production, which may prove to be
inaccurate.

From time to time, we engage LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd. to prepare a reserve and economic evaluation of
properties that we are considering purchasing. Neither LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd. nor any of its employees
has any interest in those properties and the compensation for these engagements is not contingent on their estimates of
reserves and future net revenues for the subject properties. During 2006 and 2007, we paid LaRoche Petroleum
Consultants, Ltd. approximately $246,992 and $143,900, respectively, for such reserve and economic evaluations.
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The following table sets forth a summary of unaudited information with respect to our production and sales of oil and
natural gas for the periods indicated, including the historical data of Legacy Reserves LP (formerly the Moriah Group)
as of December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007. The 2006 data reflects Legacy s purchase of the oil and natural gas
properties acquired in the formation transactions and the South Justis, Farmer Field and Kinder Morgan acquisitions.
The 2007 data reflects Legacy s purchase of the oil and natural gas properties acquired in the Binger, Ameristate, TSF,
Raven Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC and Summit acquisitions:

Year Ended December 31,

2005(a) 2006(b) 2007(c)
Production:
Oil (MBbI) 354 749 1,179
Natural gas liquids (Mgal) 5,295
Gas (MMcf) 1,027 2,200 3,052
Total (MBOE) 525 1,116 1,814
Average daily production (BOE per day) 1,438 3,058 4,970
Average sales price per unit (excluding swaps):
Oil (per Bbl) $ 5148 $ 60.55 $ 70.65
NGL (per Gal) $ $ $ 142
Gas (per Mcf) $ 7.13 $ 6.57 $ 7.02
Combined (per BOE) $ 48.65 $ 53.58 $ 61.87
Average sales price per unit (including realized swap gains/losses)(f):
Oil (per Bbl) $ 41.51(d) $ 51.65(e) $ 67.58
NGL (per Gal) $ $ $ 1.30
Gas (per Mcf) $ 7.13 $ 948 $ 8.48
Combined (per BOE) $ 41.93(d) $ 53.35(e) $ 61.99
Average unit costs per BOE:
Production costs, excluding production and other taxes $ 12.14 $ 14.28 $ 14.96
Production and other taxes $ 3.12 $ 3.36 $ 435
General and administrative $ 2.58 $ 331 $ 4.63
Depletion, depreciation and amortization $ 436 $ 16.48 $ 15.66

(a) Reflects the production and operating results of the PITCO properties from their acquisition on September 14,
2005.

(b) Reflects the production and operating results of the oil and natural gas properties acquired in the March 15, 2006
formation transactions and the South Justis, Farmer Field and Kinder Morgan acquisitions from the closing dates
of such acquisitions through December 31, 2006.

(c) Reflects the production and operating results of the oil and natural gas properties acquired in the Binger,
Ameristate, TSF, Raven Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC and Summit Acquisitions from the closing dates of such
acquisitions through December 31, 2007.

(d) Includes the effects of approximately $2.0 million of derivative premiums for the year ended December 31, 2005
to cancel and reset 2006 oil swaps from $51.31 to $59.38 per Bbl and approximately $0.8 million of premiums
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paid on July 22, 2005 for an option to enter into a $55.00 per Bbl oil swap related to the PITCO acquisition that
was not exercised.

(e) Includes the effect of approximately $4.0 million of derivative premiums for the year ended December 31, 2006
to cancel and reset 2007 oil swaps from $60.00 to $65.82 per barrel for 372,000 barrels and for 2008 oil swaps
from $60.50 to $66.44 per barrel for 348,000 barrels, which reflected the prevailing oil swap market at the time
of the reset.

(f) Includes only the realized gains (losses) from Legacy s oil and natural gas swaps.
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Productive Wells

The following table sets forth information at December 31, 2007 relating to the productive wells in which we owned a
working interest as of that date. Productive wells consist of producing wells and wells capable of production,
including natural gas wells awaiting pipeline connections to commence deliveries and oil wells awaiting connection to
production facilities. Gross wells are the total number of producing wells in which we own an interest, and net wells
are the sum of our fractional working interests owned in gross wells.

Oil Natural Gas
Gross Net Gross Net
Operated 1,184 910.07 110 103.42
Non-operated 1,298 89.70 411 41.12
Total 2,482 999.77 521 144.54

Developed and Undeveloped Acreage

The following table sets forth information as of December 31, 2007 relating to our leasehold acreage.

Developed Undeveloped
Acreage(a) Acreage(b)
Gross(c
Gross(c) Net(d) ) Net(d)
Total 351,618 96,605 480 226

(a) Developed acres are acres spaced or assigned to productive wells or wells capable of production.

(b) Undeveloped acres are acres which are not held by commercially producing wells, regardless of whether such
acreage contains proved reserves. All of our proved undeveloped locations are located on acreage currently held
by production.

(c) A gross acre is an acre in which we own a working interest. The number of gross acres is the total number of
acres in which we own a working interest.

(d) A net acre is deemed to exist when the sum of the fractional ownership working interests in gross acres equals
one. The number of net acres is the sum of the fractional working interests owned in gross acres expressed as

whole numbers and fractions thereof.
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Drilling Activity

The following table sets forth information, on a combined basis, with respect to wells completed by Legacy, the
Moriah Group, Brothers Group, H2K, and the charitable foundations, during the years ended December 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007. The drilling activities associated with the PITCO properties are included for all periods subsequent to
the acquisition date of September 14, 2005. The drilling activities associated with the properties acquired in the
Farmer Field acquisition (June 29, 2006), the South Justis acquisition (June 29, 2006) and the Kinder Morgan
acquisition (July 31, 2006) are included for all periods subsequent to those acquisition dates. The drilling activities
associated with the properties acquired in the Binger acquisition (April 16, 2007), the Ameristate acquisition (May 1,
2007), the TSF acquisition (May 25, 2007), the Raven Shenandoah acquisition (May 31, 2007), the Raven OBO
acquisition (August 3, 2007), the TOC acquisition (October 1, 2007) and the Summit acquisition (October 1, 2007) are
included for all periods subsequent to those acquisition dates. The information should not be considered indicative of
future performance, nor should it be assumed that there is necessarily any correlation between the number of
productive wells drilled, quantities of reserves found or economic value. Productive wells are those that produce
commercial quantities of oil and natural gas, regardless of whether they produce a reasonable rate of return.

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2006 2007

Gross:

Development

Productive 12 14 29
Dry 2

Total 12 16 29
Exploratory

Productive

Dry 1

Total 1

Net:

Development

Productive 1.6 6.2 13.0
Dry 1.3

Total 1.6 7.5 13.0
Exploratory

Productive

Dry 0.1

Total 0.1

Summary of Development Projects

We are currently pursuing an active development strategy. We estimate that our capital expenditures for the year
ending December 31, 2008 will be approximately $18.2 million for development drilling, re-completions and
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re-fracture stimulation and other development related projects to implement this strategy. We intend to drill 24 gross
(17.3 net) development wells and execute 12 gross (5.8 net) re-completions and re-fracture simulations projects. All of
these development projects are located in the Permian Basin and the East Binger field in Oklahoma.

Operations
General

We operate approximately 61% of our net daily production of oil and natural gas. We design and manage the
development, re-completion or work-over for all of the wells we operate and supervise operation and maintenance
activities. We do not own drilling rigs or other oil field services equipment used for drilling or maintaining wells on
properties we operate except for two single pole pulling units used for shallow well work in the Panhandle fields.
Independent contractors engaged by us provide all the equipment and personnel associated with these activities. We
employ drilling, production, and reservoir engineers, geologists and other specialists who have worked and will work
to improve production rates, increase reserves, and lower the cost of operating our oil and natural gas properties. We
charge
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the non-operating partners an operating fee for operating the wells, typically on a fee per well operated basis. Our
non-operated wells are managed by third-party operators who are typically independent oil and natural gas companies.

Oil and Natural Gas Leases

The typical oil and natural gas lease agreement covering our properties provides for the payment of royalties to the
mineral owner for all oil and natural gas produced from any well drilled on the lease premises. In the Permian Basin
this amount generally ranges from 12.5% to 33.7% resulting in a 87.5% to 66.3% net revenue interest to us. Most of
our leases are held by production and do not require lease rental payments.

South Justis Unit Operating Agreement

In connection with our acquisition of the South Justis Unit from Henry Holding LP on June 29, 2006, we became the
successor in interest to Henry Holding LP as unit operator under the Unit Operating Agreement. As unit operator, we
are entitled to receive from the other working interest owners a per well operating fee which we expect to be an
aggregate of $1.7 million annually and is subject to an annual cost escalator. Under the terms of the Unit Agreement,
we may be removed as unit operator upon default or failure to perform our duties by a vote of two or more working
interest owners representing at least 80% of the working interest other than the interest held by us. In the event that we
transfer our working interest ownership, we will be removed as unit operator.

Derivative Activity

We enter into derivative transactions with unaffiliated third parties with respect to oil and natural gas prices to achieve
more predictable cash flows and to reduce our exposure to short-term fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices. All of
our derivative transactions in place are NYMEX financial swaps, which do not require option premiums. Our
derivatives either swap floating prices for fixed prices indexed on NYMEX for oil, NGL and natural gas or swap the
NYMEX index price to an index that reflects a geographical area of production, in our case, the Waha natural gas and
ANR-Oklahoma natural gas indices. We enter into derivative transactions with respect to LIBOR interest rates to
achieve more predictable cash flows and to reduce our exposure to short-term fluctuations in LIBOR interest rates. All
of our interest rate derivative transactions are LIBOR interest rate swaps, which do not require option premiums. Our
derivatives swap floating LIBOR rates for fixed rates. For a more detailed discussion of our derivative activities,
please read Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Cash Flow from
Operations and  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Title to Properties

Prior to completing an acquisition of producing oil and natural gas leases, we perform title reviews on significant
leases and, depending on the materiality of properties, we may obtain a title opinion or review previously obtained
title opinions. As a result, title opinions have been obtained on a significant portion of our properties.

As is customary in the oil and natural gas industry, we initially conduct only a cursory review of the title to our
properties on which we do not have proved reserves. Prior to the commencement of drilling operations on those
properties, we conduct a thorough title examination and perform curative work with respect to significant defects. To
the extent title opinions or other investigations reflect title defects on those properties, we are typically responsible for
curing any title defects at our expense. We generally will not commence drilling operations on a property until we
have cured any material title defects on such property.

We believe that we have satisfactory title to all of our material assets. Although title to these properties is subject to
encumbrances in some cases, such as customary interests generally retained in connection with the acquisition of real
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property, customary royalty interests and contract terms and restrictions, liens under operating agreements, liens
related to environmental liabilities associated with historical operations, liens for current taxes and other burdens,
easements, restrictions and minor encumbrances customary in the oil and natural gas industry, we believe that none of
these liens, restrictions, easements, burdens and encumbrances will materially detract from the value of these
properties or from our interest in these properties or will materially interfere with our use in the operation of our
business. In addition, we believe that we have obtained sufficient rights-of-way grants and permits from public
authorities and private parties for us to operate our business in all material respects as described in this document.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Although we may, from time to time, be involved in litigation and claims arising out of our operations in the normal
course of business, we are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings. In addition, we are not aware of any
legal or governmental proceedings against us, or contemplated to be brought against us, under the various
environmental protection statutes to which we are subject.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
PART II

ITEM S. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S UNITS, RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our units, which were first offered and sold to the public on January 12, 2007, are listed on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market under the symbol LGCY . As of March 14, 2008, there were 29,670,887 units outstanding, held by
approximately 73 holders of record, including units held by our Founding Investors.

The following table presents the high and low sales prices for our units during the periods indicated (as reported on
the NASDAQ Global Select Market) and the amount of the quarterly cash distributions we paid on each of our units
with respect to such periods.

Cash

Price Ranges(a) Distribution
2007 High Low per Unit
First Quarter $ 28.19 $ 18.90 $ 0.4100(b)
Second Quarter $ 30.42 $ 25.14 $ 0.4200(¢)
Third Quarter $ 27.61 $ 18.50 $ 0.4300(d)
Fourth Quarter $ 2457 $ 20.15 $ 0.4500

Cash Distribution

2006 per Unit
Period from March 15, 2006 to March 31, 2006 $ 0.0774(e)(f)
Second Quarter $ 0.4100(g)
Third Quarter $ 0.4100(g)
Fourth Quarter $ 0.4100(h)

(a) Our units were not traded on an established public trading market prior to our initial public offering in January
2007.

(b)
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We paid total cash distributions to our general partner with respect to its approximately 0.1% general partner
interest of $7,508.

We paid total cash distributions to our general partner with respect to its approximately 0.1% general partner
interest of $7,691.

We paid total cash distributions to our general partner with respect to its approximately 0.1% general partner
interest of $7,874.

Reflects a pro-rated distribution for the period from March 15, 2006 through March 31, 2006.

We paid total cash distributions to our general partner with respect to its approximately 0.1% general partner
interest of $1,417.

We paid total cash distributions to our general partner with respect to its approximately 0.1% general partner
interest of $7,508.

The record date of our distribution attributable to the fourth quarter of 2006 was January 10, 2007 and preceeded

the closing of our initial public offering. Accordingly, unitholders of units issued in our initial public offering
were not entitled to receive a distribution attributable to the fourth quarter of 2006 on such units.
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Distribution Policy

We must distribute all of our cash on hand at the end of each quarter, less reserves established by our general partner.
We refer to this cash as available cash, which is defined in our partnership agreement. We currently pay quarterly cash
distributions of $0.45 per unit.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In October 2005, in connection with the formation of Legacy Reserves LP, we issued to Moriah Resources, Ltd. the
99.9% limited partner interest in Legacy Reserves LP for $999. The issuance was exempt from registration under
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act because the transaction did not involve a public offering.

In connection with our formation transactions on March 15, 2006, we issued units to our Founding Investors
contributing oil and natural gas properties and related assets to us. The issuances of the units described below was
exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act because the issuances did not involve a public
offering. The following table summarizes the issuance of our units in the formation transactions:

Units

Moriah Group:

Moriah Properties, Ltd. 7,334,070
DAB Resources, Ltd. 859,703
Brothers Group:

Brothers Production Properties, Ltd. 4,968,945
Brothers Production Company , Inc. 264,306
Brothers Operating Company, Inc. 52,861
J&W McGraw Properties, Ltd. 914,246
MBN Properties LP 3,162,438
H2K Holdings, Ltd. 83,499

On March 15, 2006, we issued an aggregate of 52,616 restricted units to certain members of management pursuant to
the Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan. The issuances of these units were exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 701.

On March 15, 2006, we issued 5,000,000 units in a private offering for an aggregate consideration of $85 million
before the initial purchaser s discount, placement agent s fees and expenses to qualified institutional investors and
accredited investors in transactions exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. We paid
Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc., who acted as placement agent and initial purchaser in this transaction,
$5.95 million in initial purchaser s discount and placement agent s fees.

On May 1, 2006, we issued 8,750 units in the aggregate to certain of the directors of our general partner pursuant to
the Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan. The issuances of these units were exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 701.

On May 5, 2006, we issued 12,500 restricted units to an employee pursuant to the Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term

Incentive Plan. The issuance of these units was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act
pursuant to Rule 701.
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On June 29, 2006, and November 10, 2006 we issued 138,000 units and 8,415 units, respectively, to Henry Holding
LP as partial consideration for our acquisition of oil and natural gas producing properties located in Lea County New
Mexico and contract operating rights for total consideration of approximately $13.4 million cash and 146,415 units.
The issuances of these units were exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act because the
issuances did not involve a public offering.

On July 17, 2006, we issued options to purchase 251,000 units, at an exercise price of $17.00, to employees and
officers pursuant to the Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan. The issuance of these options were exempt
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 701.
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On September 15, 2006, we issued options to purchase 10,000 units, at an exercise price of $17.00, to an employee
pursuant to the Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan. The issuance of these options was exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 701.

On October 10, 2006 we issued options to purchase 12,000 units, at an exercise price of $17.25, to employees
pursuant to the Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan. The issuance of these options was exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 701.

On January 11, 2007 we issued options to purchase 9,000 units, at an exercise price of $19.00, to employees pursuant
to the Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan. The issuance of these options was exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 701.

On January 30, 2007, we issued 95,000 units in consideration for our acquisition of producing oil and natural gas
properties in West Texas. The issuance of these units was exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the
Securities Act because the issuance did not involve a public offering.

On April 16, 2007, we issued 611,247 units in consideration for our acquisition of producing oil and natural gas
properties in the East Binger (Marachand) Unit in Caddo County, Oklahoma. The issuance of these units was exempt
from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act because the issuance did not involve a public offering.

On November 8, 2007, we issued 3,642,369 units in a private offering for an aggregate consideration of $74.7 million
before placement agent s fees and expenses to qualified institutional investors and accredited investors in transactions
exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. We paid RBC Capital Markets $1.5 million in
placement agent s fees.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We were formed in October 2005. Upon completion of our private equity offering and as a result of the related
formation transactions on March 15, 2006, we acquired oil and natural gas properties and business operations from the
Founding Investors and the three charitable foundations. Although we were the surviving entity for legal purposes, the
formation transactions were treated as a purchase with Moriah Properties, Ltd. and its affiliates, or the Moriah Group,
being considered, on a combined basis, as the acquiring entity for accounting purposes. As a result, Legacy Reserves
LP (formerly the Moriah Group) applied the purchase method of accounting to the separable assets, and the liabilities
of the oil and natural gas properties acquired from the Founding Investors (other than the Moriah Group) and the
charitable foundations. Our historical financial statements for periods prior to March 15, 2006 only reflect the
accounts of the Moriah Group.

The following table shows selected historical financial and operating data for Legacy Reserves LP for the periods and
as of the dates indicated. Through March 15, 2006, Legacy s accompanying consolidated historical financial
statements reflect the accounts of the Moriah Group, which includes the accounts of Moriah Resources, Inc. as the
general partner of Moriah Properties, Ltd., Moriah Properties, Ltd., the oil and natural gas interests individually
owned by Dale A. and Rita Brown until October 1, 2005 when those interests were transferred to DAB Resources,
Ltd., DAB Resources, Ltd. and the accounts of MBN Properties LP. The Moriah Group consolidated MBN Properties
LP as a variable interest entity with the portion of net income (loss) applicable to the other owners equity interests
being eliminated through a non-controlling interest adjustment. Although MBN Management, LLC, the general
partner of MBN Properties LP, is also a variable interest entity, it was accounted for by the Moriah Group using the
equity method. From March 15, 2006, Legacy s historical financial statements also include the results of operations of
the oil and natural gas properties acquired from the other Founding Investors and the charitable foundations.
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The selected historical financial data of the Moriah Group for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 are
derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Legacy.

The operating results of the PITCO properties have been included from their September 14, 2005 acquisition date. The
operating results of the Farmer Field, South Justis and Kinder Morgan acquisition properties have been included from
their acquisition dates in June and July 2006. The operating results of the Binger, Ameristate, TSF, Raven
Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC and Summit acquisition properties have been included from their acquisition dates.
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You should read the following selected financial data in conjunction with Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Legacy s financial statements and related notes included elsewhere
in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005(a) 2006(b) 2007(c)
(In thousands, except per unit data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues:

Oil sales $ 7,919 $ 10,998 $ 18,225 $ 45,351 $ 83,301

Natural gas liquids sales 7,502

Natural gas sales 3,697 3,945 7,318 14,446 21,433

Total Revenues 11,616 14,943 25,543 59,797 112,236

Expenses:

Oil and natural gas production 3,496 4,345 6,376 15,938 27,129

Production and other taxes 661 928 1,636 3,746 7,889

General and administrative 543 731 1,354 3,691 8,392

Dry hole costs 1,465 1

Depletion, depreciation, amortization and

accretion 766 883 2,291 18,395 28,415

Impairment of long-lived assets 471 16,113 3,204

Loss on disposal of assets 20 42 527

Total expenses 7,402 6,888 11,677 57,925 75,556

Operating income 4,214 8,055 13,866 1,872 36,680

Other income (expense):

Interest income 56 419 185 130 321

Interest expense (94) (213) (1,584) (6,645) (7,118)
Gain on sale of partnership investment 1,292

Equity in income (loss) of partnerships 311 183 (495) (318) 77

Realized gain (loss) on oil, NGL and natural

gas swaps (623) (74) (3,531) (262) 211

Unrealized gain (loss) on oil, NGL and natural

gas swaps natural gas swaps 340 (559) (2,628) 9,551 (85,367)
Other 3 92 45 29 (129)
Income (loss) before non-controlling interest

and income taxes 4,207 9,195 5,858 4,357 (55,325)
Non-controlling interest 1

Income before income taxes 4,207 9,195 5,859 4,357 (55,325)
Income taxes (337)
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 4,207 $ 9,195 $ 5,859 $ 4,357 $ (55,662)
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Earnings (loss) from continuing operations

per unit

Basic and fully diluted $ 044 $ 097 $ 0.62 $ 026 $ (2.13)

Distributions per unit(d) $ $ $ $ 08974 $ 1.67
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Years Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005(a) 2006(b) 2007(c)
(In thousands)

Cash Flow Data:
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 6,799 $ 8,586 $ 14,409 $ 29,590 $ 57,147
Net cash provided by (used in) investing

activities $ 8475 $ 1,023 $ (68,965) $ (62,505) $ (196,505)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities $ 1,717 $ (8958) $ 55,742 $ 32,022 $ 147,900
Capital expenditures $ 4,047 $ 3,325 $ 66,915 $ 56,150 $ 196,702

Historical
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005(a) 2006(b) 2007(c)
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents $ 117 $ 769 $ 1955 $ 1,062 $ 9,604
Other current assets 7,826 5,799 6,316 17,159 23,954

Oil and natural gas properties, net of
accumulated depletion, depreciation and

amortization 9,954 12,224 77,172 247,580 440,180
Other assets 651 1,499 7,567 7,840
Total assets $ 18,548 $ 18,792 $ 86,942 $ 273,368 $ 481,578
Current liabilities $ 9,157 $ 4,898 $ 4,562 $ 10,834 $ 43,457
Long term debt 52,473 115,800 110,000
Other long-term liabilities 2,113 1,872 19,998 7,945 72,391
Unitholders equity 7,278 12,022 9,909 138,789 255,730
Total liabilities and unitholders equity $ 18,548 $ 18,792 $ 86,942 $ 273,368 $ 481,578

(a) Reflects purchase of the PITCO properties on September 14, 2005. Consequently, the operations of the PITCO
properties are only included for the period following the date of acquisition.

(b) Reflects Legacy s purchase of the oil and natural gas properties acquired in the March 15, 2006 formation
transactions and the South Justis, Farmer Field and Kinder Morgan acquisitions in June and July 2006.
Consequently, the operations of these acquired properties are only included for the period from the closing dates
of such acquisitions through December 31, 2006.

(c) Reflects Legacy s purchase of the oil and natural gas properties acquired in the Binger, Ameristate, TSF, Raven

Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC and Summit acquisitions as of the date of their acquisition. Consequently, the
operations of these acquired properties are only included for the period from the closing dates of such
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acquisitions through December 31, 2007.

(d) Amounts not presented for years prior to 2006 since they would not be meaningful.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Selected Historical Consolidated
Financial Data and the accompanying financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in annual report on
Form 10-K. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our future plans, estimates,
beliefs and expected performance. The forward-looking statements are dependent upon events, risks and uncertainties
that may be outside our control. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in these
forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to,
market prices for natural gas, production volumes, estimates of proved reserves, capital expenditures, economic and
competitive conditions, regulatory changes and other uncertainties, as well as those factors discussed below and
elsewhere in this report, particularly in Risk Factors and Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,
all of which are difficult to predict. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events
discussed may not occur.

Overview

We were formed in October 2005. Upon completion of our private equity offering and as a result of the related
formation transactions on March 15, 2006, we acquired oil and natural gas properties and business operations from

our Founding Investors and three charitable foundations ( Legacy Formation ). Although we were the surviving entity
for legal purposes, the formation transactions are treated as a purchase with Moriah Properties, Ltd. and its affiliates,

or the Moriah Group, being considered, on a combined basis, as the acquiring entity for accounting purposes.
Therefore, the accounts reflected in our historical financial statements prior to March 15, 2006 are those of the Moriah
Group.

The Moriah Group owned and operated oil and natural gas producing properties located primarily in the Permian

Basin of West Texas and southeast New Mexico. The Moriah Group included the accounts of Moriah Resources, Inc.

as the general partner of Moriah Properties, Ltd., the oil and natural gas interests individually owned by Dale A. and
Rita Brown until October 1, 2005 when those interests were transferred to DAB Resources, Ltd., DAB Resources,

Ltd. and the accounts of MBN Properties LP. The Moriah Group consolidated MBN Properties LP as a variable

interest entity with the portion of net income (loss) applicable to the other owners equity interests eliminated through a
non-controlling interest adjustment. Although MBN Management, LLC, the general partner of MBN Properties LP, is
also a variable interest entity, it was accounted for by the Moriah Group using the equity method.

Because of our rapid growth through acquisitions and development of properties, historical results of operations and
period-to-period comparisons of these results and certain financial data may not be meaningful or indicative of future
results. Since the PITCO properties were not acquired until September 14, 2005, the results of operations only include
the operating results for the PITCO properties from September 14, 2005. The operating results of the properties
acquired in the formation transactions are included in the results of operations from March 15, 2006, the operating
results of the South Justis Unit properties and the Farmer Field properties acquired on June 29, 2006 have been
included from July 1, 2006 and the operating results of the Kinder Morgan properties have been included from
August 1, 2006. The operating results of the properties acquired in the Binger Acquisition are included in the results
of operations from April 16, 2007, the operating results of the Ameristate Acquisition have been included from May 1,
2007, the operating results of the TSF Acquisition have been included from May 25, 2007, the operating results of the
Raven Shenandoah Acquisition have been included from May 31, 2007, the operating results of the Raven OBO
Acquisition have been included from August 3, 2007 and the operating results from the TOC and Summit
Acquisitions have been included from October 1, 2007.
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Acquisitions have been financed with a combination of proceeds from bank borrowings and issuances of units and
cash flow from operations. Post-acquisition activities are focused on evaluating and exploiting the acquired properties
and evaluating potential add-on acquisitions.

Our revenues, cash flow from operations and future growth depend substantially on factors beyond our control, such
as economic, political and regulatory developments and competition from other sources of energy. Oil and natural gas
prices historically have been volatile and may fluctuate widely in the future.
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Sustained periods of low prices for oil or natural gas could materially and adversely affect our financial position, our
results of operations, the quantities of oil and natural gas reserves that we can economically produce and our access to
capital.

Higher oil and natural gas prices have led to higher demand for drilling rigs, operating personnel and field supplies
and services, and have caused increases in the costs of those goods and services. To date, the higher sales prices have
more than offset the higher drilling and operating costs. Given the inherent volatility of oil and natural gas prices,
which are influenced by many factors beyond our control, we plan our activities and budget based on sales price
assumptions which historically have been lower than the average sales prices received. We focus our efforts on
increasing oil and natural gas production and reserves while controlling costs at a level that is appropriate for
long-term operations.

We face the challenge of natural production declines. As initial reservoir pressures are depleted, oil and natural gas
production from a given well or formation decreases. We attempt to overcome this natural decline by utilizing
multiple types of recovery techniques such as secondary (water-flood) and tertiary (CO,) recovery methods to
re-pressure the reservoir and recover additional oil, drilling to find additional reserves, re-stimulating existing wells
and acquiring more reserves than we produce. Our future growth will depend on our ability to continue to add reserves
in excess of production. We will maintain our focus on adding reserves through acquisitions and development
projects. Our ability to add reserves through acquisitions and development projects is dependent upon many factors
including our ability to raise capital, obtain regulatory approvals and contract drilling rigs and personnel.

Our revenues are highly sensitive to changes in oil and natural gas prices and to levels of production. As set forth
under Cash Flow from Operations below, we have hedged a significant portion of our expected production, which
allows us to mitigate, but not eliminate, oil and natural gas price risk. We continuously conduct financial sensitivity
analyses to assess the effect of changes in pricing and production. These analyses allow us to determine how changes
in oil and natural gas prices will affect our ability to execute our capital investment programs and to meet future
financial obligations. Further, the financial analyses allow us to monitor any impact such changes in oil and natural
gas prices may have on the value of our proved reserves and their impact, if any, on any re-determination to our
borrowing base under our credit facility.

Legacy does not specifically designate derivative instruments as cash flow hedges; therefore, the mark-to-market
adjustment reflecting the unrealized gain or loss associated with these instruments is recorded in current earnings.

Production and Operating Costs Reporting

We strive to increase our production levels to maximize our revenue and cash available for distribution. Additionally,
we continuously monitor our operations to ensure that we are incurring operating costs at the optimal level.
Accordingly, we continuously monitor our production and operating costs per well to determine if any wells or
properties should be shut in, re-completed or sold.

Such costs include, but are not limited to, the cost of electricity to lift produced fluids, chemicals to treat wells, field
personnel to monitor the wells, well repair expenses to restore production, well work-over expenses intended to
increase production and ad valorem taxes. We incur and separately report severance taxes paid to the states and
counties in which our properties are located. These taxes are reported as production taxes and are a percentage of oil
and natural gas revenue. Ad valorem taxes are a percentage of property valuation. Gathering and transportation costs
are generally borne by the purchasers of our oil and natural gas as the price paid for our products reflects these costs.
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Operating Data

The following table sets forth selected financial and operating data of Legacy for the periods indicated.

Revenues:

Oil sales

Natural gas liquid sales
Natural gas sales

Total revenue

Expenses:

Oil and natural gas production
Production and other taxes

General and administrative

Depletion, depreciation, amortization and accretion
Realized swap settlements:

Realized loss on oil swaps

Realized loss on natural gas liquid swaps
Realized gain on natural gas swaps
Production:

Oil barrels

Natural gas liquids  gallons

Natural gas Mcf

Total (MBoe)

Average daily production (Boe/d)
Average sales price per unit:

Oil price per barrel

Natural gas liquid price per gallon
Natural gas price per Mcf

Combined (per Boe)

Average sales price per unit (including realized swap settlements):

Oil price per barrel

Natural gas liquid price per gallon
Natural gas price per Mcf
Combined (per Boe)

NYMEX oil index prices per barrel:
Beginning of Period

End of Period

NYMEX gas index prices per Mcf:
Beginning of Period

End of Period

Average unit costs per Boe:
Production costs, excluding production and other taxes
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Year Ended December 31,
2006(b)
(In thousands, except per unit data)

2005(a)

$ 18,225

7,318
$ 25,543
6,376
1,636

1,354
2,291

&L LA L L

(3,531)

&L L L

354
1,027
525
1,438
51.48

7.13
48.65

&L LH LB L

41.51(d)

7.13
41.93(d)

&L LA LB L

43.45
61.04

&L &L

6.15
11.25

&L &L

$ 12.14

$

& L A LA

&L PH P
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& &

©“ &

45,351
14,446
59,797
15,938
3,746
3,691
18,395

(6,667)
6,405
749
2,200
1,116
3,058
60.55

6.57
53.58

51.65(e)

9.48
53.35(e)

61.04
61.05

11.25
6.30

14.28

2007(c)

$ 83,301
7,502
21,433

$ 112,236

27,129
7,889
8,392

28,415

& L LA LA

(3,627)
(619)
4,457

“@LH PH P

1,179
5,295
3,052
1,814
4,970

70.65
1.42
7.02

61.87

& L A LA

67.58
1.30
8.48

61.99

& L LA LA

61.05
95.98

©~L &~

6.30
7.48

“L &~

$ 1496
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Production and other taxes $ 3.12 $ 3.36 $ 4.35
General and administrative $ 2.58 $ 3.31 $ 4.63
Depletion, depreciation, amortization and accretion $ 4.36 $ 1648 $ 15.66

(a) Reflects the production and operating results of the PITCO properties from their acquisition on September 14,
2005.
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(b) Reflects the production and operating results of the oil and natural gas properties acquired in the March 15, 2006
formation transactions and the South Justis, Farmer Field and Kinder Morgan Acquisitions from the closing dates
of such acquisitions through December 31, 2006.

(c) Reflects the production and operating results of the oil and natural gas properties acquired in the Binger,
Ameristate, TSF, Raven Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC and Summit Acquisitions from the closing dates of such
acquisitions through December 31, 2007.

(d) Includes the effects of approximately $2.0 million of derivative premiums for the year ended December 31, 2005
to cancel and reset 2006 oil swaps from $51.31 to $59.38 per Bbl and approximately $0.8 million of premiums
paid on July 22, 2005 for an option to enter into a $55.00 per Bbl oil swap related to the PITCO Acquisition that
was not exercised.

(e) Includes the effect of approximately $4.0 million of derivative premiums to cancel and reset 2007 oil swaps from
$60.00 to $65.82 per barrel for 372,000 barrels and for 2008 oil swaps from $60.50 to $66.44 per barrel for
348,000 barrels, which reflected the prevailing oil swap market at the time of the reset.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2006

Legacy s revenues from the sale of oil were $83.3 million and $45.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. Legacy s revenues from the sale of NGL s were $7.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2007. Legacy had no revenues from NGL sales for the year ended December 31, 2006. Legacy s revenues from the
sale of natural gas were $21.4 million and $14.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The $37.9 million increase in oil revenues reflects an increase in oil production of 430 MBbls (57%) due
primarily to Legacy s purchase of the oil and natural gas properties acquired in the Binger, Ameristate, TSF, Raven
Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC and Summit Acquisitions while the realized price increased $10.10 per Bbl. The

$7.5 million increase in NGL revenues is due to Legacy s purchase of oil and natural gas properties acquired in the
Binger, Ameristate, Raven Shenandoah, Raven OBO and TOC Acquisitions. The $7.0 million increase in natural gas
revenues reflects an increase in natural gas production of approximately 852 MMcf (39%) due primarily to Legacy s
purchase of oil and natural gas properties in the Binger, Ameristate, TSF, Raven Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC and
Summit Acquisitions while the realized price per Mcf increased $0.45 per Mcf.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, Legacy recorded $85.2 million of net losses on oil and natural gas swaps
comprised of realized gains of $0.2 million from net cash settlements of oil, NGL and natural gas swap contracts and
net unrealized losses of $85.4 million. Legacy had unrealized net losses from its oil swaps because the fixed price of
its oil swap contracts were below the NYMEX index prices at December 31, 2007. As a point of reference, the
NYMEX price for light sweet crude oil for the near-month close at December 31, 2007 was $95.98 per Bbl, a price
which is greater than the average contract prices of Legacy s outstanding oil swap contracts. Legacy had unrealized net
losses from its NGL swaps because the fixed price of its NGL swap contracts were below the NYMEX index prices at
December 31, 2007. Legacy had unrealized net losses from its natural gas swaps because the fixed prices of its natural
gas swap contracts were below the NYMEX index prices at December 31, 2007. As a point of reference, the NYMEX
price for natural gas for the near-month close at December 31, 2007 was $7.48 per MMbtu, a price which is greater
than the average contract prices of Legacy s outstanding natural gas swap contracts. For the year ended December 31,
2006, Legacy recorded $2.3 million of net losses on oil swaps comprised of a realized loss of $6.7 million from net
cash settlements of oil swap contracts and a net unrealized gain of $4.3 million. For the year ended December 31,
2006, Legacy recorded $11.6 million of net gains on gas swaps comprised of a realized gain of $6.4 million from net
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cash settlements of gas swap contracts and a net unrealized gain of $5.2 million. Unrealized gains and losses represent
a current period mark-to-market adjustment for commodity derivatives which will be settled in future periods.

Legacy s oil and natural gas production expenses, excluding production and other taxes, increased to $27.1 million
($14.96 per Boe) for the year ended December 31, 2007, from $15.9 million ($14.28 per Boe) for the year ended
December 31, 2006. Production expenses increased primarily because of (i) $2.9 million related to the Binger
Acquisition, (ii) $3.4 million related to the Ameristate, TSF, Raven Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC
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and Summit Acquisitions and (iii) increased production and increased cost of services and certain operating costs that
are directly related to higher commodity prices, particularly the cost of electricity, which powers artificial lift
equipment and pumps involved in the production of oil.

Legacy s production and other taxes were $7.9 million and $3.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. Production and other taxes increased primarily because of (i) approximately $1.0 million of taxes
related to the Binger Acquisition, (ii) $1.0 million of taxes related to the Ameristate, TSF, Raven Shenandoah, Raven
OBO, TOC and Summit Acquisitions and (iii) higher commodity prices in the 2007 period.

Legacy s general and administrative expenses were $8.4 million and $3.7 million for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. General and administrative expenses increased approximately $4.7 million between
periods primarily due to (i) increased employee costs related to business expansion, (ii) $1.4 million of costs incurred
in connection with awards granted under the LTIP due to a $1.1 million non-cash expense related to the change in
estimated fair value of the unit-based compensation liability related to unit options, unit grants, phantom unit grants
and unit appreciation rights and $0.3 million of cash payments to employees exercising unit options and

(iii) approximately $0.5 million of costs incurred in connection with the preparation of the 2006 federal income tax
return and related form K-1 s.

Legacy s depletion, depreciation, amortization and accretion expense, or DD&A, was $28.4 million and $18.4 million
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, reflecting primarily (i) $6.3 million of DD&A related
to the Binger, Ameristate, TSF, Raven Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC and Summit Acquisitions, (ii) $1.1 million to
the Legacy Formation and (iii) $1.6 million related to the South Justis, Farmer Field, and Kinder Morgan
Acquisitions.

Impairment expense was $3.2 million and $16.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. In 2007 Legacy recognized impairment expense in 43 separate producing fields, due primarily to
performance decline in properties within these fields. In 2006 Legacy recognized impairment expense in 41 separate
producing fields, due primarily to the decline in oil and natural gas prices from the dates at which the purchase prices
for the PITCO acquisition and the Legacy Formation were allocated among the purchased properties. As a point of
reference, the NYMEX closing price for oil was $61.05 per Bbl at December 31, 2006, as compared to $66.63 per Bbl
on March 31, 2006 at the time of the Legacy Formation and $66.24 per Bbl on September 30, 2005 at the time of the
PITCO acquisition. As a point of reference, the NYMEX closing price for natural gas was $6.30 per MMbtu at
December 31, 2006, as compared to $7.21 per MMbtu on March 31, 2006 at the time of the Legacy Formation and
$13.92 per MMbtu on September 30, 2005 at the time of the PITCO acquisition.

Legacy recorded interest income of $320,968 for the year ended December 31, 2007 and $129,712 for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The increase of $191,256 is a result of higher average cash balances during the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Interest expense was $7.1 million and $6.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
reflecting higher average borrowings during the year ended December 31, 2007 and a mark-to-market adjustment
related to interest rate swaps of approximately $1.5 million.

Legacy recorded equity in income of partnership of $77,144 for the year ended December 31, 2007 and a loss of

$317,788 for the year ended December 31, 2006. In 2007, Legacy recorded equity in income of partnership related to

its non-controlling interest in Binger Operations LP ( BOL ). This income is primarily derived from BOL s less than 1%
interest in the Binger Unit. In 2006, Legacy recorded equity in loss of partnership related to its investment in MBN
Management, LL.C, which was formed in July, 2005. Legacy did not acquire any interest in MBN Management, LLC

as part of the Legacy Formation. Accordingly, such losses will not be incurred in the future.
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Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

Legacy s revenues from the sale of oil were $45.4 million and $18.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Legacy s revenues from the sale of natural gas were $14.4 million and $7.3 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The $27.2 million increase in oil revenues reflects an increase
in oil production of 395 MBbls (112%) due primarily to Legacy s purchase of the oil and natural gas
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properties acquired in the March 15, 2006 formation transactions, or the Legacy Formation, the PITCO acquisition
and the South Justis, Farmer Field and Kinder Morgan acquisitions while the realized price excluding the effects of
hedging increased $9.07 per Bbl. The $7.1 million increase in natural gas revenues reflects an increase in natural gas
production of approximately 1,173 MMcf (114%) due primarily to both the Legacy Formation and the PITCO
acquisition while the realized price per Mcf excluding the effects of hedging decreased $0.56 per Mcf. Since the
Legacy Formation occurred on March 15, 2006, Legacy s revenues and related volumes for the year ended
December 31, 2006 do not reflect the 50 MBbls and 119 MMcf produced by the oil and natural gas properties
acquired in that transaction from January 1, 2006 to March 15, 2006. For the year ended December 31, 2006, Legacy
recorded $9.3 million of net gains on oil and natural gas swaps comprised of realized losses of $0.3 million from net
cash settlements of oil and natural gas swap contracts and net unrealized gains of $9.6 million. Legacy had unrealized
net gains from its oil swaps because the fixed price of its oil swap contracts were above the NYMEX index prices at
December 31, 2006. As a point of reference, the NYMEX price for light sweet crude oil for the near-month close at
December 31, 2006 was $61.05 per Bbl, a price which is less than the average contract prices of Legacy s outstanding
oil swap contracts. Legacy had unrealized net gains from its natural gas swaps because the fixed prices of its natural
gas swap contracts were above the NYMEX index prices at December 31, 2006. As a point of reference, the NYMEX
price for natural gas for the near-month close at December 31, 2006 was $6.30 per MMbtu, a price which is less than
the average contract prices of Legacy s outstanding natural gas swap contracts. For the year ended December 31, 2005,
Legacy recorded $6.2 million of net losses on oil swaps comprised of a realized loss of $3.5 million from net cash
settlements of oil swap contracts and a net unrealized loss of $2.6 million. There were no settlements on natural gas
swaps during the year ended December 31, 2005. Unrealized gains and losses represent a current period
mark-to-market adjustment for commodity derivatives which will be settled in future periods.

Legacy s oil and natural gas production expenses, excluding production and other taxes, increased to $15.9 million
($14.28 per Boe) for the year ended December 31, 2006, from $6.4 ($12.14 per Boe) million for the year ended
December 31, 2005. Production expenses increased primarily because of (i) $3.6 million related to the PITCO
acquisition, (ii) $3.7 million related to the Legacy Formation, (iii) $2.2 million related to the South Justis, Farmer
Field and Kinder Morgan acquisitions and (iv) increased production and increased cost of services and certain
operating costs that are directly related to higher commodity prices, particularly the cost of electricity, which powers
artificial lift equipment and pumps involved in the production of oil.

Legacy s production and other taxes were $3.7 million and $1.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. Production and other taxes increased primarily because of (i) approximately $0.8 million of taxes
related to the PITCO Acquisition, (ii) $0.9 million of taxes related to the Legacy Formation and (iii) higher
commodity prices in the 2006 period.

Legacy s general and administrative expenses were $3.7 million and $1.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. General and administrative expenses increased approximately $2.1 million between
periods primarily due to increased employee costs related to business expansion and approximately $250,000 of costs
incurred in connection with our private equity offering.

Legacy s depletion, depreciation, amortization and accretion expense, or DD&A, was $18.4 million and $2.3 million
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, reflecting primarily $7.3 million of DD&A related to
the PITCO acquisition, $6.8 million to the Legacy Formation and $1.0 million to recent acquisitions.

Impairment expense was $16.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 involving 41 separate producing fields,
due primarily to the decline in oil and natural gas prices from the dates at which the purchase prices for the PITCO
acquisition and the Legacy Formation were allocated among the purchased properties. As a point of reference, the
NYMEX closing price for oil was $61.05 per Bbl at December 31, 2006, as compared to $66.63 per Bbl on March 31,
2006 at the time of the Legacy Formation and $66.24 per Bbl on September 30, 2005 at the time of the PITCO
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acquisition. As a point of reference, the NYMEX closing price for natural gas was $6.30 per MMbtu at December 31,
2006, as compared to $7.21 per MMbtu on March 31, 2006 at the time of the Legacy Formation and $13.92 per
MMbtu on September 30, 2005 at the time of the PITCO acquisition.
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Legacy recorded interest income of $129,712 for the year ended December 31, 2006 and $185,308 for the years ended
December 31, 2005. The decrease of $55,596 is a result of lower average cash balances for the current period.

Interest expense was $6.6 million and $1.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
reflecting higher average borrowings and higher average interest rates in the current period. Legacy borrowed
$67.5 million to fund the PITCO acquisition and $65.8 million under its new revolving credit facility at the close of
the Legacy Formation.

Legacy recorded equity in loss of partnership of $317,788 and $495,295 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. In both periods, Legacy recorded equity in loss of partnership related to its investment in MBN
Management, LL.C, which was formed in July, 2005. Legacy did not acquire any interest in MBN Management, LLC
as part of the Legacy Formation. Accordingly, such losses will not be incurred in the future.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

Legacy s primary sources of capital and liquidity have been proceeds from bank borrowings, cash flow from
operations, its private offering in March 2006, its initial public offering in January 2007 and its private offering in
November 2007. To date, Legacy s primary use of capital has been for the acquisition and development of oil and
natural gas properties. During the year ended December 31, 2006, Legacy cancelled (before their original settlement
date) a portion of its NYMEX oil swaps covering periods in 2007 and 2008 and realized a loss of $4.0 million. As a
result, Legacy s working capital was reduced by $4.0 million. During the year ended December 31, 2005, Legacy
cancelled (before their original settlement date) a portion of its NYMEX WTI oil swaps covering periods in 2006 and
realized a loss of $2.0 million. Legacy, through its ownership of MBN Properties LP, paid a $0.8 million premium for
an option to enter into a $55.00 per Bbl oil swap related to the PITCO acquisition that was not exercised. As a result,
Legacy s working capital was reduced by $2.8 million at December 31, 2005.

As we pursue growth, we continually monitor the capital resources available to us to meet our future financial
obligations and planned capital expenditures. Our future success in growing reserves and production will be highly
dependent on capital resources available to us and our success in acquiring and exploiting additional reserves. We
actively review acquisition opportunities on an ongoing basis. If we were to make significant additional acquisitions
for cash, we would need to borrow additional amounts under our revolving credit facility, if available, or obtain
additional debt or equity financing. Our credit facility imposes certain restrictions on our ability to obtain additional
debt financing. Based upon current oil and natural gas price expectations for the year ending December 31, 2008, we
anticipate that our cash on hand, cash flow from operations and available borrowing capacity under our credit facility
will provide us sufficient working capital to meet our planned capital expenditures of $18.2 million and planned cash
distributions of $53.5 million, which reflects the $13.4 million of distributions paid in the first quarter of 2008 and
$13.4 million of planned distributions during each of the second, third and fourth quarters of 2008. Please read
Financing Activities Our Revolving Credit Facility.

Cash Flow from Operations

Legacy s net cash provided by operating activities was $57.1 million and $29.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, with the 2007 period being favorably impacted by higher sales volumes
and realized oil and natural gas prices, partially offset by higher expenses.

Legacy s net cash provided by operating activities was $29.6 million and $14.4 million for the years ended

December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, with the 2006 period being favorably impacted by higher sales volumes
and realized oil and natural gas prices, partially offset by higher expenses.
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Our cash flow from operations is subject to many variables, the most significant of which is the volatility of oil and
natural gas prices. Oil and natural gas prices are determined primarily by prevailing market conditions, which are
dependent on regional and worldwide economic activity, weather and other factors beyond our control. Our future
cash flow from operations will depend on our ability to maintain and increase production through acquisitions and
development projects, as well as the prices of oil and natural gas.
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We enter into oil, NGL and natural gas derivatives to reduce the impact of oil, NGL and natural gas price volatility on
our operations. Currently, we use swaps to offset price volatility on NYMEX oil, NGL and natural gas prices, which
do not include the additional net discount that we typically realize in the Permian Basin. At December 31, 2007, we
had in place oil, NGL and natural gas swaps covering significant portions of our estimated 2008 through 2012 oil,
NGL and natural gas production. As of March 11, 2008 we had derivatives covering approximately 73% of our
expected oil, NGL and natural gas production for 2008. As of March 11, 2008 we had also entered into derivative
contracts covering approximately 54% of our expected oil, NGL and natural gas production for 2009 through 2012
from existing total proved reserves.

By removing the price volatility on our cash flows from a significant portion of our oil, NGL and natural gas
production, we have mitigated, but not eliminated, the potential effects of changing prices on our cash flow from
operations for those periods. While mitigating negative effects of falling commodity prices, these derivative contracts
also limit the benefits we would receive from increases in commodity prices. It is our policy to enter into derivative
contracts only with counterparties that are major, creditworthy financial institutions deemed by management as
competent and competitive market makers.

The following tables summarize, for the periods indicated, our oil and natural gas swaps as of March 11, 2008 in place
through December 31, 2012. We use swaps as our mechanism for hedging commodity prices whereby we pay the
counterparty floating prices and receive fixed prices from the counterparty, which serves to hedge the floating prices
we are paid by purchasers of our oil and natural gas. These transactions are settled based upon the NYMEX price of
oil at Cushing, Oklahoma, and NYMEX price of natural gas at Henry Hub on the average of the three final trading
days of the month and settlement occurs on the fifth day of the production month.

Annual Average Price

Calendar Year Volumes (Bbls) Price per Bbl Range per Bbl
2008 1,135,549 $ 70.39 $ 62.25 - $87.65
2009 1,052,413 $ 68.70 $ 61.05 - $87.65
2010 980,645 $ 67.44 $ 60.15 - $87.65
2011 755,040 $ 72.22 $ 67.33 - $87.65
2012 633,600 $ 72.33 $ 67.72 - $87.65

Annual Average Price

Volumes Price per
Calendar Year (MMBtu) MMBtu Range per MMBtu
2008 2,725,170 $ 8.09 $ 6.85 - $10.58
2009 2,524,670 $ 7.96 $ 6.85 - $10.18
2010 2,245,955 $ 7.71 $ 6.85-$9.73
2011 956,824 $ 7.30 $ 6.85-$7.57
2012 651,636 $ 7.25 $ 6.85-$7.57

In July 2006, we entered into basis swaps to receive floating NYMEX prices less a fixed basis differential and pay
prices based on the floating Waha index, a natural gas hub in West Texas. The prices that we receive for our natural
gas sales follow Waha more closely than NYMEX. The basis swaps thereby provide a better match between our
natural gas sales and the settlement payments on our natural gas swaps. The following table summarizes, for the
periods indicated, our NYMEX basis swaps as of March 11, 2008 in place through December 31, 2010.
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Annual
Volumes (MMBtu)

1,422,000
1,320,000
1,200,000

Basis
Range per Mcf
$ (0.84)
$ (0.68)
$ (0.57)

On March 30, 2007, we entered into natural gas liquids swaps to hedge the impact of volatility in the spot prices of
natural gas liquids. On September 7, 2007, we entered into additional natural gas liquids swaps. These swaps hedge
the spot prices for ethane, propane, iso-butane, normal butane and natural gasoline tracked on the Mont
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Belvieu, Non-Tet OPIS exchange. The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, our Mont Belvieu,
Non-Tet OPIS natural gas liquids swaps as of March 11, 2008 in place through December 31, 2009.

Annual Average Price
Price per
Calendar Year Volumes (Gal) Gal Range per Gal
2008 6,458,004 $ 1.27 $ 0.66 - $1.62
2009 2,265,480 $ 1.15 $ 1.15

On March 13, 2008, we entered into additional oil and natural gas swap contracts as described in Note 18 Subsequent
Events.

Investing Activities Acquisitions and Capital Expenditures

Legacy s cash capital expenditures were $196.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The total includes
$28.5 million, $5.2 million, $14.8 million, $13.5 million, $20.9 million, $62.1 million and $13.5 million for the
purchase of producing oil and natural gas properties in the Binger, Ameristate, TSF, Raven Shenandoah, Raven OBO,
TOC and Summit Acquisitions, respectively. The balance was expended in smaller individual acquisitions and
development projects.

Legacy s capital expenditures were $55.9 million and $66.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The total for the year ended December 31, 2006 includes $7.7 million paid to three charitable
foundations in the Legacy formation for oil and natural gas properties, $8.9 million, $5.6 million and $17.2 million for
the purchase of producing oil and natural gas properties in the South Justis Unit from Henry Holding, LP, the Farmer
Field from Larron Oil Corporation and various oil and natural gas properties from Kinder Morgan, respectively, and
$7.0 million of capitalized operating rights related to the South Justis Unit. The balance was invested in development
projects.

We currently anticipate that our drilling budget, which predominantly consists of drilling, re-completion and
re-fracture stimulation projects will be $18.2 million for the year ending December 31, 2008. Our borrowing capacity
under our revolving credit facility is $84.4 million as of March 14, 2008. The amount and timing of our capital
expenditures is largely discretionary and within our control, with the exception of certain projects managed by other
operators. If oil and natural gas prices decline below levels we deem acceptable, we may defer a portion of our
planned capital expenditures until later periods. Accordingly, we routinely monitor and adjust our capital expenditures
in response to changes in oil and natural gas prices, drilling and acquisition costs, industry conditions and internally
generated cash flow. Matters outside our control that could affect the timing of our capital expenditures include
obtaining required permits and approvals in a timely manner and the availability of rigs and labor crews. Based upon
current oil and natural gas price expectations for the year ending December 31, 2008, we anticipate that we will have
sufficient sources of working capital, including our cash flow from operations and available borrowing capacity under
our credit facility, to meet our cash obligations including our planned capital expenditures of $18.2 million and
planned cash distributions of $53.5 million during the year ending December 31, 2008. However, future cash flows
are subject to a number of variables, including the level of oil and natural gas production and prices. There can be no
assurance that operations and other capital resources will provide cash in sufficient amounts to maintain planned
levels of capital expenditures.

Financing Activities
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Our Revolving Credit Facility

At the closing of our private equity offering on March 15, 2006, we entered into a four-year, $300 million revolving
credit facility with BNP Paribas as administrative agent. Borrowings under the facility are due on March 15, 2010. On
October 24, 2007, we entered into the third amendment to the revolving credit facility with BNP Paribas, which
increased the maximum credit amount to $500 million from $300 million. Our obligations under the credit facility are
secured by mortgages on more than 80% of our oil and gas properties as well as a pledge of all of our ownership
interests in our operating subsidiaries. The amount available for borrowing at any one time is limited to the borrowing
base, which was initially set at $130 million and increased to $225 million in the third amendment dated October 24,
2007. The borrowing base is subject to semi-annual re-determinations on April 1 and October 1 of each year.
Additionally, either Legacy or the lenders may, once during each calendar year, elect to re-
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determine the borrowing base between scheduled re-determinations. We also have the right, once during each calendar
year, to re-determine the borrowing base upon the proposed acquisition of certain oil and gas properties where the
purchase price is greater than 10% of the borrowing base. Any increase in the borrowing base requires the consent of
all the lenders and any decrease in the borrowing base must be approved by the lenders holding 662/3% of the
outstanding aggregate principal amounts of the loans or participation interests in letters of credit issued under the
credit facility. If the required lenders do not agree on an increase or decrease, then the borrowing base will be the
highest borrowing base acceptable to the lenders holding 662/3% of the outstanding aggregate principal amounts of
the loans or participation interests in letters of credit issued under the credit facility so long as it does not increase the
borrowing base then in effect. Outstanding borrowings in excess of the borrowing base must be prepaid, and, if

mortgaged properties represent less than 80% of total value of oil and gas properties evaluated in the most recent
reserve report, we must pledge other oil and natural gas properties as additional collateral.

We may elect that borrowings be comprised entirely of alternate base rate (ABR) loans or Eurodollar loans. Interest
on the loans is determined as follows:

with respect to ABR loans, the alternate base rate equals the higher of the prime rate or the Federal funds
effective rate plus 0.50%, plus an applicable margin between 0% and 0.25%, or

with respect to any Eurodollar loans, the London inter-bank rate, or LIBOR, plus an applicable margin between
1.00% and 1.75% per annum.

Interest is generally payable quarterly for ABR loans and on the last day of the applicable interest period for any
Eurodollar loans.

Our revolving credit facility also contains various covenants that limit our ability to:
incur indebtedness;
enter into certain leases;
grant certain liens;
enter into certain swaps;
make certain loans, acquisitions, capital expenditures and investments;
make distributions other than from available cash;
merge, consolidate or allow any material change in the character of its business; or
engage in certain asset dispositions, including a sale of all or substantially all of our assets.

Our credit facility also contains covenants that, among other things, require us to maintain specified ratios or
conditions as follows:

consolidated net income plus interest expense, income taxes, depreciation, depletion, amortization and other
similar charges excluding unrealized gains and losses under SFAS No. 133, minus all non-cash income added
to consolidated net income, and giving pro forma effect to any acquisitions or capital expenditures, to interest
expense of not less than 2.5 to 1.0; and
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consolidated current assets, including the unused amount of the total commitments, to consolidated current
liabilities of not less than 1.0 to 1.0, excluding non-cash assets and liabilities under SFAS No. 133, which
includes the current portion of oil, natural gas and interest rate swaps.

If an event of default exists under our revolving credit facility, the lenders will be able to accelerate the maturity of the
credit agreement and exercise other rights and remedies. Each of the following would be an event of default:

failure to pay any principal when due or any reimbursement amount, interest, fees or other amount within
certain grace periods;

a representation or warranty is proven to be incorrect when made;
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failure to perform or otherwise comply with the covenants or conditions contained in the credit agreement or
other loan documents, subject, in certain instances, to certain grace periods;

default by us on the payment of any other indebtedness in excess of $1.0 million, or any event occurs that
permits or causes the acceleration of the indebtedness;

bankruptcy or insolvency events involving us or any of our subsidiaries;

the loan documents cease to be in full force and effect our failing to create a valid lien, except in limited
circumstances;

a change of control, which will occur upon (i) the acquisition by any person or group of persons of beneficial
ownership of more than 35% of the aggregate ordinary voting power of our equity securities, (ii) the first day
on which a majority of the members of the board of directors of our general partner are not continuing directors
(which is generally defined to mean members of our board of directors as of March 15, 2006 and persons who
are nominated for election or elected to our general partner s board of directors with the approval of a majority
of the continuing directors who were members of such board of directors at the time of such nomination or
election), (iii) the direct or indirect sale, transfer or other disposition in one or a series of related transactions of
all or substantially all of the properties or assets (including equity interests of subsidiaries) of us and our
subsidiaries to any person, (iv) the adoption of a plan related to our liquidation or dissolution or (v) Legacy
Reserves GP, LLC ceasing to be our sole general partner;

the entry of, and failure to pay, one or more adverse judgments in excess of $1.0 million or one or more
non-monetary judgments that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect and for which

enforcement proceedings are brought or that are not stayed pending appeal; and

specified ERISA events relating to our employee benefit plans that could reasonably be expected to result in
liabilities in excess of $1,000,000 in any year.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
None.
Contractual Obligations

A summary of our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007 is provided in the following table.

Obligations Due in Period

Contractual Obligations 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 Thereafter Total

Long-term debt(a) $ $ 110,000,000 $ $ $ 110,000,000
Interest on long-term debt(b) 7,150,000 8,599,589 15,749,589
Commodity derivatives(c) 26,182,579 38,279,240 17,240,613 569,068 82,271,500
Interest rate derivatives(c) 259,581 1,067,310 168,871 1,495,762
Management Compensation(d) 1,060,000 2,120,000 2,120,000 5,300,000
Office Lease 202,156 416,645 167,237 786,038
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Total contractual cash
obligations $ 34,854,316 $ 160,482,784 $ 19,696,721 $ 569,068 $ 215,602,389

(a) Represents amounts outstanding under our revolving credit facility as of December 31, 2007.
(b) Based upon our interest rate of 6.50% under our revolving credit facility as of December 31, 2007.

(c) Derivative obligations represent net liabilities for derivatives that were valued as of December 31, 2007, the
ultimate settlement of which are unknown because they are subject to continuing market risk. Please read
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk and Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for additional information
regarding our derivative obligations.
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(d) Does not include any liability associated with management compensation subsequent to the 2011-2012 period as
there is no estimated termination date of the employment agreements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon the consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Certain accounting policies involve judgments and uncertainties to such an extent that there is a reasonable
likelihood that materially different amounts could have been reported under different conditions, or if different
assumptions had been used. Estimates and assumptions are evaluated on a regular basis. Legacy based its estimates on
historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions used in
preparation of the financial statements. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could materially affect our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Management considers an accounting estimate to be critical if:

it requires assumptions to be made that were uncertain at the time the estimate was made, and

changes in the estimate or different estimates that could have been selected could have a material impact on our
consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

Please read Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a detailed discussion of all significant
accounting policies that we employ and related estimates made by management.

Nature of Critical Estimate Item: Oil and Natural Gas Reserves  Our estimate of proved reserves is based on the
quantities of oil and gas which geological and engineering data demonstrate, with reasonable certainty, to be
recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. LaRoche
Petroleum Consultants, Ltd., prepares a reserve and economic evaluation of all our properties in accordance with SEC
guidelines on a lease, unit or well-by-well basis, depending on the availability of well-level production data. The
accuracy of our reserve estimates is a function of many factors including the following: the quality and quantity of
available data, the interpretation of that data, the accuracy of various mandated economic assumptions, and the
judgments of the individuals preparing the estimates. For example, we must estimate the amount and timing of future
operating costs, severance taxes, development costs, and workover costs, all of which may in fact vary considerably
from actual results. In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the economics of producing the
reserves may change and therefore the estimate of proved reserves also may change. Any significant variance in these
assumptions could materially affect the estimated quantity and value of our reserves. Despite the inherent imprecision
in these engineering estimates, our reserves are used throughout our financial statements. Reserves and their relation
to estimated future net cash flows impact our depletion and impairment calculations. As a result, adjustments to
depletion rates are made concurrently with changes to reserve estimates.

Assumptions/Approach Used: Units-of-production method to deplete our oil and natural gas properties The quantity
of reserves could significantly impact our depletion expense. Any reduction in proved reserves without a

corresponding reduction in capitalized costs will increase the depletion rate.

Effect if Different Assumptions Used: Units-of-production method to deplete our oil and natural gas properties A
10% increase or decrease in reserves would have decreased or increased, respectively, our depletion expense for the
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year ended December 31, 2007 by approximately 10%.

Nature of Critical Estimate Item: Asset Retirement Obligations We have certain obligations to remove tangible
equipment and restore land at the end of oil and gas production operations. Our removal and restoration obligations
are primarily associated with plugging and abandoning wells. We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ( SFAS ) No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations effective January 1, 2003. SFAS No. 143
significantly changed the method of accruing for costs an entity is legally obligated to incur related to the retirement
of fixed assets ( asset retirement obligations or ARO ). Primarily, SFAS No. 143 requires us to
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estimate asset retirement costs for all of our assets, adjust those costs for inflation to the forecast abandonment date,
discount that amount using a credit-adjusted-risk-free rate back to the date we acquired the asset or obligation to retire
the asset and record an ARO liability in that amount with a corresponding addition to our asset value. When new
obligations are incurred, i.e. a new well is drilled or acquired, we add a layer to the ARO liability. We then accrete the
liability layers quarterly using the applicable period-end effective credit-adjusted-risk-free rates for each layer. Should
either the estimated life or the estimated abandonment costs of a property change materially upon our quarterly
review, a new calculation is performed using the same methodology of taking the abandonment cost and inflating it
forward to its abandonment date and then discounting it back to the present using our credit-adjusted-risk-free rate.
The carrying value of the asset retirement obligation is adjusted to the newly calculated value, with a corresponding
offsetting adjustment to the asset retirement cost. Thus, abandonment costs will almost always approximate the
estimate. When well obligations are relieved by sale of the property or plugging and abandoning the well, the related
liability and asset costs are removed from our balance sheet.

Assumptions/Approach Used: Estimating the future asset removal costs is difficult and requires management to make
estimates and judgments because most of the removal obligations are many years in the future and contracts and
regulations often have vague descriptions of what constitutes removal. Asset removal technologies and costs are
constantly changing, as are regulatory, political, environmental, safety and public relations considerations. Inherent in
the estimate of the present value calculation of our AROs are numerous assumptions and judgments including the
ultimate settlement amounts, inflation factors, credit-adjusted-risk-free-rates, timing of settlement, and changes in the
legal, regulatory, environmental and political environments.

Effect if Different Assumptions Used: Since there are so many variables in estimating AROs, we attempt to limit the
impact of management s judgment on certain of these variables by developing a standard cost estimate based on
historical costs and industry quotes updated annually. Unless we expect a well s plugging to be significantly different
than a normal abandonment, we use this estimate. The resulting estimate, after application of a discount factor and
some significant calculations, could differ from actual results, despite our efforts to make an accurate estimate. We
engage independent engineering firms to evaluate our properties annually. We use the remaining estimated useful life
from the year-end reserve report by our independent reserve engineers in estimating when abandonment could be
expected for each property. On an annual basis we evaluate our latest estimates against actual abandonment costs
incurred. For the year ended December 31, 2007, actual abandonment costs materially exceeded our previous
estimates. As a result, we revised future estimated costs to reflect these higher actual costs. We expect to see our
calculations impacted significantly if interest rates continue to rise, as the credit-adjusted-risk-free rate is one of the
variables used on a quarterly basis.

Nature of Critical Estimate Item: Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities We periodically use derivative
financial instruments to achieve a more predictable cash flow from our oil, NGL and natural gas production and
interest expense by reducing our exposure to price fluctuations and interest rate changes. Currently, these transactions
are swaps whereby we exchange our floating price for our oil, NGL and natural gas for a fixed price and floating
interest rates for fixed rates with qualified and creditworthy counterparties. Our existing oil, NGL, natural gas and
interest rate swaps are with members of our lending group which enables us to avoid margin calls for out-of-the
money mark-to-market positions.

We do not specifically designate derivative instruments as cash flow hedges, even though they reduce our exposure to
changes in oil, NGL and natural gas prices and interest rate changes. Therefore, the mark-to-market of these
instruments is recorded in current earnings. While we are not internally preparing an estimate of the current market
value of these derivative instruments, we use market value statements from each of our counterparties as the basis for
these end-of-period mark-to-market adjustments. When we record a mark-to-market adjustment resulting in a loss in a
current period, these unrealized losses represent a current period mark-to-market adjustment for commodity
derivatives which will be settled in future period. As shown in the tables above, we have hedged a significant portion
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of our future production through 2012. Taking into account the mark-to-market liabilities and assets recorded as of
December 31, 2007, the future cash obligations table presented above shows the amounts which we would expect to
pay the counterparties over the time periods shown. As oil and gas prices rise and fall, our future cash obligations
related to these derivatives will rise and fall.
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Consolidation of Variable Interest Entity

FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 46 (revised December 2003) Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, addresses
how a business enterprise should evaluate whether it has a controlling financial interest in an entity through means
other than voting rights and, accordingly, should consolidate the entity. Through March 15, 2006 MBN Properties LP
was a variable interest entity since MBN Properties LP required additional subordinated financial support to
commence its activities. Legacy consolidated MBN Properties LP as a variable interest entity under FASB FIN 46R
because it was the primary beneficiary of MBN Properties LP under the expected losses test of paragraph 14 of

FIN 46R. While MBN Management, LLC is a variable interest entity, through March 15, 2006 it was accounted for by
Legacy utilizing the equity method since no entity was the primary beneficiary. Legacy s non-controlling income of
$538 for the year ended December 31, 2005 represents the loss of MBN Properties LP attributable to the other owners
equity interests. As we have acquired all of MBN Properties LP s properties in the formation transactions on March 15,
2006, after that date there are no remaining non-controlling interests related to MBN Properties LP. On April 16,
2007, as a part of the Binger Acquisition, Legacy acquired a 50% non-controlling interest in BOL. While BOL is a
variable interest entity, it was accounted for by Legacy utilizing the equity method since no entity was the primary
beneficiary.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements. Statement No. 157 defines fair value as used in numerous accounting pronouncements, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted account principles and expands disclosure related to the use
of fair value measures in financial statements. The Statement is to be effective for Legacy s financial statements issued
in 2008. Although we do not expect any impact to be significant the Statement will affect fair value measurements we
make after adoption.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. Statement No. 159
permits entities to choose to measure certain financial instruments and other items at fair value. The objective is to
improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting
provisions. Unrealized gains and losses on any items for which Legacy elects the fair value measurement option
would be reported in earnings. Statement No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.
Legacy does not expect to elect the fair value option for any eligible financial instruments and other items.

In April 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FIN 39-1, Amendment of FASB Interpretation No. 39 (FSP

FIN 39-1). FSP FIN 39-1 clarifies that a reporting entity that is party to a master netting arrangement can offset fair
value amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral (a receivable) or the obligation to return cash
collateral (a payable) against fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments that have been offset under the
same master netting arrangement. FSP FIN 39-1 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. Adoption of FSP FIN 39-1 is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations ( SFAS 141(R) ), which
replaces FASB Statement No. 141. SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer
recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. The Statement also establishes disclosure
requirements that will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination.

SFAS 141(R) is effective for acquisitions that occur in an entity s fiscal year that begins after December 15, 2008,
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which will be Legacy s fiscal year 2009. The impact, if any, will depend on the nature and size of business
combinations we consummate after the effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements
an amendments of ARB No. 51 (SFAS 160). SFAS 160 requires that accounting and reporting for minority interests
will be re-characterized as non-controlling interests and classified as a component of equity. SFAS 160 also
establishes reporting requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and
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distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the non-controlling owners. SFAS 160 applies to all
entities that prepare consolidated financial statements, except not-for-profit organizations, but will affect only those
entities that have an outstanding non-controlling interest in one or more subsidiaries or that deconsolidate a subsidiary.
This statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity s first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008, which
will be Legacy s fiscal year 2009. Based upon the December 31, 2007 balance sheet, the statement would have no
impact.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary objective of the following information is to provide forward-looking quantitative and qualitative
information about our potential exposure to market risks. The term market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from
adverse changes in oil and natural gas prices and interest rates. The disclosures are not meant to be precise indicators
of expected future losses, but rather indicators of reasonably possible losses. This forward-looking information
provides indicators of how we view and manage our ongoing market risk exposures. All of our market risk sensitive
instruments were entered into for purposes other than speculative trading.

Commodity Price Risk

Our major market risk exposure is in the pricing applicable to our oil and natural gas production. Realized pricing is
primarily driven by the spot market prices applicable to our natural gas production and the prevailing price for crude
oil. Pricing for oil and natural gas has been volatile and unpredictable for several years, and we expect this volatility to
continue in the future. The prices we receive for production depend on many factors outside of our control, such as the
strength of the global economy.

We periodically enter into and anticipate entering into hedging arrangements with respect to a portion of our projected
oil and natural gas production through various transactions that hedge the future prices received. These transactions
may include price swaps whereby we will receive a fixed price for our production and pay a variable market price to
the contract counterparty. Additionally, we may enter into put options, whereby we pay a premium in exchange for the
right to receive a fixed price at a future date. At the settlement date we receive the excess, if any, of the fixed floor
over the floating rate. These hedging activities are intended to support oil and natural gas prices at targeted levels and
to manage our exposure to oil and natural gas price fluctuations. We do not hold or issue derivative instruments for
speculative trading purposes.

As of December 31, 2007, the fair market value of Legacy s derivative positions was a net liability of $83.8 million.

As of December 31, 2006, the fair market value of Legacy s derivative positions was a net asset of $3.1 million. The

oil, NGL and natural gas swaps for 2008 through December 31, 2012 are tabulated in the table presented above under
Cash Flow from Operations.

If oil prices decline by $1.00 per Bbl, then the standardized measure of our combined proved reserves as of
December 31, 2007 would decline from $690.5 million to $681.4 million, or 1.3%. If natural gas prices decline by
$0.10 per Mcf, then the standardized measure of our combined proved reserves as of December 31, 2007 would
decline from $690.5 million to $688.6 million, or 0.3%.

Interest Rate Risks
At December 31, 2007, Legacy had debt outstanding of $110 million, which incurred interest at floating rates in
accordance with its revolving credit facility and the subordinated notes payable. The average annual interest rate

incurred by Legacy for year ended December 31, 2007 was 7.56%. A 1% increase in LIBOR on Legacy s outstanding
debt as of December 31, 2007 would result in an estimated $0.56 million increase in annual interest expense as
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Legacy has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge the volatility of interest rates through November of 2011 on
$54 million of floating rate debt to a weighted average fixed rate of 4.815%.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our Consolidated Financial Statements and supplementary financial data are included in this annual report on
Form 10-K beginning on page F-1.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act ) that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified
in the rules and forms of the SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our general partner s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.

Our management, with the participation of our general partner s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of

December 31, 2007. Based upon that evaluation and subject to the foregoing, our general partner s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to
accomplish their objectives.

Our general partner s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer do not expect that our disclosure controls or
our internal controls will prevent all error and all fraud. The design of a control system must reflect the fact that there
are resource constraints and the benefit of controls must be considered relative to their cost. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that we have detected all of
our control issues and all instances of fraud, if any. The design of any system of controls also is based partly on

certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in
achieving our stated goals under all potential future conditions.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our fiscal quarter
ended December 31, 2007, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Management s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Legacy s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Legacy s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of our general
partner s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of Legacy s financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. However, Legacy s management does not represent that our disclosure
controls and procedures or internal controls over financial reporting will prevent all error and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only a reasonable, not an absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the control system are met.

As of December 31, 2007, management assessed the effectiveness of Legacy s internal control over financial reporting
based on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in Internal Control Integrated
Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. This assessment
included design effectiveness and operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting as well as the
safeguarding of assets. Based on that assessment, management determined that Legacy maintained effective internal
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control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on those criteria.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of Legacy s registered public accounting firm regarding the
internal control over financial reporting. Management s report was not subject to attestation by Legacy s registered
public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit Legacy to
provide only management s report in this annual report.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We intend to include the information required by this Item 10 in Legacy s definitive proxy statement for its 2008
annual meeting of unitholders under the heading Election of Directors, = Corporate Governance and Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance, which information will be incorporated herein by reference; such proxy
statement will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after December 31, 2007.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

We intend to include information with respect to executive compensation in Legacy s definitive proxy statement for its
2008 annual meeting of unitholders under the heading Executive Compensation , which information will be
incorporated herein by reference; such proxy statement will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after
December 31, 2007.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
REIATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS

We intend to include information regarding Legacy s securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation

plans and ownership of Legacy s outstanding securities in Legacy s definitive proxy statement for its 2008 annual
meeting of unitholders under the headings Equity Compensation Plan Information and Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management, respectively, which information will be incorporated herein by reference; such
proxy statement will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after December 31, 2007.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

We intend to include the information regarding related party transactions in Legacy s definitive proxy statement for its
2008 annual meeting of unitholders under the headings Corporate Governance and Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions, which information will be incorporated herein by reference; such proxy statement will be filed with the
SEC not later than 120 days after December 31, 2007.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

We intend to include information regarding principal accountant fees and services in Legacy s definitive proxy
statement for its 2008 annual meeting of unitholders under the heading Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm, which information will be incorporated herein by reference; such proxy statement will be filed with the SEC not

later than 120 days after December 31, 2007.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) and (2) Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of Legacy Reserves LP are listed on the Index to Financial Statements to this
annual report on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1.

(a)(3) Exhibits

The following documents are filed as a part of this annual report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference:

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Legacy Reserves LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy

Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006,
Exhibit 3.1)

32 Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Legacy Reserves LP (Incorporated by
reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed
May 12, 2006, included as Appendix A to the Prospectus and including specimen unit certificate for
the units)

3.3 Amendment No. 1, dated December 27, 2007, to the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited
Partnership of Legacy Reserves LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s current report
on Form 8-K filed January 2, 2008, Exhibit 3.1)

34 Certificate of Formation of Legacy Reserves GP, LLC (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves
LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 3.3)
35 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Legacy Reserves GP, LLC

(Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 3.4)

4.1 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006 by and among Legacy Reserves LP,
Legacy Reserves GP, LLC and Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co. (Incorporated by reference to
Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006,
Exhibit 4.1)

42 Registration Rights Agreement dated June 29, 2006 between Henry Holdings LP and Legacy Reserves
LP and Legacy Reserves GP, LLC (the Henry Registration Rights Agreement ) (Incorporated by
reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed
September 5. 2006, Exhibit 4.2)

43 Registration Rights Agreement dated March 15, 2006 by and among Legacy Reserves LP, Legacy
Reserves GP, LLC and the other parties there to (the Founders Registration Rights Agreement )
(Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-134056) filed September 5, 2006, Exhibit 4.3)

4.4 Registration Rights Agreement dated April 16, 2007 by and among Nielson & Associates, Inc.,
Legacy Reserves GP, LLC and Legacy Reserves LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves
LP s quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed May 14, 2007, Exhibit 4.4)

Table of Contents 110



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

4.5 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of November 8, 2007 by and among Legacy Reserves LP and
the Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s current report on
Form 8-K filed November 9, 2007, Exhibit 4.1)

10.1 Credit Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006, among Legacy Reserves LP, the lenders from time to
time party thereto, and BNP Paribas, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Legacy
Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006,
Exhibit 10.1)

10.2 Contribution, Conveyance and Assumption Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006 by and among
Legacy Reserves LP, Legacy Reserves GP, LLC and the other parties thereto (Incorporated by
reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed
May 12, 2006, Exhibit 10.2)
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Exhibit

Number

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Description

Omnibus Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006 by and among Legacy Reserves LP, Legacy

Reserves GP, LLC and the other parties thereto (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 10.3)
Purchase/Placement Agreement dated as of March 6, 2006 by and among Legacy Reserves LP,

Legacy Reserves GP, LLC and the other parties there to (Incorporated by reference to Legacy
Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006,

Exhibit 10.4)

Legacy Reserves, LP Long-Term Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 10.5)

First Amendment of Legacy Reserves LP to Long Term Incentive Plan dated June 16, 2006
(Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File

No. 333-134056) filed October 5, 2006, Exhibit 10.17)

Amended and Restated Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan effective as of August 17,

2007 (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s current report on Form 8-K filed August 23,
2007, Exhibit 10.1)

Form of Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Unit Grant Agreement
(Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File

No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 10.6)

Form of Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan Unit Option Grant Agreement (Incorporated
by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed
September 5, 2006, Exhibit 10.7)

Form of Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan Unit Grant Agreement (Incorporated by
reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed
September 5, 2006, Exhibit 10.8)

Form of Legacy Reserves LP Long-Term Incentive Plan Grant of Phantom Units (Incorporated by
reference to Legacy Reserves LP s current report on Form 8-K filed February 4, 2008, Exhibit 10.1)
Employment Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006 between Cary D. Brown and Legacy Reserves
Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333- 134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 10.9)

Employment Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006 between Steven H. Pruett and Legacy Reserves
Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 10.10)

Employment Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006 between Kyle A. McGraw and Legacy Reserves
Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 10.11)

Employment Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006 between Paul T. Horne and Legacy Reserves
Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333- 134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 10.12)

Employment Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006 between William M. Morris and Legacy

Reserves Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 10.13)

First Amendment to Credit Agreement effective as of July 7, 2006 among Legacy Reserves LP, the
lenders from time to time party thereto, and BNP Paribas, as administrative agent (Incorporated by
reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed
September 5, 2006, Exhibit 10.14)
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10.18 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated May 3, 2007 among Legacy Reserves LP, the lenders
from time to time party thereto, and BNP Paribas, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference
to Legacy Reserves LP s current report on Form 8-K filed May 8, 2007, Exhibit 10.1)
10.19 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated October 24, 2007 among Legacy Reserves LP, the
lenders from time to time party thereto, and BNP Paribas, as administrative agent (Incorporated by
reference to Legacy Reserves LP s current report on Form 8-K filed October 29, 2007, Exhibit 10.1)
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Exhibit

Number

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

21.1

23.1%*

23.2%

31.1%

31.2%
32.1%

Description

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated June 29, 2006 between Kinder Morgan Production Company LP
and Legacy Reserves Operating LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed October 5, 2006, Exhibit 10.15)

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated June 13, 2006 between Henry Holding LP and Legacy Reserves
Operating LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-134056) filed September 5, 2006, Exhibit 10.16)

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated March 29, 2007, by and among Ameristate Exploration, LLC and
Legacy Reserves Operating LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s current report on
Form 8-K filed May 4, 2007, Exhibit 10.1)

Purchase, Sale and Contribution Agreement dated March 20, 2007, by and among Nielson &
Associates, Inc. and Legacy Reserves Operating LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves

LP s quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed May 14, 2007, Exhibit 10.1)

Purchase, Sale and Contribution Agreement dated March 20, 2007, by and among Terry S. Fields and
Legacy Reserves Operating LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s quarterly report on
Form 10-Q filed August 13, 2007, Exhibit 10.1)

Purchase, Sale and Contribution Agreement dated May 3, 2007, by and among Raven Resources, LLC
and Shenandoah Petroleum Corporation and Legacy Reserves Operating LP (Incorporated by

reference to Legacy Reserves LP s quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed August 13, 2007, Exhibit 10.2)
Purchase, Sale and Contribution Agreement dated July 11, 2007, by and among Raven Resources,

LLC and Legacy Reserves Operating LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s quarterly
report on Form 10-Q filed November 9, 2007, Exhibit 10.1)

Purchase, Sale and Contribution Agreement dated August 28, 2007, by and among Summit Petroleum
Management Corporation and Legacy Reserves Operating LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy
Reserves LP s quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed November 9, 2007, Exhibit 10.3)

Purchase, Sale and Contribution Agreement dated August 30, 2007, by and among The Operating
Company and Legacy Reserves Operating LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed November 9, 2007, Exhibit 10.4)

Unit Purchase Agreement dated as of November 7, 2007 by and among Legacy Reserves LP, Legacy
Reserves GP, LLC and the Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves
LP s current report on Form 8-K filed November 9, 2007, Exhibit 10.1)

List of subsidiaries of Legacy Reserves LP (Incorporated by reference to Legacy Reserves LP s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-134056) filed May 12, 2006, Exhibit 21.1)

Consent of BDO Seidman LLP

Consent of LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd.

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of CEO (under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of CFO (under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

Section 1350 Certifications (under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

*  Filed herewith

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this annual report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in
the City of Midland, State of Texas, on the 11th day of December, 2008.

LEGACY RESERVES LP

By: LEGACY RESERVES GP, LLC,
its general partner

By: /s/ Steven H. Pruett
Name: Steven H. Pruett

Title: President, Chief Financial Officer and
Secretary (Principal Financial Officer)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Legacy Reserves LP
Midland, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Legacy Reserves LP (formerly the Moriah Group,
as defined in Note 1 (a)), as of December 31, 2006 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
unitholders equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2007. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Partnership s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Partnership is not required to have, nor were
we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnership s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Legacy Reserves LP at December 31, 2006 and 2007 and the results of its operations and its cash

flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ BDO SEIDMAN, LLP

Houston, Texas
March 13, 2008
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LEGACY RESERVES LP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2007

2006 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,062 $ 9,604
Accounts receivable, net:

Oil and natural gas 7,600 19,025
Joint interest owners 4,345 4,253
Affiliated entities and other (Notes 3 and 6) 21 26
Fair value of derivatives (Note 9) 5,102 310
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 91 340
Total current assets 18,221 33,558

Oil and natural gas properties, at cost:
Proved oil and natural gas properties, at cost, using the successful efforts method of

accounting (Note 14): 289,519 512,396

Unproved properties 68 78

Accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization (42,007) (72,294)
247,580 440,180

Other property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of

$51 and $251, respectively 304 775
Operating rights, net of amortization of $295 and $865, respectively (Note 1(k)) 6,721 6,151
Other assets, net of amortization of $167 and $391, respectively 542 822
Investment in equity method investee (Note 5) 92

$ 273,368 $ 481,578

LIABILITIES AND UNITHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 2,932 $ 2,320
Accrued oil and natural gas liabilities 5,882 10,102
Fair value of derivatives (Note 9) 26,761
Asset retirement obligation (Note 11) 553 845
Other (Note 13) 1,467 3,429
Total current liabilities 10,834 43,457

Table of Contents 118



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

Long-term debt (Note 3) 115,800 110,000
Asset retirement obligation (Note 11) 5,939 15,075
Fair value of derivatives (Note 9) 2,006 57,316
Total liabilities 134,579 225,848

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Unitholders equity:
Limited partners equity 18,395,233 and 29,670,887 units issued and outstanding at

December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively 138,653 255,663
General partner s equity (approximately 0.1)% 136 67
Total unitholders equity 138,789 255,730
Total liabilities and unitholders equity $ 273,368 $ 481,578

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEGACY RESERVES LP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2006 AND 2007

Revenues:

Oil sales

Natural gas liquid sales
Natural gas sales

Total revenues

Expenses:

Oil and natural gas production

Production and other taxes
General and administrative

Depletion, depreciation, amortization and accretion
Impairment of long-lived assets

Loss on disposal of assets
Total expenses
Operating income

Other income (expense):
Interest income

Interest expense (Notes 3 and 9)
Equity in income (loss) of partnerships (Note 5)
Realized gain (loss) on oil, NGL and natural gas swaps

(Note 9)

Unrealized gain (loss) on oil, NGL and natural gas swaps

(Note 9)
Other

Income (loss) before non-controlling interest and income taxes

Non-controlling interest

Income (loss) before income taxes

Income taxes
Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) per unit
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basic and diluted (Note 12)

2005

2006

2007

(Dollars in thousands, except per unit data)

$ 18,225
7,318
25,543
6,376
1,636
1,354
2,291
20
11,677
13,866
185
(1,584)
(495)
(3,531)

(2,628)
45

5,858
1

5,859

$ 5,859

$ 0.62

$

45,351
14,446
59,797
15,938
3,746
3,691
18,395
16,113
42
57,925
1,872
130
(6,645)
(318)
(262)

9,551
29

4,357

4,357

4,357

0.26

$

83,301
7,502
21,433
112,236
27,129
7,889
8,392
28,415
3,204
527
75,556
36,680
321
(7,118)
77
211

(85,367)
(129)

(55,325)
(55,325)

(337)
(55,662)

(2.13)
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Weighted average number of units used in computing net

income (loss) per unit basic 9,488,921 16,567,287 26,155,439
diluted 9,488,921 16,568,879 26,155,439
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEGACY RESERVES LP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF UNITHOLDERS EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2006 AND 2007

Number of Limited General
Limited
Partner Units Partner Partner

(Dollars in thousands)

9,488,921 $ 12,010 $ 12

Capital contributions 144

Deemed capital distribution 155

Distributions to partners (8,263) (8)
Net income 5,853 6

Balance December 31, 2005 9,488,921 9,899 10

Capital contributions 19

Net distributions to owners (2,295) 2)
Deemed dividend to Moriah Group owners (3,874) (@Y)
Net proceeds from private equity offering 5,000,000 76,707 77

Redemption of Founding Investors units (4,400,000) (69,868) (70)
Units issued to MBN Properties LP in exchange for

the non-controlling interests share of oil and natural

gas properties 1,867,290 31,712 32

Units issued to the Brothers Group in exchange for

oil and natural gas properties and other assets 6,200,358 105,301 105

Units issued to H2K Holdings Ltd in exchange for
oil and natural gas properties 83,499 1,418 1
Dividend reimbursement of offering costs paid by

MBN Management LL.C

Units issued to Henry Holding LP in exchange for

oil and natural gas properties

Units issued to Legacy Board of Directors for

services

Compensation expense on unit options granted to

employees

Compensation expense on restricted unit awards

issued to employees
Distributions to unitholders, $0.8974 per unit

Net income

Balance, December 31, 2006
Net proceeds from initial public equity offering
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(1,199) (1
146,415 2,489
8,750 149
115
270
(16,542) (16)
4,352 4
18,395,233 138,653 136
6,900,000 121,554
3,642,369 73,073

Total
Unitholders

Equity

$ 12,022
144

155
(8,271)
5,859
9,909
19
(2,297)
(3,878)
76,784
(69,938)
31,744
105,406
1,419
(1,200)
2,489
149

115

270
(16,558)
4,356
138,789

121,554
73,073
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Net proceeds from private placement equity

offering
Units issued to Legacy Board of Directors for
services 7,000 149 149
Compensation expense on restricted unit awards
issued to employees 341 341
Vesting of Restricted Units 20,038
Units issued to Greg McCabe in exchange for oil
and natural gas properties 95,000 2,271 2,271
Units issued to Nielson & Associates, Inc. in
exchange for oil and natural gas properties 611,247 15,752 15,752
Reclass prior period compensation cost on unit
options granted to employees to adjust for
conversion to liability method as described in
FAS 123-R (115) (115)
Distributions to unitholders, $1.67 per unit (40,388) (34) (40,422)
Net loss (55,627) 35 (55,662)
Balance, December 31, 2007 29,670,887 $ 255,663 $ 67 $ 255,730

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEGACY RESERVES LP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2006 AND 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depletion, depreciation, amortization and accretion
Amortization of debt issuance costs

Impairment of long-lived assets

(Gain) loss on derivatives

Equity in (income) loss of partnership

Accrued interest on subordinated notes payable partners
Accrued interest on subordinated notes receivable partners
Amortization of unit-based compensation

Non-controlling interest

Loss on disposal of assets

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable, oil and natural gas
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, joint interest owners
Increase in accounts receivable, other

Increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase in accrued oil and natural gas liabilities

Increase in due to affiliates

Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in oil and natural gas properties
Investment in other equipment

Investment in operating rights

Investment in notes receivable

Collection of notes receivable

Net cash settlements on oil and

natural gas swaps

Investment in equity method investee

Net cash used in investing activities
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2005

5,859

2,291
94

6,159
495
818
(25)

(1
21

(3,412)
605
C2))
(88)
395
1,107
195
(13)

8,550
14,409
(66,910)

“4)

(900)
2,380

(3,531)

(68,965)

2006
(Dollars in thousands)

4,357

18,395
361

16,113

(9,289)
318

534
42
(5,796)
(4,481)
(458)
(565)
2,694
4,227
1,059
2,079
25,233
29,590
(55,907)
(243)
(7,017)
924

(262)

(62,505)

2007

(55,662)

28,415
224
3,204
86,652
7

166
527
(11,425)

92
®)

(250)

(611)
4,221
1,676
112,809
57,147

(196,031)
(671)

211
(14)

(196,505)
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Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term debt 56,573 121,800 183,000

Payments of long-term debt (6,100) (73,190) (188,800)

Payments of debt issuance costs (868) (293) (505)

Proceeds from subordinated notes payable partners 14,264

Proceeds from issuance of units, net 76,784 194,627

Redemption of Founding Investors units (69,938)

Dividend reimbursement of offering costs paid by MBN Management

LLC (1,200)

Capital contributed by owner 144 19

Cash not acquired in Legacy formation transactions (3,104)

Distributions to unitholders (8,271) (18,856) (40,422)

Net cash provided by financing activities 55,742 32,022 147,900

Net increase(decrease)in cash and cash equivalents 1,186 (893) 8,542

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 769 1,955 1,062

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 1,955 $ 1,062 $ 9,604
F-6
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LEGACY RESERVES LP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

2005

Non Cash Investing and Financing Activities:

Asset retirement obligation costs and liabilities $
Asset retirement obligations associated with property acquisitions $
Contributed offering costs $

Non-controlling interests share of net financing costs of MBN Properties LP
capitalized to oil and natural gas properties $

Units issued to MBN Properties LP in exchange for the non-controlling
interests share of oil and natural gas properties $

Units issued to Brothers Group in exchange for:
Oil and natural gas properties $

Other property and equipment $

Units issued to H2K Holdings Ltd. in exchange for oil and natural gas
properties $

Oil and natural gas hedge liabilities assumed from the Brothers Group and
H2K Holdings Ltd. $

Units issued in exchange for oil and natural gas properties $

Deemed dividend to Moriah Group owners
for accounts not acquired in Legacy formation transaction:

Accounts receivable, oil and natural gas $
Accounts receivable, joint interest owners $
Accounts receivable, other $
Other assets $
Accounts payable $
Accrued oil and natural gas liabilities $

Table of Contents

12

445

155

2006
(Dollars in thousands)

2,273

1,889

164

31,744

105,299

107

1,419

3,147

2,489

4,248
250
540
891

(214)

(1,521)

$
$
$

2007

6,296

3,034

18,023

126



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A
Due to affiliates $ $ (1,254) %

Other liabilities $ $ (2,166) $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LEGACY RESERVES LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Organization, Basis of Presentation and Description of Business

On March 15, 2006, Legacy Reserves LP ( LRLP, Legacy orthe Partnership ), as the successor entity to the Moriah
Group (defined below), completed a private equity offering in which it (1) issued 5,000,000 limited partnership units

at a gross price of $17.00 per unit, netting $76.8 million after initial purchaser s discount, placement agent s fee and
expenses, (2) acquired certain oil and natural gas properties (Note 4) and (3) redeemed 4.4 million units for

$69.9 million from certain of its Founding Investors. The Moriah Group has been treated as the acquiring entity in this
transaction, hereinafter referred to as the Legacy Formation. Because the combination of the businesses that

comprised the Moriah Group was a reorganization of entities under common control, the combination of these

businesses has been reflected retroactively at carryover basis in these consolidated financial statements. The accounts
presented for periods prior to the Legacy Formation transaction are those of the Moriah Group.

LRLP and its affiliated entities are referred to as Legacy in these financial statements.

LRLP, a Delaware limited partnership, was formed by its general partner, Legacy Reserves GP, LLC ( LRGPLLC ), on
October 26, 2005 to own and operate oil and natural gas properties. LRGPLLC is a Delaware limited liability
company formed on October 26, 2005, and it owns an approximately 0.1% general partner interest in LRLP.

Significant information regarding rights of the limited partners includes the following:
Right to receive distributions of available cash within 45 days after the end of each quarter.

No limited partner shall have any management power over our business and affairs; the general partner shall
conduct, direct and manage LRLP s activities.

The general partner may be removed if such removal is approved by the unitholders holding at least
662/3 percent of the outstanding units, including units held by LRLP s general partner and its affiliates.

Right to receive information reasonably required for tax reporting purposes within 90 days after the close of the
calendar year

In the event of a liquidation, all property and cash in excess of that required to discharge all liabilities will be
distributed to the unitholders and LRLP s general partner in proportion to their capital account balances, as adjusted to
reflect any gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition of Legacy s assets in liquidation.

As used herein, the term Moriah Group refers to Moriah Resources, Inc. ( MRI ), Moriah Properties, Ltd. ( MPL ), the
oil and natural gas interests individually owned by Dale A. and Rita Brown and the accounts of MBN Properties LP

on a consolidated basis unless the context specifies otherwise. Prior to March 15, 2006, the accompanying financial
statements include the accounts of the Moriah Group. From March 15, 2006, the accompanying financial statements

also include the results of operations of the oil and natural gas properties acquired in the Legacy Formation

transaction. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. The Moriah Group
consolidated MBN Properties LP as a variable interest entity under FASB FIN 46R since the Moriah Group was the
primary beneficiary of MBN Properties LP. The partners, shareholders and owners of these entities have other
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investments, such as real estate, that are held either individually or through other legal entities that are not presented as
part of these financial statements. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting whereby revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred.

MRI was organized as a sub-chapter S corporation on September 28, 1992 under the laws of the State of Texas, and
serves as the 1% general partner to MPL. MPL was organized as a limited partnership on July 1, 1999 under the laws

of the State of Texas. Dale A. Brown, an individual, has owned oil and natural gas working interests since 1981.

F-8
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LEGACY RESERVES LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Dale A. Brown, who along with his son, Cary D. Brown, are the sole owners of MRI and MPL. The assets of Moriah
Properties New Mexico, Ltd. ( MNM ), a limited partnership organized under the laws of the State of Texas on
October 17, 2003, were assigned into MPL effective September 1, 2005, in order to streamline the business of the
limited partnerships with identical ownership and a shared general partner, MRI, and the accounts of MNM have been
reflected retroactively in the financial statements of MPL. Effective October 1, 2005, Dale and Rita Brown assigned
the selected oil and natural gas properties included in these consolidated financial statements to DAB Resources, Ltd.,
a Texas limited partnership they own.

On July 22, 2005, MPL advanced $1,649,132 which was recorded as paid in capital and subordinated notes receivable
to MBN Properties LP which utilized the capital to fund a deposit with The Prospective Investment and Trading
Company, Ltd. ( PITCO ) and its affiliates for the purchase of oil and natural gas properties described below. MPL also
advanced $654,099 to fund the expenses of MBN Management LLC, the general partner of MBN Properties LP. Of
this amount, $467 was for paid in capital and the balance of $653,632 was in a note receivable from MBN
Management LLC. MBN Properties LP, a Delaware limited partnership, and MBN Management LL.C, a Delaware
limited liability company, (collectively the MBN Group ) were formed to acquire and operate oil and natural gas
producing properties in partnership with Brothers Production Properties, Ltd., and certain third party investors. Cary
D. Brown, the Executive Vice President of MRI and its 50% owner, is the Chief Executive Officer and a Director of
MBN Management LL.C. On September 14, 2005, MBN Properties LP purchased oil and natural gas producing
properties located in the Permian Basin from PITCO and its affiliates for $66,151,723 (the PITCO Acquisition ),
subject to post-closing adjustments. While MBN Management LLC is a variable interest entity, the Moriah Group
accounted for its interest in that entity using the equity method since it is not the primary beneficiary of MBN
Management LLC under the expected losses test of paragraph 14 of FAS FIN 46R.

Legacy owns and operates oil and natural gas producing properties located primarily in the Permian Basin of West
Texas and southeast New Mexico. Legacy has acquired oil and natural gas producing properties and drilled leasehold.

(b) Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, Legacy considers all highly liquid debt instruments with
original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(c) Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Legacy routinely assesses the
financial strength of its customers. Bad debts are recorded based on an account-by-account review after all means of
collection have been exhausted and potential recovery is considered remote. Legacy does not have any
off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to its customers (see Note 10).

(d) Oil and Natural Gas Properties
Legacy accounts for oil and natural gas properties by the successful efforts method. Under this method of accounting,
costs relating to the acquisition of and development of proved areas are capitalized when incurred. The costs of

development wells are capitalized whether productive or non-productive. Leasehold acquisition costs are capitalized
when incurred. If proved reserves are found on an unproved property, leasehold cost is transferred to proved
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properties. Exploration dry holes are charged to expense when it is determined that no commercial reserves exist.
Other exploration costs, including personnel costs, geological and geophysical expenses and delay rentals for oil and
natural gas leases, are charged to expense when incurred. The costs of acquiring or constructing support equipment
and facilities used in oil and gas producing activities are capitalized. Production costs are charged to expense as
incurred and are those costs incurred to operate and maintain our wells and related equipment and facilities.
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LEGACY RESERVES LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Depreciation and depletion of producing oil and natural gas properties is recorded based on units of production.

FAS No. 19 requires that acquisition costs of proved properties be amortized on the basis of all proved reserves,
developed and undeveloped, and that capitalized development costs (wells and related equipment and facilities) be
amortized on the basis of proved developed reserves. As more fully described below, proved reserves are estimated
annually by the Legacy s independent petroleum engineer, LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd., and are subject to
future revisions based on availability of additional information. Legacy s in-house reservoir engineers prepare an
updated estimate of reserves each quarter. Depletion is calculated each quarter based upon the latest estimated
reserves data available. As discussed in Note 11, Legacy follows FAS No. 143. Under FAS No. 143, asset retirement
costs are recognized when the asset is placed in service, and are amortized over proved reserves using the units of
production method. Asset retirement costs are estimated by Legacy s engineers using existing regulatory requirements
and anticipated future inflation rates.

Upon sale or retirement of complete fields of depreciable or depletable property, the book value thereof, less proceeds
from sale or salvage value, is charged to income. On sale or retirement of an individual well the proceeds are credited
to accumulated depletion and depreciation.

Oil and natural gas properties are reviewed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate that their carrying
value may not be recoverable. Legacy assesses impairment of capitalized costs of proved oil and natural gas properties
by comparing net capitalized costs to estimated undiscounted future net cash flows using oil and natural gas prices as
of the last day of the statement period held constant. If net capitalized costs exceed estimated undiscounted future net
cash flows, the measurement of impairment is based on estimated fair value, which would consider estimated future
discounted cash flows. As of December 31, 2005, the estimated undiscounted future cash flows for Legacy s proved oil
and natural gas properties exceeded the net capitalized costs, and no impairment was required to be recognized. For
the year ended December 31, 2006, Legacy recognized $16.1 million of impairment expense on 41 separate producing
fields related primarily to the decline in natural gas and oil prices from the dates at which the purchase prices for the
PITCO acquisition and the formation transaction were allocated among the purchased properties. As of December 31,
2007, Legacy recognized $3.2 million of impairment expense on 43 separate producing fields related primarily to the
decline in performance on individual properties.

Unproven properties that are individually significant are assessed for impairment and if considered impaired are
charged to expense when such impairment is deemed to have occurred. Costs related to unproved mineral interests
that are individually insignificant are amortized over the shorter of the exploratory period or the lease/concession
holding period which is typically three years in the Permian Basin.

(e) Oil and Natural Gas Reserve Quantities

Legacy s estimate of proved reserves is based on the quantities of oil and natural gas that engineering and geological
analyses demonstrate, with reasonable certainty, to be recoverable from established reservoirs in the future under
current operating and economic parameters. LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd. prepares a reserve and economic
evaluation of all Legacy s properties on a well-by-well basis utilizing information provided to it by Legacy and
information available from state agencies that collect information reported to it by the operators of Legacy s properties.

Reserves and their relation to estimated future net cash flows impact Legacy s depletion and impairment calculations.
As a result, adjustments to depletion and impairment are made concurrently with changes to reserve estimates. Legacy
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prepares its reserve estimates, and the projected cash flows derived from these reserve estimates, in accordance with
SEC guidelines. The independent engineering firm described above adheres to the same guidelines when preparing
their reserve report. The accuracy of Legacy s reserve estimates is a function of many factors including the quality and
quantity of available data, the interpretation of that data, the accuracy of various mandated economic assumptions, and
the judgments of the individuals preparing the estimates.
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LEGACY RESERVES LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Legacy s proved reserve estimates are a function of many assumptions, all of which could deviate significantly from
actual results. As such, reserve estimates may materially vary from the ultimate quantities of oil, natural gas, and
natural gas liquids eventually recovered.

(f) Income Taxes
Legacy is structured as a limited partnership, which is a pass-through entity for United States income tax purposes.

In May 2006, the State of Texas enacted a new margin-based franchise tax law that replaced the existing franchise tax.
This new tax is commonly referred to as the Texas margin tax and is assessed at a 1% rate. Corporations, limited
partnerships, limited liability companies, limited liability partnerships and joint ventures are examples of the types of
entities that are subject to the new tax. The tax is considered an income tax and is determined by applying a tax rate to
a base that considers both revenues and expenses. The Texas margin tax becomes effective for franchise tax reports
due on or after January 1, 2008. This franchise tax report covers our taxable activities for the year ended

December 31, 2007.

Legacy recorded income tax expense of $337,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007 which consists primarily of
the Texas margin tax and federal income tax on a corporate subsidiary which employs full and part-time personnel
providing services to the Partnership. The Partnership s total effective tax rate differs from statutory rates for federal
and state purposes primarily due to being structured as a limited partnership, which is a pass-through entity for federal
income tax purposes.

Net income for financial statement purposes may differ significantly from taxable income reportable to unitholders as

a result of differences between the tax bases and financial reporting bases of assets and liabilities and the taxable
income allocation requirements under the partnership agreement. In addition, individual unitholders have different
investment bases depending upon the timing and price of acquisition of their common units, and each unitholder s tax
accounting, which is partially dependent upon the unitholder s tax position, differs from the accounting followed in the
consolidated financial statements. As a result, the aggregate difference in the basis of net assets for financial and tax
reporting purposes cannot be readily determined as the Partnership does not have access to information about each
unitholder s tax attributes in the Partnership. However, with respect to the Partnership, the difference between the
Partnership s net book basis and the Partnership s net tax basis is $189.2 million.

(g) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Legacy periodically uses derivative financial instruments to achieve a more predictable cash flow from its oil and
natural gas production by reducing its exposure to price fluctuations and interest rate changes. Legacy accounts for
these activities pursuant to FAS No. 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended.
This statement establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring that derivative instruments (including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be recorded at fair market value and included in the balance sheet
as assets or liabilities.

Legacy does not specifically designate derivative instruments as cash flow hedges, even though they reduce its

exposure to changes in oil and natural gas prices and interest rate changes. Therefore, the cash settlements and
mark-to-market of oil, NGL and natural gas derivatives are recorded in current earnings. Interest rate derivative effects
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are recorded in interest expense (see Note 9).
(h) Use of Estimates

Management of Legacy has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these consolidated financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results
could differ materially from those estimates. Estimates which are particularly significant to the
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LEGACY RESERVES LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

consolidated financial statements include estimates of oil and natural gas reserves, valuation of derivatives, future cash
flows from oil and natural gas properties, depreciation, depletion and amortization and asset retirement obligations.

(i) Revenue Recognition

Sales of crude oil, natural gas liquids and natural gas are recognized when the delivery to the purchaser has occurred
and title has been transferred. This occurs when oil or natural gas has been delivered to a pipeline or a tank lifting has
occurred. Crude oil is priced on the delivery date based upon prevailing prices published by purchasers with certain
adjustments related to oil quality and physical location. Virtually all of Legacy s natural gas contracts pricing
provisions are tied to a market index, with certain adjustments based on, among other factors, whether a well delivers
to a gathering or transmission line, quality of natural gas, and prevailing supply and demand conditions, so that the
price of the natural gas fluctuates to remain competitive with other available natural gas supplies. These market
indices are determined on a monthly basis. As a result, Legacy s revenues from the sale of oil and natural gas will
suffer if market prices decline and benefit if they increase. Legacy believes that the pricing provisions of its oil and
natural gas contracts are customary in the industry.

Legacy currently uses the net-back method of accounting for transportation arrangements of its natural gas sales.
Legacy sells natural gas at the wellhead and collects a price and recognizes revenues based on the wellhead sales price
since transportation costs downstream of the wellhead are incurred by its purchasers and reflected in the wellhead
price. Legacy s contracts with respect to the sale of its natural gas produced, with one immaterial exception, provide
Legacy with a net price payment. That is, Legacy is paid for its natural gas by its purchasers, Legacy receives a price
which is net of any costs incurred for treating, transportation, compression, etc. In accordance with the terms of
Legacy s contracts, the payment statements Legacy receives from its purchasers show a single net price without any
detail as to treating, transportation, compression, etc. Thus, Legacy s revenues are recorded at this single net price.

Natural gas imbalances occur when Legacy sells more or less than its entitled ownership percentage of total natural
gas production. Any amount received in excess of its share is treated as a liability. If Legacy receives less than its
entitled share the underproduction is recorded as a receivable. Legacy did not have any significant natural gas
imbalance positions as of December 31, 2005, 2006 or 2007.

Legacy is paid a monthly operating fee for each well it operates for outside owners. The fee covers monthly general
and administrative costs. As the operating fee is a reimbursement of costs incurred on behalf of third parties, the fee
has been netted against general and administrative expense.

() Investments

Undivided interests in oil and natural gas properties owned through joint ventures are consolidated on a proportionate
basis. Investments in entities where Legacy exercises significant influence, but not a controlling interest are accounted
for by the equity method. Under the equity method, Legacy s investments are stated at cost plus the equity in

undistributed earnings and losses after acquisition.

(k) Intangible assets
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Legacy has capitalized certain operating rights acquired in the acquisition of oil and gas properties (Note 4). The
operating rights, which have no residual value, are amortized over their estimated economic life of approximately
15 years beginning July 1, 2006. Amortization expense is included as an element of depletion, depreciation,
amortization and accretion expense. Impairment will be assessed on a quarterly basis or when there is a material
change in the remaining useful life. The expected amortization expense for 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is
$547,000, $537,000, $522,000, $510,000 and $502,000, respectively.
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() Environmental

Legacy is subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. These laws, which are
constantly changing, regulate the discharge of materials into the environment and may require Legacy to remove or
mitigate the environmental effects of the disposal or release of petroleum or chemical substances at various sites.
Environmental expenditures are expensed or capitalized depending on their future economic benefit. Expenditures that
relate to an existing condition caused by past operations and that have no future economic benefits are expensed.
Liabilities for expenditures of a non-capital nature are recorded when environmental assessment and/or remediation
are probable, and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities are generally undiscounted unless the timing
of cash payments are fixed and readily determinable.

(m) Earnings (Loss) Per Unit

Legacy computes its earnings (loss) per unit in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share, which requires
the presentation of basic and diluted earnings per unit on the face of the income statement. Basic earnings per unit
amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of units outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings
per unit also gives effect to dilutive unvested restricted units and unit options (calculated based upon the treasury
stock method).

Basic and diluted earnings per unit for the year ended December 31, 2005 were computed based on the

9,488,921 units issued to the Moriah Group on March 15, 2006 in exchange for oil and natural gas properties
contributed by it (including its indirect interest in oil and natural gas properties contributed by MBN Properties, LP) in
conjunction with the closing of the Legacy Formation on the same date.

(n) Redemption of Units
Units redeemed are recorded at cost.
(o) Segment Reporting

Legacy s management treats each new acquisition of oil and natural gas properties as a separate operating segment.
Legacy aggregates these operating segments into a single segment for reporting purposes.

(p) Unit-Based Compensation

Concurrent with the Formation Transaction on March 15, 2006, a Long-Term Incentive Plan ( LTIP ) for Legacy was
created and Legacy adopted SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment. Due to Legacy s history of cash settlements for
option exercises, Legacy accounts for unit options under the liability method of SFAS No. 123(R). This method
requires the Partnership to recognize the fair value of each unit option at the end of each period. Expense is recognized
as a change in the liability from period to period. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS 123(R), Legacy s issued units, as
reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2007 does not include 45,078 units related
to unvested restricted unit awards.

(q) Recently Issued Accounting pronouncements
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In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements. Statement No. 157 defines fair value as used in numerous accounting pronouncements, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted account principles and expands disclosure related to the use
of fair value measures in financial statements. The Statement is to be effective for Legacy s financial statements issued
in 2008. Although we do not expect any impact to be significant the Statement will affect fair value measurements we
make after adoption.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. Statement No. 159
permits entities to choose to measure certain financial instruments and other items at fair value. The objective is to
improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting
provisions. Unrealized gains and losses on any items for which Legacy elects the fair value measurement option
would be reported in earnings. Statement No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.
Legacy does not expect to elect the fair value option for any eligible financial instruments and other items.

In April 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FIN 39-1, Amendment of FASB Interpretation No. 39 (FSP
FIN 39-1). FSP FIN 39-1 clarifies that a reporting entity that is party to a master netting arrangement can offset fair
value amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral (a receivable) or the obligation to return cash
collateral (a payable) against fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments that have been offset under the
same master netting arrangement. FSP FIN 39-1 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. Adoption of FSP FIN 39-1 is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations ( SFAS 141(R) ), which
replaces FASB Statement No. 141. SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer

recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. The Statement also establishes disclosure
requirements that will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination.

SFAS 141(R) is effective for acquisitions that occur in an entity s fiscal year that begins after December 15, 2008,
which will be the Partnership s fiscal year 2009. The impact, if any, will depend on the nature and size of business
combinations we consummate after the effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements
an amendments of ARB No. 51 (SFAS 160). SFAS 160 requires that accounting and reporting for minority interests
will be re-characterized as non-controlling interests and classified as a component of equity. SFAS 160 also
establishes reporting requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the
interests of the parent and the interests of the non-controlling owners. SFAS 160 applies to all entities that prepare
consolidated financial statements, except not-for-profit organizations, but will affect only those entities that have an
outstanding non-controlling interest in one or more subsidiaries or that deconsolidate a subsidiary. This statement is
effective as of the beginning of an entity s first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008, which will be the
Partnership s fiscal year 2009. Based upon the December 31, 2007 balance sheet, the statement would have no impact.

(r) Prior Year Financial Statement Presentation

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation of balances as stated in
this annual report on Form 10-K.

(2) Fair Values of Financial Instruments
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The estimated fair values of Legacy s financial instruments closely approximate the carrying amounts as discussed
below:

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable and other current
liabilities. The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Notes receivable. The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the comparability of the interest rate to market
interest rates for instruments of similar terms and credit quality.
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Debt. The carrying amount of the revolving long-term debt approximates fair value because Legacy s current
borrowing rate does not materially differ from market rates for similar bank borrowings.

Commodity price derivatives. The fair market values of commodity derivative instruments are estimated based upon
the current market price of the respective commodities at the date of valuation. It represents the amount which Legacy
would be required to pay or able to receive, based upon the differential between a fixed and a variable commodity
price as specified in the hedge contracts.

Interest rate derivatives. The fair market values of interest rate derivative instruments are estimated based upon the
current market LIBOR rates for the respective notional amount at the date of valuation. It represents the difference
between the fixed rate as specified in the hedge contracts and the floating rate applicable to the notional amounts.

(3) Credit Facility

On September 13, 2005, the Moriah Group replaced its Credit Agreement with a new Senior Credit Facility (the New
Facility) with a new lending group that permitted borrowings in the lesser amount of (i) the borrowing base, or

(i1) $75 million. The borrowing base under the New Facility, initially set at $40 million, was subject to
re-determination every six months and was subject to adjustment based upon changes in the fair market value of the
Moriah Group s oil and natural gas assets. Interest on the New Facility was payable monthly and was charged in
accordance with the Moriah Group s selection of a LIBOR rate plus 1.5% to 2.0%, or prime rate up to prime rate plus
0.5%, dependent on the percentage of the borrowing base which was drawn. Borrowings under this New Facility were
due in September 2009. The New Facility contained certain loan covenants requiring minimum financial ratio
coverages, involving the current ratio and EBITDA to interest expense. On September 13, 2005, the Moriah Group
borrowed $22,123,000 from the new lending group to provide for general corporate purposes, to fund a $4.2 million
distribution to Cary Brown and Dale Brown and to advance additional subordinated notes receivable in the amount of
$17,598,000 to MBN Properties LP, which purchased oil and natural gas producing properties from PITCO. The
Moriah Group s interest rate at December 31, 2005 was 6.0%. The Moriah Group paid interest expense on this debt of
$220,638 for the year ended December 31, 2005 and $264,062 for the period from January 1, 2006 through March 15,
2006. At December 31, 2005, the Moriah Group was in compliance with all aspects of the Agreement. All amounts
outstanding under this agreement at March 15, 2006 were repaid in full on that date as part of the formation
transactions.

On September 13, 2005, MBN Properties LP entered into a Credit Agreement with a new Senior Credit Facility (the
MBN Facility) with a lending group that permitted borrowings in the lesser amount of (i) the borrowing base, or

(i1) $75 million. The borrowing base under the MBN Facility, initially set at $35 million, was subject to re-
determination every six months and was subject to adjustment based upon changes in the fair market value of the
MBN Properties LP s oil and natural gas assets. Interest on the MBN Facility was payable monthly and was charged in
accordance with MBN Properties LP s selection of a LIBOR rate plus 1.5% to 2.0%, or prime rate up to prime rate
plus 0.50%, dependent on the percentage of the borrowing base which was drawn. Borrowings under this MBN
Facility were due in September 2007. The MBN Facility contained certain loan covenants requiring minimum
financial ratio coverages, involving the current ratio and EBITDA to interest expense. On September 13, 2005, MBN
Properties LP borrowed $33,750,000 from the new lending group to purchase oil and natural gas producing properties
from PITCO. The MBN Properties LP s interest rate at December 31, 2005 was 6.33%. MBN Properties LP paid
interest expense of $431,085 on this debt for the period from inception to December 31, 2005 and $1,300,727 for the
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period from January 1, 2006 through March 15, 2006. At December 31, 2005, MBN Properties LP was in compliance
with all aspects of the Agreement. All amounts outstanding under this agreement at March 15, 2006 were repaid in
full on that date as part of the formation transactions.

As an integral part of the Legacy Formation, Legacy entered into a new credit agreement with a new senior credit
facility (the Legacy Facility ) with the same lending group that participated in the New Facility of the Moriah Group.

Legacy s oil and natural gas properties are pledged as collateral for any borrowings under the
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Legacy Facility. Borrowings under the Legacy Facility are due on March 15, 2010. The terms of the Legacy Facility
permits borrowings in the lesser amount of (i) the borrowing base, or (ii) $500 million. The borrowing base under the
Legacy Facility, which was initially set at $130 million, is re-determined every six months and will be adjusted based
upon changes in the fair market value of the Partnership s oil and natural gas assets. Interest on the Legacy Facility is
payable monthly and is charged in accordance with the Partnership s selection of a LIBOR rate plus 1.25% to 1.875%,
or prime rate up to prime rate plus 0.375%, dependent on the percentage of the borrowing base which is drawn. On
March 15, 2006, Legacy borrowed $65.8 million from the new lending group as part of the Legacy Formation. On
May 3, 2007, Legacy s bank group increased Legacy s borrowing base to $150 million as part of the semi-annual
re-determination. On October 24, 2007, the Legacy Facility was amended, increasing the borrowing base to

$225 million and the borrowing capacity to $500 million. Pursuant to this amendment, interest on debt outstanding is
charged based on Legacy s selection of a LIBOR rate plus 1.00% to 1.75%, or the alternate base rate which equals the
higher of the prime rate or the Federal funds effective rate plus 0.50%, plus an applicable margin between 0% and
0.25%.

On January 18, 2007, Legacy closed its initial public offering of 6,900,000 units representing limited partner interests
at an initial public offering price of $19.00 per unit. Net proceeds to the partnership after underwriting discounts and
estimated offering expenses were approximately $122 million, all of which was used to repay all indebtedness
outstanding under the Legacy Facility and for general partnership purposes.

As of December 31, 2007, Legacy had outstanding borrowings of $110 million at an interest rate of 6.50%. Thus,
Legacy had approximately $115 million of availability remaining. For the year ended December 31, 2007, Legacy
paid $5,090,148 of interest expense on the Legacy Facility. The Legacy Facility contains certain loan covenants
requiring minimum financial ratio coverages, involving the current ratio and EBITDA to interest expense. At
December 31, 2007, Legacy was in compliance with all aspects of the Legacy Facility.

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31, 2006 and 2007:
December 31,
2006 2007

Legacy facility-due March 2010 $ 115,800,000 $ 110,000,000

(4) Acquisitions
PITCO Acquisition

On September 14, 2005, MBN Properties LP purchased oil and natural gas producing properties located in the
Permian Basin from PITCO and its affiliates for $66,151,723 (the PITCO Acquisition ), subject to post-closing
adjustments of approximately $2.8 million. The all cash acquisition was funded from borrowings of $33,750,000
under MBN Properties LP s existing credit facility and from loans from MPL and the Brothers Group (see Note 3).
Including direct expenses associated with the PITCO acquisition, MBN Properties LP has recorded a purchase price of
approximately $63.9 million, all of which has been allocated to the oil and natural gas properties purchased. In
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addition, MBN Properties LP has recorded a $445,000 asset retirement obligation ( ARO ) and related ARO asset under
the guidelines of FAS 143. The results of operations from the properties acquired in the PITCO acquisition have been
included in Legacy s statements of operations beginning September 14, 2005.

Legacy Formation Acquisition

On March 15, 2006, LRLP completed a private equity offering in which it issued 5,000,000 limited partnership units
at a gross price of $17.00 per unit, netting $76.8 million after initial purchaser s discount, placement agent fees and
expenses. Simultaneous with the completion of this offering, Legacy purchased the oil and natural gas properties of
the Moriah Group, Brothers Group, H2K Holdings Ltd. and the Charitable Support Foundations, Inc. and its affiliates.
Legacy also purchased the oil and natural gas properties owned by MBN Properties, LP. In the case
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of the Moriah Group, the Brothers Group and H2K Holdings Ltd. those entities exchanged their oil and natural gas
properties for limited partnership units. The purchase of the oil and natural gas properties owned by the charitable
foundations was solely for cash of $7.7 million. The owners of the Moriah Group, the Brothers Group and H2K
Holdings Ltd. (the Founding Investors ) exchanged 4.4 million of their units for $69.9 million in cash. The Moriah
Group has been treated as the acquiring entity in the Legacy Formation. Accordingly, the accounts of the businesses
acquired from the Moriah Group have been reflected retroactively at carryover basis in the consolidated financial
statements, and the units issued to acquire them have been accounted for as a recapitalization. The net assets of the
other businesses acquired and the units issued in exchange for them have been reflected at fair value and included in
the statement of operations from the date of acquisition. With the exception of its assumption of liabilities associated
with the oil and natural gas swaps it acquired, the other depreciable assets of the Brothers Group (office furniture and
equipment and vehicles) and certain unamortized deferred financing costs of the Moriah Group, LRLP did not acquire
any other assets or liabilities of the Moriah Group, the Brothers Group, H2K Holdings Ltd. or the Charitable Support
Foundations, Inc. and its affiliates. The removal of the other assets and liabilities of the Moriah Group was reflected as
a deemed dividend in Legacy s December 31, 2006 consolidated statement of unitholders equity.

The following table sets forth the units issued in the Legacy Formation transaction:

Number of Units
MPL 7,334,070
DAB Resources, Ltd. 859,703
Moriah Group 8,193,773
Brothers Group 6,200,358
H2K Holdings Ltd. 83,499
MBN Properties LP 3,162,438
LRLP units 600,000
Total units issued at Legacy Formation 18,240,068

In addition to the 18,240,068 units issued at Legacy Formation, 52,616 restricted management units were issued to
employees of Legacy concurrent with, but not as a part of, the Legacy Formation (Note 13).

The following table sets forth the purchase price of the oil and natural gas properties purchased from the Brothers

Group, H2K Holdings Ltd. and three charitable foundations, which included the assumption of liabilities associated
with oil and natural gas swaps as of March 14, 2006:

Number of Units Purchase Price
at $17.00 per Unit of Assets Acquired

Brothers Group 6,200,358 $ 105,406,069
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H2K Holdings Ltd.
Cash paid to three charitable foundations

Total purchase price before liabilities assumed
Plus:

Oil and natural gas swap liabilities assumed
Asset retirement obligations incurred

Less:

Office furniture, equipment and vehicles acquired

Total purchase price allocated to oil and natural gas properties
acquired

F-17

83,499

1,419,483
7,682,854

114,508,406

3,147,152
1,467,241

(107,275)

119,015,524
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In addition to the 3,162,438 common units issued to MBN Properties LP as part of the Legacy Formation transaction,
LRLP paid $65.3 million in cash to MBN Properties LP to acquire that portion of the oil and natural gas properties of
MBN Properties LP it did not already own by virtue of the Moriah Group s ownership of a 46.22% limited partnership
interest in MBN Properties LP. In addition, LRLP paid $1,980,468 to MBN Management LLC to reimburse expenses
incurred by that entity in anticipation of the Legacy Formation. The following table sets forth the calculation of the
step-up of oil and natural gas property basis with respect to this interest acquired:

Number of Units Purchase Price of
at $17.00 per Unit Assets Acquired
Units issued to MBN Properties LP 3,162,438 $ 53,761,446
Cash paid to MBN Properties LP 65,300,000
Total purchase price before liabilities assumed 119,061,446
Plus:
Oil and natural gas swap liabilities assumed 2,539,625
ARO liabilities assumed 453,913
Less:
Net book value of other property and equipment on MBN Properties
LP at March 14, 2006 (39,056)
122,015,928
Less:
Net book value of oil and gas assets on MBN Properties LP at
March 14, 2006 (62,990,390)
Purchase price in excess of net book value of assets 59,025,538
Less:
Share already owned by Moriah via consolidation of MBN Properties
LP 46.22% (27,281,604)
Non-controlling interest share to record(a) 31,743,934
Plus:
Elimination of deferred financing costs related to non-controlling
interests share of MBN Properties LP 164,202
Reimbursement of Brothers Group s share of MBN Management LLC
losses from inception through March 14, 2006 780,239
Number of Units Purchase Price of

at $17.00 per unit Assets Acquired
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MBN Properties LP purchase price to allocate to oil and natural gas

properties $ 32,688,375
Units related to purchase of non-controlling interest(a) 1,867,290
Units related to interest previously owned by Moriah Group 1,295,148
Total units issued to MBN Properties LP 3,162,438
F-18
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Larron Acquisition

On June 29, 2006, Legacy purchased a 100% working interest and an approximate 82% net revenue interest in
producing leases located in the Farmer Field for $5,700,000. The conveyance of the leases is effective April 1, 2006.
The $5.6 million net purchase price was allocated with $4.6 million recorded as lease and well equipment and

$1.0 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations in the amount of $328,867 were recognized in connection
with this acquisition. The operations of these Farmer Field properties are included from their acquisition on June 29,
2006 in Legacy s statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006.

South Justis Unit Acquisition

On June 29, 2006, Legacy purchased Henry Holding LP s 15.0% working interest and a 13.1% net revenue interest in
the South Justis Unit ( SJU ), two leases not in the unit, each with one well, adjacent to the SJU and the right to operate
these properties. The stated purchase price was $14 million cash plus the issuance of 138,000 units on June 29, 2006
and 8,415 units on November 10, 2006 at their estimated fair value of $17.00 per unit ($2,346,000 and $143,055,
respectively) less final adjustments of approximately $624,000. The effective date of Legacy s ownership was May 1,
2006. The operating results from this acquisition have been included from July 1, 2006. The properties acquired are
located in Lea County, New Mexico where Legacy owns other producing properties. Legacy has been elected operator
of the SJU following the closing of the transaction, which entitles Legacy to a contractual overhead reimbursement of
approximately $127,500 per month from its partners in the SJU. The $15.9 million net purchase price was allocated
with $2.9 million recorded as lease and well equipment, $6.0 million of leasehold costs and $7.0 million capitalized as
an intangible asset relating to the contract operating rights. The capitalized operating rights will be amortized over the
estimated total well months the wells in the SJU are expected to be operated. Asset retirement obligations in the
amount of $137,453 were recognized in connection with this acquisition. The operations of the South Justis Unit are
included from the acquisition on June 29, 2006 in Legacy s statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2006.

Kinder Morgan Acquisition

On July 31, 2006, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Permian Basin from Kinder
Morgan for a net purchase price of $17.2 million. The effective date of this purchase was July 1, 2006. The

$17.2 million purchase price was allocated with $4.1 million recorded as lease and well equipment and $13.1 million
of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations of $1,383,180 were recorded in connection with this acquisition. The
operations of these Kinder Morgan Acquisition properties are included from their acquisition on July 31, 2006 in
Legacy s statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Binger Acquisition

On April 16, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties and other interests in the East Binger
(Marchand) Unit in Caddo County, Oklahoma from Nielson & Associates, Inc. for a net purchase price of

$44.2 million ( Binger Acquisition ). The purchase price was paid with the issuance of 611,247 units valued at
$15.8 million and $28.4 million paid in cash. The effective date of this purchase was February 1, 2007. The

$44.2 million purchase price was allocated with $14.7 million recorded as lease and well equipment, $29.4 million of
leasehold costs and $0.1 million as investment in equity method investee related to the 50% interest acquired in
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Binger Operations, LLC. Asset retirement obligations of $184,636 were recorded in connection with this acquisition.
The operations of these Binger Acquisition properties have been included from their acquisition on April 16, 2007.
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Ameristate Acquisition

On May 1, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Permian Basin from

Ameristate Exploration, LLC for a net purchase price of $5.2 million ( Ameristate Acquisition ). The effective date of
this purchase was January 1, 2007. The $5.2 million purchase price was allocated with $0.5 million recorded as lease
and well equipment and $4.7 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations of $51,414 were recorded in
connection with this acquisition. The operations of these Ameristate Acquisition properties have been included from
their acquisition on May 1, 2007.

TSF Acquisition

On May 25, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Permian Basin from Terry S.
Fields for a net purchase price of $14.7 million ( TSF Acquisition ). The effective date of this purchase was March 1,
2007. The $14.7 million purchase price was allocated with $1.8 million recorded as lease and well equipment and
$12.9 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations of $99,094 were recorded in connection with this
acquisition. The operations of these TSF Acquisition properties have been included from their acquisition on May 25,
2007.

Raven Shenandoah Acquisition

On May 31, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Permian Basin from Raven
Resources, LLC and Shenandoah Petroleum Corporation for a net purchase price of $13.0 million ( Raven Shenandoah
Acquisition ). The effective date of this purchase was May 1, 2007. The $13.0 million purchase price was allocated
with $6.0 million recorded as lease and well equipment and $7.0 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement
obligations of $378,835 were recorded in connection with this acquisition. The operations of these Raven Shenandoah
Acquisition properties have been included from their acquisition on May 31, 2007.

Raven OBO Acquisition

On August 3, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located primarily in the Permian Basin
from Raven Resources, LLC and private parties for a net purchase price of $20.0 million ( Raven OBO Acquisition ).
The effective date of this purchase was July 1, 2007. The $20.0 million purchase price was allocated with $1.6 million
recorded as lease and well equipment and $18.4 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations of $224,329
were recorded in connection with this acquisition. The operations of these Raven OBO Acquisition properties have
been included from their acquisition on August 3, 2007.

TOC Acquisition

On October 1, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Texas Panhandle from The
Operating Company, et al, for a net purchase price of $60.6 million (TOC Acquisition ). The effective date of this
purchase was September 1, 2007. The $60.6 million purchase price was allocated with $23.7 million recorded as lease
and well equipment and $36.9 million of leasehold costs. Asset retirement obligations of $1.6 million were recorded
in connection with this acquisition. The operations of these TOC Acquisition properties have been included from their
acquisition on October 1, 2007.
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Summit Acquisition

Also on October 1, 2007, Legacy purchased certain oil and natural gas properties located in the Permian Basin from
Summit Petroleum Management Corporation for a net purchase price of $13.5 million ( Summit Acquisition ). The
effective date of this purchase was September 1, 2007. The $13.5 million purchase price was allocated with

$2.1 million recorded as lease and well equipment and $11.3 million as leasehold cost. Asset retirement
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obligations of $128,705 were recorded in connection with this acquisition. The operations of these Summit
Acquisition properties have been included from their acquisition on October 1, 2007.

Pro Forma Operating Results

The following table reflects the unaudited pro forma results of operations as though the PITCO, Formation
Transactions, Farmer Field, South Justis Unit, and Kinder Morgan acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2005. The
table also reflects the unaudited pro forma results of operations as though the Binger, Ameristate, TSF, Raven
Shenandoah, Raven OBO, TOC and Summit acquisitions had each occurred on January 1, 2006 and 2007. The pro
forma amounts are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be reported in the future:

December 31,
2005 2006 2007
(Dollars in thousands, except per unit data)

Revenues $ 64,128 $ 115,414 $ 133,628
Net income (loss) $ 6,295 $ 12,844 $ (53,261)
Earnings per unit basic:

Income from continuing operations $ 0.34 $ 0.68 $ (2.02)
Net income $ 0.34 $ 0.68 $ (2.02)
Earnings per unit  diluted:

Income from continuing operations $ 0.34 $ 0.68 $ (2.02)
Net income $ 0.34 $ 0.68 $ (2.02)
Units used in computing earnings per unit:

basic 18,386,482 19,004,035 26,331,107
diluted 18,386,482 19,005,627 26,331,107

(5) Partnership Investments

MBN Properties LP, a Delaware limited partnership, and its 1% general partner, MBN Management LL.C, a Delaware

limited liability company, (collectively the MBN Group ) were formed in 2005 to acquire and operate oil and natural
gas producing properties in partnership with Brothers Production Properties, Ltd., and certain third party investors. On
July 22, 2005, MPL advanced $1,649,132 in the form of $462 of paid in capital (46.2% partnership equity interest)

and subordinaer-bottom: medium none;">
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740 Pinehurst Way

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33418

Yahia Bagzhouz
24,000
24,000
4504 Maryland Parkway
Box 454026
Las Vegas, NV 89154
Kenneth Dickey
100,000
100,000
6481 Wooded View Drive
Boston Heights, OH 44236
Nicholas Anderson (3)
66,000
66,000
1536 208th Street

Bayside, NY 11360
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R. Scott Caputo

1155 Colonial Way
Bridgewater, NJ 08807

Norbert Mayer (3)

576 Grassy Hill Road
Orange, CT 06477

Scott Straka

Hitachi America Ltd.
50 Prospect Ave
Tarrytown, NY 10591

Leonard Bellezza

Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

4,285

4,285

15,000

15,000

14,284

14,284

89,927
81,284
8,643
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79 Talltimber Rd.
Middletown, NJ 07748

Art Marsh

Blue Mountain Investments
7386 Fairway Lane
Parker, CO 80134

Raymond Skiptunis (3)

4459 Via Bianca Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89141

Charles Mataya

2 Locust Drive

Helmetta, NJ 08828

Table of Contents
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1,428

1,428

471,039
111,000

360,039

*

30,000

30,000
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Timothy Franzen

260 E. Flamingo Road, #311
Las Vegas, NV 89109

Joan Dziena

865 UN Plaza, #16E
New York, NY 10017

Richard Koch

1604 Sound Watch Dr.
Wilmington, NC 28409

39
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7,143

7,143

1,214

1,214

154,666
106,354

48,312

*
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Selling
Stockholder

Leon Mayer
547 McKinley
Plymouth, MI 48170

Ron Heagle
5533 Bilbao Place
Sarasota, FL 34238

Rick Pulford

3000 Town Center,
Suite 540

Southfield, MI 48075

Don Fields (3)
11642 Deer Forest
Road

Reston, VA 20194

Nils Weibull (3)
1689 W. Huron River
Drive

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

Dan Koch

301 W 10th St, Apt
203

Charlotte, NC 28202

Brian Chan (3)

7594 Ironwood Knoll
Ave

Las Vegas, NV 89109

Bradley Reifer (7)
123 Fraleigh Hill Rd.
Millbrook, NY 12545

Herman Gross
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Shares of
Common Stock
Beneficially
Owned
Prior to
Offering
(All exercisable
within
60 days of
Prospectus)
Number of
Shares(1)

50,000

100,000

168,551

200,000

118,000

39,000

300,000

101,828

1,153,850

Total Number

of Shares of
Common

Stock
Registered
for Sale

50,000

100,000

25,000

200,000

118,000

39,000

300,000

57,693

1,153,850

Owned After Offering
Number of
Shares

143,551

44,135

Shares of Common

Stock Beneficially
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12 Jordan Drive
Great Neck, NY 11021

Allan Dufty

741 Bayshore Drive,
Apt. 14

Fort Lauderdale, FL
33304

Kevin Fisher

Bear Stearns Security
Corp

One Metrotech Center
North

Brooklyn, NY
11201-3859

Abacus Solutions
745 5th Avenue
New York, NY 10151

Justin Bellezza

500 Washington
Avenue

Carlstadt, NJ 07072

Steven Sacharoff
500 Washington
Avenue

Carlstadt, NJ 07072

Bernard Geik

500 Washington
Avenue

Carlstadt, NJ 07072
40
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57,693

28,847

100,000

1,000

33,000

33,000
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57,693

28,847

100,000

1,000

33,000

33,000
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Selling

Stockholder

Domimick Rizzitano
500 Washington

Avenue

Carlstadt, NJ 07072

DB Max

8520 Roundhill Ct.
Saline, MI 48176

Reed Smith LLP

P.O. Box 23416

Newark, NJ 07198

Richard A. Ackner
14643 Draft House

Lane

Wellington, FL. 33414

Daniel Anderson
4409 Willow Creek

Circle

Bellbrook, OH 45305

Bryan Arakelian
7110 N. Fresno Street

Suite 410

Fresno, CA 93720

Robert F. Arnold &
Susan L. Arnold JR

WROS

2 Fielding Street
Wakefield, MA 01880

Paul J. Bargiel

100 West Monroe

Suite 902

Chicago, IL 60603
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Shares of
Common Stock
Beneficially
Owned
Prior to
Offering
(All exercisable
within
60 days of
Prospectus)
Number of
Shares(1)

33,000

700

150,000

375,000

75,000

150,000

100,000

112,500

Total Number
of Shares of
Common

Stock
Registered
for Sale

33,000

700

150,000

375,000

75,000

150,000

100,000

112,500

Shares of Common

Stock Beneficially

Owned After Offering

Number of
Shares

Percent
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John J. Bender 300,000
2803 22nd Street S.
Lacrosse, WI 54601

Berkowitz and
Garfinkel 187,500
D.D.S,, P.A.
Employees'

Pension Plan

D/T/D 7/1/1972

Mark Berkowitz &
Eric

Garfinkel Trustees

17 Country Club Lane
Marlboro, NJ 07746

Lester B. Boelter 250,000
50 Shady Oak Court
Winona, MN 55987

Robert H. Brackman 225,000
5309 Crave Avenue E

Port Orchard, WA

98366

Keith Buhrdorf 375,000
4582 South Vister

Steet

Suite 550

Denver, CO 80237

Jeffrey Davis 125,000
383 North West 112th

Ave

Coral Springs, FL

33071

41

300,000

187,500

250,000

225,000

375,000

125,000
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Selling

Stockholder

James Demarco &

Rose

Demarco JT WROS
274 Rose Avenue
Staten Island, NY

10306

Douglas Dotter

3615 West Lawther

Drive

Dallas, TX 75214

Arun Dua & Satish

Dua
JT WROS

25 W. Houston ST. 28
New York, NY 10012

Edward Duffy

178 Hanson Lane
New Rochelle, NY

10804

Ahsan Farooqi

54 Kimberly Court
S. Brunswick, NJ

08852

William L. Fox &
Lynne Fox JT WROS
450 Music Mountain

Rd

Falls Village, CT

06031

Bernie J. Gallas

5200 North Diversey

Blvd.
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Shares of
Common Stock
Beneficially
Owned
Prior to
Offering
(All exercisable
within
60 days of
Prospectus)
Number of
Shares(1)

375,000

112,500

75,000

75,000

187,500

262,500

375,000

Total Number
of Shares of
Common

Stock
Registered
for Sale

375,000

112,500

75,000

75,000

187,500

262,500

375,000

Shares of Common

Stock Beneficially

Owned After Offering

Number of
Shares

Percent
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Suite 204
Milwaikee, WI 53217

Mark T. Hellner 1,159,091
900 West Olive

Suite A

Merced, CA 95348

Dr. Paul A. Kaye

Family 75,000
Trust D/T/D 10/06/93

Dr. Paul A. Kaye

Trustee

9 Diamonte Lane

Rancho Palos Verdes,

CA 90275

Brian J. Keller & 187,500
Debra M. Keller JT

WROS

1246 130th Avenue

New Richmond, WI

54017

James Kelly 75,000
1558 E. County Road

800 N.

Ockans, IN 47452

Christopher Kemp 75,000
2528 Boulder Lane

Auburn Hills, MI

48326

Stephen N. Kitchens & 175,000
Martha M. Kitchens

JT WROS

28 Fox Vale Lane

Nashville, TN 37221

42

1,159,091

75,000

187,500

75,000

75,000

175,000
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Shares of
Common Stock
Beneficially
Owned
Prior to
Offering
(All exercisable
within
60 days of
Prospectus)
Selling Number of
Stockholder Shares(1)
Lester Krasno 150,000
400 North 2nd Steet
Pottsville, PA 17901
Edwin Kriel 75,000
2904 Pocock Road
Monkton, MD 21111
Daniel J. Lange 187,500
20800 Hunters Run
Brookfield, WI 53045
Lind Family
Investments LP 100,000
1000 West Washington
St.
Suite #502
Chicago, IL 60607
Barry Lind Revocable
Trust 500,000
Barry Lind Trustee
U/A/D 12/19/1989
1000 West Washinton
St.
Suite #502
Chicago, IL 60607
National Financial
Services 600,000
LLC As Custodian
FBO Lance Lindsey
IRA
7700 Blanding Blvd.
Jacksonville, FL 32244
Dwight Long 375,000

406 Belle Glen Lane

Table of Contents

Total Number
of Shares of
Common

Stock
Registered
for Sale

150,000

75,000

187,500

100,000

500,000

600,000

375,000

Shares of Common
Stock Beneficially
Owned After Offering

Number of
Shares Percent
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Brentwood, TN 37027

Jeffrey S. McCorstin 75,000
4750 Blue Mountain

Yorba Linda, CA

92887

Glen Miskiewicz 187,500
Apt. 724

48 Par-La-Ville Road

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Enrico Monaco 125,000
2230 Ocean Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11229

Natchez Morice 150,000
12 A West Bank Exwy
Gretna, LA 70056

MSB Family Trust 250,000
D/T/D 6/25/93

Michael Blechman

TTEE

295 Shadowood Ln.

Northfield, IL 60093

Daniel Navarro Jr. & 75,000
Richard Navarro JT

WROS

2036 Highway 35

North

South Amboy, NJ

08879

National Financial

Services 375,000
LLC As Custodian

FBO Michael J.

Radlove IRA

2748 Blackbird Hollow

Cincinnati, OH 452

43

75,000

187,500

125,000

150,000

250,000

75,000

375,000

Table of Contents

166



Selling

Stockholder

Prahalathan
Rajasekaran

1 Grosvenor Place
London, England

SW1X71]

Gretchen Kinstler
49-365 Rio Arenoso
La Quinto, CA 92253

Lawrence Silver
225 West Hubbard

Suite 600

Chicago, IL 60610

Robert A. Snyder &
Beverly J. Snyder JT

WROS

27297 Forest Grove

Road

Evergreen, CO 80439

Claire Spooner

111 Seaview Court
Neptune, NJ 07753

Henry H. Strauss
12 Howard Avenue
Tappan, NY 10983

David Takacs

17073 Snyder Road
Bainbridge, OH 44023

Richard Terranova &
Vincent Terranova

TEN COM
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Shares of
Common Stock
Beneficially
Owned
Prior to
Offering
(All exercisable
within
60 days of
Prospectus)
Number of
Shares(1)

187,500

750,000

250,000

75,000

225,000

75,000

150,000

375,000

Total Number
of Shares of
Common

Stock
Registered
for Sale

187,500

750,000

250,000

75,000

225,000

75,000

150,000

375,000

Shares of Common

Stock Beneficially

Owned After Offering

Number of
Shares

Percent
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349 Bartlett Avenue
Staten Island, NY
10312

William S. Tyrrell
2711 Edgehill Avenue
Bronx, NY 10463

Herbert Weisberger
2904 West Clay Street
Richmond, VA 23230

Darren R. Williams
17280 Timothy Way
Gladstone, OR 97027

Robert A. Yates
Shakeseare No 15-1
Piso

Cuydad De Mexico
Distrito Federal 11590
Mexico

Alan J. Young
1750 Braeside Avenue
Northbrook, IL 60062

Jan Arnett

7 Longwood Road
Sandspoint, NY 11050
44
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262,500

112,500

75,000

187,500

250,000

187,500

262,500

112,500

75,000

187,500

250,000

187,500
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Selling
Stockholder

Elliot Braun

C/O Atlantic Beverage
3775 Park Avenue
Edison, NJ 08820

Larry J. Buck
1624 Brandon Drive
Hebron, KY 41048

Keith H. Cooper
5840 De Claire Court
Atlanta, GA 30328

Steven Gurewitsch
930 5th Avenue

Apt. 3-G

New York, NY 10021

Antonio Hernandez
1575 Bengal Drive
El Paso, TX 79935

James Herron

601 Cleveland Street
Suite 950

Clearwater, FL 33755

Robert W. Higginson
247-F Rosario Blvd.
Santa Fe, NM 87501

Don Jackler &

Alana Jackler JT
WROS

246 E. 51st Street Suite
8

New York, NY 10022

Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

Shares of
Common Stock
Beneficially
Owned
Prior to
Offering
(All exercisable
within
60 days of
Prospectus)
Number of
Shares(1)

187,500

187,500

100,000

112,500

187,500

75,000

150,000

187,500

Total Number
of Shares of
Common

Stock
Registered
for Sale

187,500

187,500

100,000

112,500

187,500

75,000

150,000

187,500

Shares of Common
Stock Beneficially

Owned After Offering

Number of
Shares

Percent
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Donald Mapes 75,000
532 Bellepoint Drive

St. Pete Beach, FL

33706

Dr. John McPhail 375,000

603 Beamon Steet
Clinton, NC 28328

Grace Melton 375,000
1250 S. Beverly Glen

Blvd.

#311

Los Angeles, CA

90024

Larry R. Nichols & 50,000
Janet B. Nichols JT

WROS

9348 Burning Tree Dr.

Grand Blanc, M1

48439

National Financial

Services 187,500
LLC As Custodian

FBO Michael J.

Radlove IRA

2748 Blackbird Hollow

Cincinnati, OH 45244

Barry Saxe 187,500
325 E. 41st Street

New York, NY 10017

45
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75,000

375,000

375,000

50,000

187,500

187,500
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Shares of
Common Stock
Beneficially
Owned Total Number
Prior to
Offering of Shares of Shares of Common
(All exercisable
within Common Stock Beneficially
60 days of
Prospectus) Stock Owned After Offering
Selling Number of Registered Number of
Stockholder Shares(1) for Sale Shares Percent
Theodore Staahl 375,000 375,000 - -
1329 Spanos Court
Modesto, CA 95355
Randolph Stephenson 75,000 75,000 - -
10316-300 Feld Farm
Lane
Charlotte, NC 28210
Anthony Yodice 375,000 375,000 - -
2443 Benson Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11214
USBX Advisory
Services, Inc. 210,000 210,000 - -
2425 Olympic Blvd.
Ste 500 East
Santa Monica, CA
90404
Brooks Dexter 90,000 90,000 - -
2425 Olympic Blvd.
Ste 500 East
Santa Monica, CA
90404
Tony Acone 45,000 45,000 - -
44-489 Town Center
Way #D
Palm Desert, CA
92260

Total Number of Shares of Common Stock Registered for
Sale 59,687,619

* Less than 1%
(D
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All share numbers are based on information that these selling stockholders supplied to us. The term “selling
stockholders” also includes any transferees, pledges, donees, or other successors in interest to the selling
stockholders named in the table below. To our knowledge, subject to applicable community property laws, each
person named in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares of Common Stock set
forth opposite such person's name, unless otherwise indicated below. The inclusion of any shares in this table does
not constitute an admission of beneficial ownership by the selling stockholder.

(2)Sharon Strasser is married to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Steven Strasser. Mr. Strasser disclaims
beneficial ownership of Mrs. Strasser’s Shares.

(3)Indicates a person that has, within the past three years, served as an employee, officer or director of the company.

(4)Mr. Boyadjieff has been a Senior Technical Advisor of the Company since April 2005 and a Director of the
Company since May 2006. Mr. Boyadjieff owns over 2% of our common stock outstanding and over 6% of our
common stock issuable for Series B Preferred Stock, options and warrants convertible or exercisable within 60
days of the date hereof, and under certain definitions, may be considered an affiliate of our company. Mr.
Boyadjieff beneficially owns a total of 3,825,000 commons shares, common shares issuable upon the exercise of
stock options and warrants and common shares issuable upon the conversion of Series B Preferred Stock.

(5) Mr. Murray was a Director and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company from April 2006 to January 2007.

(6)Mr. Lackland has been a Director of the Company since August 2007 and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since October 2004. Indicates a person that has, within the past three years, served as an employee,
officer or director of the company. Mr. Lackland beneficially owns a total of 2,780,500 commons shares and
common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options.

(7)Indicates personnel who are employees of Pali Capital, a registered broker dealer. These individuals received these
securities in connection with an investment in secured promissory notes and/or in connection with fees related to
the issuance of secured promissory notes. The securities these individuals received in connection with fees related
to the issuance of secured promissory notes have not been included in this prospectus.

46
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(8)Commerce Energy Group owns over 8% of our common stock outstanding and over 10% of our common stock
diluted for Series B Preferred Stock, options and warrants convertible or exercisable within 60 days of the date
hereof, and under certain definitions, may be considered an affiliate of our company.

(9)Michael J. Goldfarb Enterprises LLC owns over 2% of our common stock outstanding and over 5% of our
common stock issuable for Series B Preferred Stock, options and warrants convertible or exercisable within 60
days of the date hereof, and under certain definitions, may be considered an affiliate of our company. Michael J.
Goldfarb, the managing member of Michael J. Goldfarb Enterprises LLC, is the father of Brett Goldfarb, and the
brother of Alvin Goldfarb. Mr. Goldfarb disclaims beneficial ownership of Brett Goldfarb’s and Alvin Goldfarb’s
shares.

(10) Arthur and Jayn Marshall, trustees of the Arthur and Jayn Marshall Family Trust DTD 7/2/1973, are the parents
of Todd Marshall and Cari Marshall, trustees of the Todd Marshall Revocable Trust UAD DTD 04/01/2003 and
the Cari Marshall Trust UAD DTD 01/09/1995, respectively. Arthur and Jayn Marshall disclaim beneficial
ownership of Todd Marshall’s and Cari Marshall’s beneficial shares.

(11)Marathon Resource Partners I, L.P. owns over 3% of our common stock outstanding and over 8% of our common
stock issuable for Series B Preferred Stock, options and warrants convertible or exercisable within 60 days of the
date hereof, and under certain definitions, may be considered an affiliate of our company. Marathon Resource
Partners I, L.P. is an affiliate of Marathon International Master Fund II, L.P. and has the same managing partner.
Marathon Resource Partners I, L.P. disclaims beneficial ownership of Marathon International Master Fund II,
L.P.’s shares.

(12) Richard A. Oshins, trustee of the Richard A. Oshins 1995 Irrevocable Trust and the Richard A. Oshins
1990 Irrevocable Trust, is married to Ruth S. Oshins, trustee of the Ruth S. Oshins 2000 Irrevocable Trust,
and is the father of Benjamin Oshins and Edward H. Oshins, trustees of the Benjamin Oshins Bypass Trust
and the Edward H. Oshins Revocable Trust, respectively. Richard A. Oshins disclaims beneficial owners
ship of Ruth S. Oshins’, Benjamin Oshins’, and Edward H. Oshins’ beneficial shares.

(13)Patricia Schwartz is married to David Schwartz. Mrs. Schwartz disclaims beneficial ownership to Mr. Schwartz’s
shares.

(14)Ron Boyer owns over 4% of our common stock outstanding and over 18% of our common stock issuable for
Series B Preferred Stock, options and warrants convertible or exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof, and
under certain definitions, may be considered an affiliate of our company.

(15) The Sarkowsky Family L.P. owns over 8% of our common stock outstanding and over 16% of our common stock
issuable for Series B Preferred Stock, options and warrants convertible or exercisable within 60 days of the date
hereof, and under certain definitions, may be considered an affiliate of our company.

(16) The Byron LeBow Revocable Family Trust owns over 2% of our common stock outstanding and over 6% of our
common stock issuable for Series B Preferred Stock, options and warrants convertible or exercisable within 60
days of the date hereof, and under certain definitions, may be considered an affiliate of our company.

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

The following is a summary of the rights of our common and preferred stock and related provisions of our articles of
incorporation and our bylaws, as will be in effect upon the closing of this offering. This summary is not complete. For
more detailed information, please see our articles of incorporation, bylaws and related agreements, which are filed as
exhibits or incorporated by reference to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.
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Common Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 140,000,000 shares of common stock. As of June 4, 2008, there were 40,411,858
shares of common stock issued and outstanding. Each holder of issued and outstanding shares of our common stock
will be entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders. Holders of shares of our
common stock do not have cumulative voting rights. Therefore, the holders of more than 50% of the shares of our
common stock will have the ability to elect all of our directors.

Holders of our common stock are entitled to share ratably in dividends payable in cash, property or shares of our
capital stock, when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors. We do not currently expect to pay any cash
dividends on our common stock. Upon our voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, any assets
remaining after prior payment in full of all of our liabilities and after prior payment in full of the liquidation
preference of any preferred stock would be paid ratably to holders of our common stock.

Options to Purchase Common Stock

The following table describes the options to purchase shares of our common stock that are outstanding as of June 4,
2008, and that will be outstanding immediately following the offering:

Weighted
Total Number Weighted Average
of Shares Average Total Number  Exercise Price
Underlying Exercise Price of Shares For
Options Per Share Underlying Shares After
Before this Before This Options After this
Description Offering Offering This Offering Offering
2000 Stock Option and Restricted Stock
Plan 13,884,896 $ 0.37 13,884,896 $ 0.37
1994 Stock Option Plan - $ - - $ -
Total 13,884,896 $ 0.37 13,884,896 $ 0.37

The options also contain provisions for the adjustment of the exercise price and the aggregate number of shares
issuable upon exercise of the options in the event of stock dividends, stock splits, reorganization, reclassifications and
consolidation.

Warrants to Purchase Common Stock

As of the date hereof, there are, and following this offering there will be, 29,704,968 warrants outstanding with
exercise prices ranging from $0.20 to $2.17 with expiration dates ranging from June 11, 2007 through May 11, 2013.

Certain of the warrants have net exercise provisions under which their respective holders may, in lieu of payment of
the exercise price in cash, surrender the warrant and receive a net amount of shares based on the fair market value of
our common stock after deduction of the aggregate exercise price. These warrants also contain provisions for the
adjustment of the exercise price and the aggregate number of shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants in the
event of stock dividends, stock splits, reorganization, reclassifications and consolidations.
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Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $.001 par value per share. As of June 4, 2008,
140,000 shares of preferred stock have been designated as Series B Preferred and all such shares of Series B Preferred
Stock are issued and outstanding.

The Series B Preferred Stock is non-voting, and is entitled to dividends at a rate of 8% per annum, payable in cash or
common stock only when, or if, declared by our Board of Directors.

Each share of Series B Preferred Stock is initially convertible into 100 shares of our common stock at any time at the
option of the stockholder. The shares of Series B Preferred Stock are automatically converted into common stock in
the event the average closing price of the common stock for any ten day period equals or exceeds $1.00 per share.

The Certificate of Designations of the Series B Preferred Stock provides that in the event we issue stock in connection
with a dividend, distribution, classification, merger or consolidation of the number of shares of common stock that the
Series B Stock is convertible into will be adjusted accordingly.

In the event of any dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of each
outstanding share of Series B Preferred Stock will be entitled to be paid pari passu with any other series of preferred
stock equal to the Series B Preferred Stock.

Registration Rights

Pursuant to the offering which terminated on January 21, 2008, we are obligated to (i) use reasonable best efforts to
register by March 21, 2008, the shares of common stock issuable upon the conversion of our Series B Preferred Stock
and warrants in a registration statement to be filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission and (ii) use
our best efforts to cause such registration statement to be declared effective by the Commission by May 20, 2008 and
to remain effective without any lapse of 30 or more consecutive days.

Certain Statutory and Charter Provisions Relating to a Change of Control

We are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL. In general, this provision prohibits a publicly held
Delaware corporation from engaging in a "business combination" with an "interested stockholder" for a period of
three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder.

A “business combination” includes a merger, asset sale, or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the
interested stockholder. An “interested stockholder” is a person, other than the corporation and any direct or indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the corporation, who together with the affiliates and associates, owns or, as an affiliate or
associate, within three years prior, did own 15% or more of the corporation's outstanding voting stock.

This prohibition is lifted if:

-prior to such date, the corporation's Board of Directors approved either the business combination or the transaction
that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

-upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in such person becoming an interested stockholder, the interested
stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction
commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the number of shares outstanding, shares owned by certain
directors or certain employee stock plans; or
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-on or after the date the stockholder became an interested stockholder, the business combination is approved by the
corporation's Board of Directors and authorized by the affirmative vote, and not by written consent, of at least
two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation excluding that owned by the interested stockholder.

Section 203 expressly exempts from the requirements described above any business combination by a corporation
with an interested stockholder who becomes an interested stockholder in a transaction approved by the corporation's
Board of Directors.

Rule 144

Of the 40,411,858 shares of the Company’s common stock outstanding on the date of prospectus, 27,676,701 shares
are freely trading in the market place (the “Free Trading Shares”). The Free Trading Shares are comprised mostly of
shares (1) originally issued in private offerings of common stock from June through March 2007, that were later
registered in the Company’s SB-2 Registration Statements, both declared effective on May 14, 2007 and (2) shares
originally issued in transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Act.

The remaining 12,735,157 shares of our common stock outstanding are restricted securities as defined in Rule 144 and
under certain circumstances may be resold without registration pursuant to Rule 144. These shares include the
8,320,569 shares held by Summit and Steven Strasser in the aggregate, and 4,414,588 shares held by a directors and
insiders.

In addition, the Company had approximately 29,704,968 common stock purchase warrants outstanding and
approximately 13,884,896 common stock options outstanding. The shares issuable on exercise of the options and
warrants may, under certain circumstances, be available for public sale in the open market under the Registration
Statement or pursuant to Rule 144, subject to certain limitations.

In general, pursuant to Rule 144, after satisfying a six month holding period: (i) affiliated stockholder (or stockholders
whose shares are aggregated) may, under certain circumstances, sell within any three month period a number of
securities which does not exceed the greater of 1% of the then outstanding shares of common stock or the average
weekly trading volume of the class during the four calendar weeks prior to such sale and (ii) non-affiliated
stockholders may sell without such limitations, provided we are current in our public reporting obligations. Rule 144
also permits the sale of securities by non-affiliates that have satisfied a one year holding period without any limitation
or restriction. Any substantial sale of the common stock pursuant to Rule 144 may have an adverse effect on the
market price of the Company’s shares.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent for our common stock is Continental Stock Transfer and Trust, located at 17 Battery Place, New
York, New York, 10004.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
Our common stock is currently traded on the OTC Bulletin Board.
All of the shares of our common stock included in this prospectus are for sale by the selling stockholders. We will not
receive any proceeds from the sale by the selling stockholders of the shares of common stock pursuant to this
prospectus which are already owned by them, or which are to be issued to them upon their conversion of shares of our
convertible preferred stock. We will receive cash proceeds from the issuance of shares to selling stockholders on
exercise of options or warrants, but not from the resale of any such shares.
The selling stockholders and any of their pledgees, assignees and successors-in-interest, may, from time to time, sell
any or all of their shares of our common stock on any stock exchange, market or trading facility on which the shares
are traded or in private transactions. These sales may be at fixed or negotiated prices. The selling stockholders may
use any one or more of the following methods when selling shares:

ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker-dealer solicits purchasers;

-block trades in which the broker-dealer will attempt to sell the shares as agent but may position and resell a portion
of the block as principal to facilitate the transaction;

purchases by a broker-dealer as principal and resale by the broker-dealer for its account;
an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange;
privately negotiated transactions;
settlement of short sales entered into after the date of this prospectus;

-broker-dealers may agree with the selling stockholders to sell a specified number of such shares at a stipulated price
per share;

a combination of any such methods of sale;

-through the writing or settlement of options or other hedging transactions, whether through an options exchange or
otherwise; or

any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.
The selling stockholders may also sell shares under Rule 144, if available, rather than under this prospectus.
NASD Notice to Members 88-101 states that in the event a selling shareholder intends to sell any of the shares
registered for resale in this Prospectus through a member of the NASD participating in a distribution of our securities,
such member is responsible for insuring that a timely filing is first made with the Corporate Finance Department of
the NASD and disclosing to the NASD the following:

it intends to take possession of the registered securities or to facilitate the transfer of such certificates;
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-the complete details of how the selling shareholders shares are and will be held, including location of the particular
accounts;

-whether the member firm or any direct or indirect affiliates thereof have entered into, will facilitate or otherwise
participate in any type of payment transaction with the selling shareholders, including details regarding any such
transactions; and

-in the event any of the securities offered by the selling shareholders are sold, transferred, assigned or hypothecated
by any selling shareholder in a transaction that directly or indirectly involves a member firm of the NASD or any
affiliates thereof, that prior to or at the time of said transaction the member firm will timely file all relevant
documents with respect to such transaction(s) with the Corporate Finance Department of the NASD for review.

Broker-dealers engaged by the selling stockholders may arrange for other brokers-dealers to participate in sales.
Broker-dealers may receive commissions or discounts from the selling stockholders (or, if any broker-dealer acts as
agent for the purchaser of shares, from the purchaser) in amounts to be negotiated. Each selling stockholder does not
expect these commissions and discounts relating to its sales of shares to exceed what is customary in the types of
transactions involved.

In connection with the sale of our common stock or interests therein, the selling stockholders may enter into hedging
transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions, which may in turn engage in short sales of the common
stock in the course of hedging the positions they assume. The selling stockholders may, after the date of this
prospectus, also sell shares of our common stock short and deliver these securities to close out their short positions, or
loan or pledge the common stock to broker-dealers that in turn may sell these securities. The selling stockholders may
also enter into option or other transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions or the creation of one or
more derivative securities which require the delivery to such broker-dealer or other financial institution of shares
offered by this prospectus, which shares such broker-dealer or other financial institution may resell pursuant to this
prospectus (as supplemented or amended to reflect such transaction).

The selling stockholders and any broker-dealers or agents that are involved in selling the shares may be deemed to be
"underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act in connection with such sales. In such event, any commissions
received by such broker-dealers or agents and any profit on the resale of the shares purchased by them may be deemed
to be underwriting commissions or discounts under the Securities Act. Each selling stockholders has informed us that
it does not have any agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute our common
stock. If any of the selling stockholders enter into an agreement with an underwriter to do a firm commitment offering
of the shares of our common stock offered by such selling stockholder through this prospectus, if we are aware of such
underwriting agreement we will file a post-effective amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus
is a part setting forth the material terms of such underwriting agreement. The selling stockholder may not sell any of
the shares in such firm underwriting until such post-effective amendment becomes effective.

Because selling stockholders may be deemed to be "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act, they will
be subject to the prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act. In addition, any securities covered by this
prospectus which qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 may be sold under Rule 144 rather than under this prospectus.
Each selling stockholder has advised us that they have not entered into any agreements, understandings or
arrangements with any underwriter or broker-dealer regarding the sale of the resale shares. There is no underwriter or
coordinating broker acting in connection with the proposed sale of the resale shares by the selling stockholders.

The resale shares will be sold only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers if required under applicable state
securities laws. In addition, in certain states, the resale shares may not be sold unless they have been registered or
qualified for sale in the applicable state or an exemption from the registration or qualification requirement is available
and is complied with.

Table of Contents 180



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

52

Table of Contents 181



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

Under applicable rules and regulations under the Exchange Act, any person engaged in the distribution of the resale
shares may not simultaneously engage in market making activities with respect to our common stock for a period of
two business days prior to the commencement of the distribution. In addition, the selling stockholders will be subject
to applicable provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder, including Regulation M, which
may limit the timing of purchases and sales of shares of our common stock by the selling stockholders or any other
person. We will make copies of this prospectus available to the selling stockholders and have informed them of the
need to deliver a copy of this prospectus to each purchaser at or prior to the time of the sale.

We do not know whether any selling stockholder will sell any or all of the shares of common stock registered by the
registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part.

We will pay all expenses of the registration of the shares of common stock offered pursuant to this prospectus
including SEC filing fees and expenses of compliance with state securities or "blue sky" laws, except that the selling
stockholders will pay any underwriting discounts and selling commissions for the sale of their shares. We expect that
our expenses for this offering, consisting primarily of legal, accounting and printing expenses, will be approximately
$59,201.

We will indemnify the selling stockholders against liabilities, including some liabilities under the Securities Act, in
accordance with registration rights and other agreements entered into by us with the selling stockholders, or the selling
stockholders will be entitled to contribution.

Once sold under the registration statement, of which this prospectus forms a part, by any of the selling stockholders,
the shares of common stock will be freely tradable in the hands of persons other than our affiliates.

LEGAL MATTERS
Certain legal matters will be passed upon for us by Ellenoff, Grossman & Schole LLP, New York, New York.
EXPERTS

The balance sheet as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 and the related statements of operations, changes

in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 included in this Prospectus
have been so included in reliance on the report (which contains an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern as described in Note 3 to the financial statements) of Sobel & Co., LLC,

independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and

accounting.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
None.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus is a part of the registration statement filed on Form S-1 with the SEC. The registration statement
contains more information about us and our Common Stock than this prospectus, including exhibits and schedules.
You should refer to the registration statement for additional information about us and our Common Stock being
offered in this prospectus. Statements contained in this prospectus as to the contents of any contract or other document
referred to in this prospectus are not necessarily complete and, where that contract is an exhibit to the registration
statement, each statement is qualified in all respects by reference to the exhibit to which the reference relates.

We are subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and, in accordance therewith, file
reports and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any document that we file at the SEC's public
reference facilities at 450 Fifth Street N.W., Room 1024, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at
1-800-732-0330 for more information about its public reference facilities. Our SEC filings are also available to you
free of charge at the SEC's web site at http://www.sec.gov. Information about us may be obtained from our website
www.powerefficiencycorp.com. Copies of our SEC filings are available free of charge on the website as soon as they
are filed with the SEC through a link to the SEC's EDGAR reporting system. Simply select the "Investors" menu item,
then click on the "SEC Filings" link.
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET

Unaudited
March 31, 2008

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $ 4,510,548
Accounts receivable, net 129,032
Inventory 133,441
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 113,777
Total Current Assets 4,886,798
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, Net 133,271
OTHER ASSETS:
Patents, net 52,159
Deposits 80,833
Goodwill 1,929,963
Total Other Assets 2,062,955
Total Assets $ 7,083,024
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 451,507
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes 47,970
Total Current Liabilities 499,477
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred Rent 12,063
Total Liabilities 511,540
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, $.001 par value,
10,000,000 shares authorized, 140,000
issued or outstanding 140
Common stock, $.001 par value, 140,000,000 shares
authorized, 40,411,858 issued and outstanding 40,412
Additional paid-in capital 34,228,852
Accumulated deficit (27,697,920)
Total Stockholders' Equity 6,571,484
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 7,083,024
Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
F-1
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Unaudited

REVENUES $

COST OF SALES
GROSS PROFIT

COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total Costs and Expenses

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest income

Interest expense

Total Other Income, net

NET LOSS $

BASIC AND FULLY DILUTED LOSS

PER COMMON SHARE $

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING, BASIC

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

F-2

2008

133,695
98,163
35,532

161,398

789,573
14,847

965,818

(930,286)

42,130
42,130

(888,156)
(0.02)

40,393,007

For the three months ended March 31,
2007

36,615
34,639
1,976
94,712
675,455
8,975
779,142
(777,166)
12,320
(156,897)
(144,577)

(921,743)

(0.03)

36,765,138
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Unaudited

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss $

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used for operating
activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization on capitalized manufacturing costs
Debt discount related to issuance of debt securities
Warrants and options issued to employees and consultants
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, trade

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deposits

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Customer Deposits

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Costs related to patent applications

Purchase of property and equipment

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of equity securities

Payments on notes payable

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

(Decrease) Increase in cash

Cash at beginning of period

Cash at end of period $

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

F-3

For the three months ended March 31,

2008

(888,156)

14,847
1,377

207,000

(19,780)
(1,679)
(73,858)
41,430
(86,981)
(1,605)
(807,405)

(12,661)
(35,764)
(48,425)
280,000
280,000
(575,830)

5,086,378

4,510,548

$

$

2007
(921,743)

8,975
79,555
179,030
3,368
(3,047)
2,798
(36,032)
(68,875)

(755,971)

(36,780)
(36,780)

1,025,000
(8,332)
1,016,668
223917
1,693,584

1,917,501
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NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared by the Company, without an audit. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments have been made, which include normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly
the condensed financial statements. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2008 are not necessarily
indicative of the operating results for the full year. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in
financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America have been condensed or omitted. The Company believes that the disclosures provided are adequate to make
the information presented not misleading. These unaudited condensed financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes included in the Company’s Annual Report for the
year ended December 31, 2007 on Form 10-K and Form S-1.

The preparation of condensed financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 2 - GOING CONCERN:

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company is a going concern, which
assumption contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The
Company suffered recurring losses from operations, a recurring deficiency of cash from operations, including a cash
deficiency of approximately $807,000 from operations for the three months ended March 31, 2008. While the
Company appears to have adequate liquidity at December 31, 2007, there can be no assurances that such liquidity will
remain sufficient.

These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or
the amount of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue in existence. Continuation
of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon achieving profitable operations in the long-term and raising
additional capital to support existing operations for at least the next twelve months. Management's plans to achieve
profitability include developing new products, obtaining new customers and increasing sales to existing customers.

F-4
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NOTE 3 - MATERIAL AGREEMENTS

On January 7, 2008, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a European sales and marketing
consultant. The agreement calls for the consultant to assist the Company in the business planning, and ultimately
commercial development and marketing of the Company’s Motor Efficiency Controller (“MEC”) line of products in
Europe. For his services, the Company has agreed to pay the consultant 64,920 € per year, which is approximately
equivalent to $100,000 per year. In addition, the Company will reimburse all reasonable and necessary expenses
incurred by the consultant. The initial term of this agreement is for 5 years, and can be terminated by either party upon
90 days written notice.

On January 23, 2008, the Company signed an efficiency aggregation contract with San Diego Gas & Electric
Company (“SDG&E”). Under the terms of this contract, SDG&E will pay the Company $0.14 per kWh of energy saved
in the first year of operation of the MEC, for new installations of the MEC in SDG&E’s service area. Payment to the
Company is subject to certain inspections, approvals and time restrictions. The term of this contract is for 5 years, and
either party may terminate this contract upon written notice.

NOTE 4 - ISSUANCE OF SERIES B CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

On January 21, 2008, the Company issued and sold 5,600 units (the “Units”), each Unit consisting of one share of the
Company’s Series B Preferred Stock, par value $.001 per share (“Series B Preferred Stock”), and a warrant to purchase
50 shares of the Company’s common stock, resulting in the sale and issuance of an aggregate of 5,600 shares of Series
B Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase, initially, up to 280,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (the
“Warrants”), in a private offering for $280,000 in cash.

In connection with the offering, the Company agreed to use its reasonable best efforts to file a registration statement
(the “Registration Statement”) to register the common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock
issued, as well as the common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, not later than 60 days from the
termination date of the Offering (the “Termination Date”), and must use its reasonable best efforts to have the
Registration Statement declared effective not later than 120 days from the Termination Date.

Each share of Series B Preferred Stock is initially convertible into 100 shares of the Company’s common stock, subject
to adjustment under certain circumstances. The Series B Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the holder at

any time. The Series B Preferred Stock is also subject to mandatory conversion in the event the average closing price

of the Company’s common stock for any ten day period equals or exceeds $1.00 per share, such conversion to be
effective on the trading day immediately following such ten day period. The Series B Preferred Stock has an 8%

dividend, payable annually in cash or stock, at the discretion of the Company’s board of directors. As such, none is
accredited in these financial statements.

The offering was conducted pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, pursuant to Regulation D, Section 4(2) and Rule 506 thereunder. No placement agent or
underwriter was used in connection with the Offering and there is no commission, finder’s fee or other compensation
due or owing to any party.

F-5
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Power Efficiency Corporation
Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Power Efficiency Corporation, (a Delaware corporation) (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2007, and the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders' equity, and
cash flows for each of the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Power Efficiency Corporation at December 31, 2007 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from
operations, and the Company has experienced a deficiency of cash from operations. These matters raise substantial
doubt as to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are
also discussed in Note 3. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome
of these uncertainties.

/s/Sobel & Co., LLC
Certified Public Accountants

March 25, 2008
Livingston, New Jersey
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2007

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $19,648
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total Current Assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, Net

OTHER ASSETS:
Deposits

Patents, net
Goodwill

Total Other Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Customer deposits

Accrued salaries and payroll taxes
Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Deferred Rent
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value
10,000,000 shares authorized, 134,400 issued and outstanding
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 140,000,000 shares
authorized, 40,367,523 shares issued and oustanding
Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Total Stockholders' Equity

See report of independent registered public accounting firm
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5,086,378
109,252
131,762

41,296

5,368,688

112,106
122,263
39,746
1,929,963
2,091,972

7,572,766

538,488
1,605
47,970
588,063

12,063
12,063

600,126

134

40,368

33,741,902
(26,809,764)

6,972,640

7,572,766
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and notes to financial statements.
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

REVENUES

COMPONENTS OF COST OF SALES:
Material, labor and overhead

GROSS MARGIN

COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total Costs and Expenses

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Interest income

Interest expense

Total Other Expenses, Net

LOSS BEFORE PROVISION FOR TAXES

PROVISION FOR TAXES

NET LOSS

BASIC AND FULLY DILUTED LOSS PER COMMON SHARE
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
BASIC

See report of independent registered public accounting firm
and notes to financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
490,510 $ 188,811
340,468 136,240
150,042 52,571
667,786 567,591

2,721,284 3,118,233
47,036 34,028
3,436,106 3,719,852
(3,286,064) (3,667,281)
80,481 9,243
(679,3006) (1,354,195)
(598,825) (1,344,952)
(3,884,889) (5,012,233)
(6,906) (8,542)
(3,891,795) $ (5,020,775)
0.100  $ (0.20)
38,541,012 25,150,386
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Balance, January 1,
2006

Issuance of
common stock
Common stock
issued upon
exercise of
warrants

Warrants and
options issued in
connection

with the issuance
of common stock
and debt

securities and to
employees and
consultants
Expenses related to
issuance of
common stock

Net loss

Balance, December
31, 2006

Issuance of
common stock
Issuance of
preferred stock
Common stock
issued upon
exercise of

options and
warrants

Warrants and
options issued with
common

stock and debt and
to employees and
consultants,
including debt
discount

Expenses related to
issuances of

Table of Contents

Common Stock

Shares

Amount

23,439,266 $ 23,439

11,000,008

602,735

35,042,009

3,416,672

1,908,842

11,000

603

35,042

3,417

1,909

Preferred Stock
Shares Amount

134,400

$

134

Additional

Paid-in
Capital

3,199,300

(603)

2,569,965

(30,000)

24,927,839
1,021,583

6,719,866

681,591

472,153

(5,020,775)

(22,917,969)

Total

Accumulated Stockholders'

Equity

$ 19,189,177 $ (17,897,194) $ 1,315,422

3,210,300

2,569,965
(30,000)
(5,020,775)

2,044,912

1,025,000

6,720,000

683,500

472,153
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preferred and

common stock - - - - (81,130) - (81,130)
Net loss - - - - - (3,891,795)  (3,891,795)
Balance, December

31, 2007 40,367,523 $ 40,368 134,400 $ 134 $ 33,741,902 $ (26,809,764) $ 6,972,640

See report of independent registered public accounting firm and notes to financial statements.

F-9
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED FOR):
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used for operating activities:

Bad debt expense

Depreciation and amortization

Loss on disposition of fixed assets

Debt discount related to issuance of debt securities
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Deferred rent

Warrants and options issued in connection with
settlements, services from

consultants, vendors, the forgiveness of
indebtedness, the issuance

of debt, and to employees and consultants
Common Stock issued for consulting services
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other

Deposits

Restricted cash related to payment of indebtedness
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Customer deposits

Accrued salaries and payroll taxes

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Costs related to patent applications

Purchase of property, equipment and other assets
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of equity securities, net of
costs

Proceeds from issuance of debt securities
Proceeds from line of credit

Payments on notes payable

Payments on line of credit

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

INCREASE IN CASH

Table of Contents

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006
(3,891,795) $ (5,020,775)
16,934 11,470
47,036 34,028
3,516 585
419,859 1,039,451
11,228 70,364
12,063 -
655,392 1,074,848
- 90,000
(93,994) 26,464
25,090 14,487
29,173 (3,206)
(88,388) (33,875)
- (4,688)
1,354 (55,454)
1,605 (5,105)
- 4,682
(2,850,927) (2,756,724)
(6,927) -
(85,610) (90,567)
(92,537) (90,567)
8,347,369 3,180,000
- 2,000,000
- 1,500,000
(2,011,111) (1,648,245)
- (1,500,000)
6,336,258 3,531,755
3,392,794 684,464
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CASH
Beginning of year 1,693,584 1,009,120
End of year $ 5,086,378 $ 1,693,584

See report of independent registered public accounting firm and notes to financial statements.
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS:

Power Efficiency Corporation ("Power Efficiency" and/or the "Company"), is incorporated in Delaware. Power
Efficiency designs, develops, markets and sells proprietary solid state electrical devices designed to reduce energy
consumption in alternating current induction motors. Alternating current induction motors are commonly found in
industrial and commercial facilities throughout the world. The Company currently has one principal and proprietary
product: the three phase Motor Efficiency Controller, which is used in industrial and commercial applications, such as
rock crushers, granulators, and escalators. Additionally, the Company has developed a digital single phase controller
in pre-production form, in preparation for working with Original Equipment Manufacturers (“OEMSs”) to Incorporate the
technology into their equipment..

The Company's primary customers have been original equipment manufacturers (OEM's) and commercial accounts
located throughout the United States of America and various countries.

Power Efficiency formed Design Efficient Energy Services, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company. This entity
was formed to obtain energy grants and rebates for customers of the Company from state governmental bodies.
Design Efficient Energy Services, LLC has been inactive since inception.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. The Company reviews inventory for
impairments to net realizable value whenever circumstances arise. Such circumstances may include, but are not
limited too, the discontinuation of a product line or re-engineering certain components making certain parts obsolete.
At December 31, 2007, inventories consisted primarily of raw materials. Management has determined a reserve for
inventory obsolescence is not necessary at December 31, 2007.

Accounts Receivable:

The Company carries its accounts receivable at cost less an allowance for doubtful accounts and returns. On a periodic
basis, the Company evaluates its accounts receivable and establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts, based on a
history of past write-offs and collections and current credit conditions.

Research and Development:
Research and development expenditures are charged to expense as incurred.
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Property, Equipment and Depreciation:

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, while betterments are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
which range from 3 to 7 years.
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Website:
Website development, maintenance and hosting costs are charged to expense as incurred.

Shipping and Handling Costs:
The Company bills customers for freight. Actual costs for shipping and handling are included as a component of cost
of sales.

Deferred Financing Costs:

Expenditures incurred in conjunction with debt or equity capital issuances are deferred as other assets until the related
offering is complete. Once the offering is completed, costs related to equity issuances will be offset against equity
proceeds, and such costs related to debt issuances are amortized on a straight line basis, over the life of the debt. Both
equity and debt related costs are expensed if the offering is not completed.

Patents:

Costs associated with applying for U.S. patents based upon technology developed by the Company are capitalized. At
the time the patent is awarded, the asset will be amortized on a straight line basis, over the remaining term of the
patent. If no patent is issued, these costs will be expensed in the period when it is determined that no patent will be
issued.

Deferred Rent:
The Company accounts for rent expense on a straight-line basis for financial reporting purposes. The difference
between cash payments and rent expense is included in deferred rent.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from product sales is recognized at the time of shipment, when all services are complete. Returns and other
sales adjustments (warranty accruals, discounts and shipping credits) are provided for in the same period the related
sales are recorded.

Loss Per Common Share:

Loss per common share is determined by dividing net loss available to common stockholders by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted loss per share is not presented since giving effect to
potential common shares would be anti-dilutive.

Accounting for Stock Based Compensation:

The Company accounts for employee stock options as compensation expense, in accordance with SFAS No. 123R,
“Share Based Payments.” SFAS No. 123R requires companies to expense the value of employee stock options and
similar awards, and applies to all outstanding and vested stock-based awards.

F-12
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

In computing the impact, the fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant based on the Black-Scholes

options-pricing model utilizing certain assumptions for a risk free interest rate; volatility; and expected remaining

lives of the awards. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent

management's best estimates, but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management

judgment. As a result, if factors change and the Company uses different assumptions, the Company’s stock-based
compensation expense could be materially different in the future. In addition, the Company is required to estimate the

expected forfeiture rate and only recognize expense for those shares expected to vest. In estimating the Company’s
forfeiture rate, the Company analyzed its historical forfeiture rate, the remaining lives of unvested options, and the

amount of vested options as a percentage of total options outstanding. If the Company’s actual forfeiture rate is
materially different from its estimate, or if the Company reevaluates the forfeiture rate in the future, the stock-based

compensation expense could be significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period. The impact

of applying SFAS No. 123R approximated $655,000 and $1,075,000 in additional compensation expense during the

years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Such amounts are included in research and development

expenses and selling, general and administrative expense on the statement of operations.

Product Warranties:

The Company warrants its products for two years. Estimated product warranty expenses are accrued in cost of sales at
the time the related sale is recognized. Estimates of warranty expenses are based primarily on historical warranty
claim experience. Warranty expenses include accruals for basic warranties for products sold.

Provision for Income Taxes:

The Company utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes pursuant to SFAS No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes". SFAS No. 109 requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for both
the expected future tax impact of differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities, and
for the expected future tax benefit to be derived from tax loss and tax credit carryforwards. SFAS No. 109 additionally
requires the establishment of a valuation allowance to reflect the likelihood of realization of deferred tax assets.

The provision for taxes represents state franchise taxes.

Goodwill:

SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” requires that goodwill shall no longer be amortized. Goodwill is
tested for impairment on an annual basis and between annual tests on a quarterly basis, utilizing a two-step test, as
described in SFAS No. 142.

Advertising:
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses were $7,504 and $1,733 for the years ended

December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

New Accounting Pronouncements:

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The
adoption of SFAS No. 157 is not expected to have a material impact on our financial condition, results of operations
or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities: Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 permits entities to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value with changes in fair value reported in earnings. The FASB
issued SFAS No. 159 to mitigate earnings volatility that arises when financial assets and liabilities are measured
differently, and to expand the use of fair value measurement for financial instruments. SFAS No. 159 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The adoption of SFAS No. 159 is not expected to have a material
impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FIN 48-1, “Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48 .
FIN 48-1 provides guidance on how to determine whether a tax position is effectively settled for the purpose of
recognizing previously unrecognized tax benefits. FIN 48-1 is effective retroactively to January 1, 2007. The
implementation of FIN 48 and FIN 48-1 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Financial Statement Reclassifications:
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2006 financial statements in order for them to conform to the 2007
financial statement presentation.

NOTE 3 - GOING CONCERN:

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company is a going concern, which
assumption contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The
Company has suffered recurring losses from operations, and the Company experienced a $2,850,927 deficiency of
cash from operations in 2007. While the Company appears to have adequate liquidity at December 31, 2007, there can
be no assurances that such liquidity will remain sufficient.

These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or
the amount of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue in existence. Continuation
of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon achieving profitable operations. Management's plans to achieve
profitability include developing new products, obtaining new customers and increasing sales to existing customers.
Management is seeking to raise additional capital through equity issuance, debt financing or other types of financing
(See Note 22). However, there are no assurances that sufficient capital will be raised.

On January 21, 2008, the Company closed on a private offering of its Series B Preferred Stock which grossed
$280,000 (See Notes 18 and Note 22).
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

NOTE 4 - PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:

At December 31, 2007, prepaid expenses and other current assets are comprised as follows:

Prepaid insurance $ 19,705
Prepaid expenses 87,958
Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 107,663

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

At December 31, 2007, property and equipment is comprised as follows:

Machinery and equipment $ 151,497
Office furniture and equipment 26,326

177,923
Less: Accumulated depreciation 65,717
Property and Equipment, Net $ 112,106

Depreciation for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted to $46,044 and $29,778, respectively.

NOTE 6 - GOODWILL:

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", previously recognized intangible assets
deemed to have indefinite useful lives were tested by management for impairment during fiscal 2007 utilizing a
two-step test. An annual goodwill impairment test was performed by management in addition to quarterly goodwill
impairment tests.

The first part of the test is to compare the Company’s fair market value (the number of the Company’s common shares
outstanding multiplied by the closing stock price of the date of the test), to the book value of the Company (the
Company’s total stockholders’ equity, as of the date of the test). If the fair market value of the Company is greater than
the book value, no impairment exists as of the date of the test. However, if book value exceeds fair market value, the
Company must perform part two of the test, which involves recalculating the implied goodwill by repeating the
acquisition analysis that was originally used to calculate goodwill, using purchase accounting as if the acquisition
happened on the date of the test, to calculate the implied goodwill as of the date of the test.

The Company’s most recent impairment analysis was performed on December 31, 2007, on the Company’s single

reporting unit. As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s fair market value was $22,199,036, and the Company’s book
value was $6,972,640. Based on this, no impairment exists as of December 31, 2007.
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Circumstances may arise in which the Company will perform an impairment test in addition to its annual and
quarterly tests. An example of one of these circumstances would be a sudden sharp drop in the Company’s stock price.
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

NOTE 7 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

Intangible assets subject to amortization consists of the following for the year ended December 31, 2007:

Patents $ 49,602
Less: Accumulated amortization 9,856
Intangible Assets, Net $ 39,746

Amortization expense in 2007 and 2006 amounted to $992 and $4,205, respectively.

During 2007, the Company capitalized approximately $7,000 in expenses related to patent filings. The Company will
begin amortizing these costs over the life of the patent, once the patent is approved by the appropriate authorities.

Amortization expense expected in the succeeding five years for the Company’s existing patents is as follows:

2008 $ 992
2009 992
2010 992
2011 992
2012 992
Thereafter 34,786

$ 39,746

NOTE 8 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISKS:

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of cash
and temporary cash investments and accounts receivables.

The Company maintains cash balances which at times may be in excess of the insured limits.

Sales and accounts receivable currently are from a relatively small number of customers of the Company's products.
The Company closely monitors extensions of credit.

Three customers accounted for approximately 84% of 2007 sales and 70% of accounts receivable at December 31,
2007. Four customers accounted for approximately 75% of 2006 sales.

International sales as a percentage of total revenues for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

County 2007 2006
Sweden 2% 3%
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

NOTE 9 - PRODUCT WARRANTIES

Accrued warranty expenses at December 31, 2006 and 2007 consist of the following:

Balance, January 1, 2006 $ -
Additions 2,580
Deductions (2,580)
Balance, December 31, 2006 -
Additions 4,151
Deductions (742)
Balance, December 31, 2007 $ 3,409

NOTE 10 - PROVISION FOR TAXES:

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company has available, on a federal tax basis, net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $19,800,000 and $15,900,000, respectively. These net operating losses expire at
varying amounts through 2027. The net operating loss carryforwards result in deferred tax assets of approximately
$6,700,000 and $5,400,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively; however, a valuation reserve has been
recorded for the full amount due to the uncertainty of realization of the deferred tax assets.

A reconciliation of the statutory tax rates for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2007 2006
Statutory rate B4 % 34 %
State income tax - all states (6)% (6)%
(40)% (40)%
Current year valuation allowance 40% 40%
Benefit for income taxes 0% 0%
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POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

NOTE 11 - WARRANTS:

Warrant activity during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 follows:

Average
Warrants Exercise Price
Warrants outstanding at January 1, 2006 13,252,217 $ 0.45
Issued during 2006 10,821,576 0.36
Exercised during 2006 (1,701,063) 0.20
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2006 22,372,730 0.42
Issued during 2007 9,528,338 0.52
Exercised during 2007 (2,143,659) 0.40
Cancelled and expired during 2007 (743,441) 0.40
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2007 29,013,968 $ 0.45

During 2007, the Company issued the following warrants: 100,000 warrants as consulting fees to a sales consultant,
which were valued at $15,458 and expensed and included in selling, general and administrative expenses; 1,000,000
warrants as consulting fees to a technical consultant, which were valued at $228,200, however, these warrants have
special vesting provisions, therefore the Company did not recognize an expense for these warrants in 2007; 1,708,338
warrants to investors, in connection with the Company’s private offering of common stock (See Note 19), which were
valued at $224,843 and recorded as additional paid in capital; 6,720,000 warrants to investors, in connection with the
Company’s private offering of its Series B preferred stock (See Note 19), which were valued at $3,421,631 and
recorded as additional paid in capital.

During 2006, the Company issued the following warrants: 300,000 warrants as consulting fees to an investment bank,
which were valued at $74,430 and expensed and included in selling, general and administrative expenses; 24,000
warrants as consulting fees to a technical consultant, which were valued at $1,098 and expensed and included in
research and development expenses; 2,647,572 warrants to noteholders in connection with the Company’s issuance of
debt securities, which were valued at $1,104,383, recorded as a debt discount, and amortized to interest expense over
the life of the notes; 7,850,004 warrants to investors, in connection with the Company’s private offering of common
stock and debt securities, which closed on November 30, 2006 (See Notes 16 and 19), which were valued at
$1,344,456 and recorded as additional paid in capital.

The fair value of each warrant is estimated on the date of grant based on the Black-Scholes options-pricing model

utilizing certain assumptions for a risk free interest rate; volatility; and expected remaining lives of the awards. The

assumptions used in calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent management's best estimates,

but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. In addition, the

Company is required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate and only recognize expense for those shares expected to

vest. In estimating the Company’s forfeiture rate, the Company analyzed its historical forfeiture rate, the remaining
lives of unvested options, and the amount of vested options as a percentage of total options outstanding.

F-18

Table of Contents 210



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

POWER EFFICIENCY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

The fair value of warrants granted is estimated on the date of grant based on the weighted-average assumptions in the

table below. The assumption for the expected life is based on evaluations of historical and expected exercise behavior.

The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rates at the date of grant with maturity dates approximately

equal to the expected life at the grant date. The historical stock volatility of the Company’s common stock is used as
the basis for the volatility assumption.

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006
Weighted average risk-free rate 4.5% 4.5%
Average expected life in years 3.6 3.5
Expected dividends None None
Volatility 166% 100%
Forfeiture rate 40% 24%

NOTE 12 - STOCK OPTION PLAN:

Stock Option Plan activity during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 follows:

Average
Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding and exercisable at January 1,

2006 12,470,363 $ 0.46
Granted during 2006 5,587,500 0.24
Cancelled during 2006 (3,259,592) 0.45
Expired during 2006 (63,375) 14.00
Options outstanding and exercisable at December 31,

2006 14,734,896 $ 0.33
Granted during 2007 3,725,000 0.35
Cancelled during 2007 (4,050,000) 0.23
Exercised during 2007 (100,000) 0.20
Options outstanding and exercisable at December 31,

2007 14,309,896 $ 0.36

Weighted average remaining contractual life at December 31, 2007, for all options is 7.15 years.

In 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (the "2000 Plan"). On June 8, 2007,
the 2000 Plan was amended and restated. The 2000 Plan, as restated and amended, provides for the granting of options
to purchase up to 20,000,000 shares of common stock. 100,000 options have been exercised to date. There are
14,309,896 options outstanding under the 2000 Plan.

During 2007, the Company granted 3,725,000 stock options to directors and employees at exercise prices
approximating fair market value of the stock on the date of each grant. Such issuances to directors and employees
were valued at $714,239, utilizing similar factors as described below, which was expensed and is included in research
and development expenses and selling, general and administrative expenses.
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DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

During 2006, the Company granted 5,587,500 stock options to directors, officers and employees at exercise prices
approximating fair market value of the stock on the date of each grant. Such issuances to directors, officers and
employees were valued at $999,320, utilizing similar factors as described below, which was expensed and is included
in research and development expenses and selling, general and administrative expenses.

In 1994, the Company adopted a Stock Option Plan (the "1994 Plan"). The 1994 Plan provides for the granting of
options to purchase up to 71,429 shares of common stock. No options have been exercised to date. There are no
options outstanding under the 1994 Plan, and the Company does not plan to issue any more options under this plan.

Share Based Compensation Payments:

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the net issuance of 3,725,000 stock
options to directors, officers and employees. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Board of Directors
authorized the net issuance of 5,587,500 stock options to officers, employees and consultants. The fair value of each
option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions used for grants: expected volatility of 166% and 100% for the years ended December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively; risk-free interest rate of 4.5% for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006; and
expected lives of approximately 10.0 years.

The Company accounts for employee stock options as compensation expense, in accordance with SFAS No. 123R,
“Share Based Payments.” SFAS No. 123R requires companies to expense the value of employee stock options and
similar awards.

In computing the impact, the fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant based on the Black-Scholes

options-pricing model utilizing certain assumptions for a risk free interest rate; volatility; and expected remaining

lives of the awards. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent

management's best estimates, but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management

judgment. As a result, if factors change and the Company uses different assumptions, the Company’s stock-based
compensation expense could be materially different in the future. In addition, the Company is required to estimate the

expected forfeiture rate and only recognize expense for those shares expected to vest. In estimating the Company’s
forfeiture rate, the Company analyzed its historical forfeiture rate, the remaining lives of unvested options, and the

amount of vested options as a percentage of total options outstanding. If the Company’s actual forfeiture rate is
materially different from its estimate, or if the Company reevaluates the forfeiture rate in the future, the stock-based

compensation expense could be significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period.
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NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Leases:

The Company leases office space, a manufacturing and warehousing facility, and a research and development facility
in Las Vegas, Nevada. The office space lease was assigned to the Company by the Chief Executive Officer, on the
same terms and conditions, effective February 24, 2006. The lease includes a payment of $11,292 per month, plus
annual increases of 3% per year, which includes all cleaning and utilities, except phone and internet service. The term
of the lease is five years.

On July 1, 2007, the Company began leasing a research and development facility. The lease includes a payment of
$1,995, plus common area maintenance charges, per month. The term of the lease is three years and one month. On
November 1, 2007, the Company amended the lease to include additional space, which it will utilize for its
manufacturing and warehousing facility. The amendment to the lease calls for an additional payment of $1,605, plus
common area maintenance charges, per month, and carries the same terms and conditions as the original lease.

Minimum future rentals are as follows:

Year

2008 $ 170,206
2009 190,664
2010 177,091
2011 12,688

$ 550,649

Rent expense, including base rent and additional charges, for the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was
$173,545 and $139,919, respectively.

Patent License Agreements:

The Company was an exclusive licensee pursuant to a patent license agreement of certain power factor controller
technology owned by the United States, as represented by the National Aeronautics and Space Administration
(NASA). This license agreement covered the United States of America and its territories and possessions on an
exclusive basis and foreign sales on a non-exclusive basis. Such license agreement did not require the Company to pay
royalties to NASA in connection with the Company's sale of products employing technology utilizing the licensed
patents. The agreement terminated on December 16, 2002 upon the expiration of all of the licensed patents. The
Company filed and received its own patent (No. 5.821.726) that expires in 2017 that management believes will protect
the Company's intellectual property position.

Software User License Agreements:

The Company entered into an agreement to purchase software licenses for accounting, manufacturing and CRM
software. The total amount of the software license agreement is approximately $66,000 and the software licenses
begin in 2008.
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Litigation:
Presently, the Company is not involved in any litigation.

On March 19, 2007, the Company reached an agreement with GE Fanuc Automation North America, Inc. (“GE Fanuc”)
to cease using its Power Genius name for its products. As consideration, GE Fanuc paid the Company $20,000.

Subcontractors:

During 2006, the Company utilized one subcontractor in Michigan and one subcontractor in Nevada as turn-key
manufacturers for its analog product. On March 15, 2006, the Company terminated its agreement with its Livonia,
Michigan subcontractor. In December of 2007, the Company ceased using the Las Vegas, Nevada subcontractor and
began to manufacture its analog and some of its digital product in-house.

The Company directly sources its own analog circuit boards from a contract circuit board manufacturer. Over the past
year, the Company has primarily sourced analog circuit boards from RMF Design and Manufacturing (“RMF”), based
outside of Toronto, Canada. The Company believes RMF has the ability to meet the Company’s analog circuit board
production needs and the Company would be successful in finding alternative manufacturers should RMF not be
available to manufacture these circuit boards.

On September 6, 2007, the Company entered into a manufacturing service agreement with Sanima-Sci Corporation
(“Sanmina-Sci”) for the production of digital units and digital circuit boards. Pursuant to this agreement, the Company
will purchase an amount of digital units, subject to certain minimum quantities, from Sanima-Sci equal to an initial
firm order agreed upon by the Company and Sanima-Sci and subsequent nine-month requirements forecasts. The
initial term of the contract is one year, and upon expiration of the initial term, the contract will continue on a year to
year basis until one party gives notice to terminate. At the present time the Company is not able to determine if the
actual purchases will be in excess of these minimum commitments, or if any potential liability will be incurred. At
December 31, 2007, the Company has approximately $100,000 in open purchase orders with this subcontractor.
Additionally, the Company is committed for an additional $300,000 during the initial term of this agreement. At
December 31, 2007, the Company has approximately $81,000 on deposit with Sanmina-Sci.

Investment Advisory Agreements:

The Company entered into a consulting agreement with an investment advisor on December 1, 2004. The agreement
calls for the investment advisor to assist the Company in devising financial and marketing strategies, and also to assist
the Company in raising funds on a non-exclusive basis through the offering of debt and/or equity securities. The
agreement expired on November 30, 2005 and was renewed on February 21, 2006. The company shall pay the
investment advisor the amount of $4,000 per month, plus expenses approved by the Company and issue 300,000
options. The Company terminated the engagement with the consultant for non-performance on April 20, 2006. The
Company paid the investment advisor $35,000 during the year ended December 31, 2006, and the agreement has been
satisfied in full.
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On January 2, 2006, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with an investor relations firm. As part of the
compensation, the Company granted 300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock having a total value of $90,000,
which such cost is expensed in selling, general and administrative expenses. This consulting agreement expired on
July 2, 2006 and was not renewed.

On January 6, 2006, the Company entered into a marketing agreement with an investment bank. In connection with
this agreement, the Company issued a five year warrant to purchase up to 300,000 shares of Common Stock, with an
exercise price of $0.25 per share. The total value of the 300,000 warrants issued to the investment bank approximates
$74,430 and is expensed in selling, general and administrative expenses. The Company terminated this agreement on
June 23, 2006, however, the warrants remain exercisable for five years from the date of issuance.

The Company entered into an agreement with an investment bank on October 13, 2006. In accordance with this
agreement, the investment bank served as the Company’s non-exclusive placement agent for a private stock offering of
10,700,008 shares of common stock and 5,350,004 warrants which closed on November 30, 2006 (See Note 19). The
investment bank was paid a retainer fee of $5,000, and the agreement called for the investment bank to receive 5.5%
of the total cash invested by investors introduced by the investment bank upon closing. The investment bank
introduced no investors in the private stock offering which closed on November 30, 2006. The Company subsequently
terminated this agreement on January 13, 2007.

NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, consulting fees of $12,000 and $7,000 were paid to a director
and stockholder of the Company, respectively. These amounts are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses.

On October 29, 2007, the Company entered into a financing transaction in which it issued 113,500 units, each unit

consisting of one share of the Company’s series B preferred stock and a warrant to purchase up to 50 shares of the
Company’s common stock for $3,825,000 in cash and the cancellation of $1,850,000 of debt securities. In this
transaction, Steven Strasser, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer purchased 16,000 units for $250,000 in cash and
the cancellation of a $550,000 note; George Boyadjieff, a director and senior technical advisor of the Company,

purchased 4,000 units for $200,000 in cash; Douglas Dunn, a director of the Company, purchased 1,000 units for

$50,000 in cash; Gary Rado, a director of the Company, purchased 2,000 units for $100,000 in cash (See Note 18).
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On November 30, 2006, the Company entered into a financing transaction in which it issued 10,700,008 shares of its
common stock and 5,350,004 warrants to purchase common stock for $3,210,000 and $2,000,000 in senior secured
notes in a private offering of equity and debt. In this transaction, Steven Strasser, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer purchased 1,166,668 shares of common stock and 583,334 warrants for $350,000, and was issued a senior
secured note for $550,000; John (BJ) Lackland, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer purchased 100,000 shares of
common stock and 50,000 warrants for $30,000; Robert Murray, the Company’s former Chief Operating Officer
purchased 100,000 shares and 50,000 warrants for $30,000; George Boyadjieff, a director and senior technical advisor
of the Company was issued 1,000,000 shares of common stock and 500,000 warrants for $300,000; and Commerce
Energy Group was issued a $200,000 secured note and 250,000 warrants (See Notes 16 and 19). The $2,000,000 in
senior secured notes were paid off in full on October 29, 2007 (See Note 18).

On April 19, 2006, the Company entered into a financing transaction in which it issued a $1,000,000 secured
convertible note (the "EMTUCK Note") to EMTUCK, LLC ("EMTUCK"), in which the managing member is a
management company wholly owned and controlled by Steven Strasser, the Company's CEO. On May 19, 2006, the
Note was increased to $1,500,000. This note was paid off in full on November 30, 2006 (See Notes 16 and 19).

Interest expense of approximately $665,000 and $440,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, was associated with related parties.

NOTE 15 - SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year ended December 31, for:

2007 2006
Interest $ 248,219 $ 314,750
Income/Franchise Taxes $ 6,906 $ $8,542
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NOTE 16 - NOTES PAYABLE:

On November 30, 2006, the Company entered into a financing transaction in which the Company issued $2,000,000
of its two year, senior, secured promissory notes (collectively the “Notes”, individually a “Note””). The Notes bear interest
of 15% per annum. Interest due under the Notes is payable quarterly, with the principal and final quarterly interest
payment becoming due November 30, 2008. The Notes have a first priority security interest in all of the assets of the
Company. Upon the occurrence of an “Event of Default” (as defined in the Note, included herein as an exhibit) the
holder may, upon written notice to the Company, elect to declare the entire principal amount of the Note then
outstanding together with accrued unpaid interest thereon due and payable. Upon receipt of such notice, the Company
shall have seven business days to cure the Event of Default, and if uncured on the eighth business day, all principal
and interest shall become immediately due and payable. The Company also issued with 2,500,000 warrants (the “Debt
Warrants”) to purchase common stock of the Company to the holders of the Notes. The Debt Warrants have a per share
exercise price of $0.40 and expire November 29, 2011. 1,250,000 of the Debt Warrants are exercisable immediately,
with the remaining 1,250,000 Debt Warrants becoming exercisable in equal amounts over 24 months beginning
December 29, 2006. The common stock issuable upon exercise of the Debt Warrants has piggyback registration rights,
and can be included in the Company’s next registration statement. The Debt Warrants have a cashless exercise
provision, but only if the registration statement on which the common stock issuable upon exercise of the Debt
Warrants is not then effective. The Notes were paid off in full on October 29, 2007 (See Note 18.)

The $2,000,000 loan consisted of $550,000 from Steven Strasser, the Company’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and the Company’s largest beneficial shareholder, $200,000 from Commerce Energy Group, Inc, the Company’s
second largest shareholder prior to the Offering, and $1,250,000 from individual investors. $1,450,000 of these Notes
came from the exchange of existing promissory notes of the Company.

The Company’s previously issued notes, including $1,464,306 issued on October 27, 2004, $125,000 issued on

February 24, 2005 (collectively the “Pali Notes”) and $1,500,000 issued to EMTUCK, were paid off in November 2006,
and such paid off note holders no longer hold a security interest in the Company’s assets.
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On April 19, 2006, the Company entered into a financing transaction in which it issued a $1,000,000 secured
convertible note to EMTUCK (See Note 14). On May 19, 2006, the EMTUCK Note was increased to $1,500,000. The
EMTUCK Note bears interest of 10.75% per annum, with interest payments due quarterly, beginning July 19, 2006.
The EMTUCK Note's principal becomes due on January 19, 2007 (the "Maturity Date"). The Company can draw on
the Note, in increments of up to $200,000, and interest is calculated on the outstanding principal drawn. The
EMTUCK Note is secured by a first lien and security interest in all of the Company's accounts receivable and
inventory now or hereafter acquired, and a second lien and security interest in all other collateral, subordinate to the
existing lien and security interest in favor of Pali Capital Corporation as representative of the holders the Pali Notes.
In the event of default (as defined in the EMTUCK Note), EMTUCK may, upon written notice to the Company, elect
to declare the entire principal amount of the Note then outstanding, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon
due and payable. Upon receipt of such notice, the Company shall have seven business days to cure the event of default
and if uncured on the eighth business day, all principal and accrued interest shall become immediately due and
payable. The EMTUCK Note was paid off in full on November 30, 2006.

The members of EMTUCK were issued 2,083,334 warrants in conjunction with the EMTUCK Note, with an exercise
price of $0.24 per share. 1,458,334 warrants vested immediately, and the remaining 625,000 warrants vested equally
over nine (9) months. The warrants have a cashless exercise provision and will have a 5 year term. If after the date of
issuance of the warrants, the Registrant files a registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, or amends an
existing registration statement, in either case, the Registrant will use its best efforts to include the shares issuable on
exercise of the warrants in such registration statement or amended registration statement.

On October 17, 2005, the Company issued a $50,000 promissory note payable to its former landlord in connection
with a settlement agreement. The note is non-interest bearing and calls for monthly payments of $2,778 of principal
beginning November 17, 2005. In connection with this note payable, the Company recorded a note discount of $6,146
on the Company’s balance sheet. During the years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the Company
paid $11,111 and $33,327 in principal, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, this note has been paid off in full.

On December 15, 2004, the Company issued a $25,334 promissory note payable to a former officer, in connection
with a settlement agreement (See Note 17), at 15%. The note calls for monthly payments of $1,580, principal and
interest, beginning January 2005 and matured on June 15, 2006. During the years ended December 31, 2006 the
Company paid $8,997 in principal. As of December 31, 2007 this note has been paid off in full.
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NOTE 17 - EMPLOYMENT AND CONSULTING AGREEMENTS:

On June 1, 2005, the Company entered into an employment and compensation agreement with Steven Strasser, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer. The agreement is for a term of five years, with a base salary for the first year of
the agreement of $275,000 with annual increases of at least 5% of the current year’s base salary and bonuses at the
discretion of the compensation committee of the board of directors. During the first year of the Agreement, an amount
equal to $215,000 of the base salary shall be paid by grant of stock options under the Company’s 2000 Stock Option
and Restricted Stock Plan to purchase 1,612,500 shares of the Company’s common stock, vesting in equal quarterly
installments over the year ending June 1, 2006, and the remaining $60,000 of the base salary is to be paid in cash. The
agreement with this Chief Executive Officer also provides, among other things, for reimbursement of certain business
expenses and for certain payments to be made to this Chief Executive Officer in the event of a change of control. This
Chief Executive Officer also received 1,818,180 incentive stock options which will vest over a five year period and
have an exercise price of $0.22, and 1,181,820 non-qualified stock options which will vest over a five year period and
have an exercise price of $0.20. The agreement also provides for certain non-competition and nondisclosure
covenants.

On June 1, 2005, the Company entered into an employment and compensation agreement with John Lackland, the

Company’s Chief Financial Officer. The agreement is for a term of five years, with a base salary for the first year of
the agreement of $175,000 with annual increases of at least 5% of the current year’s base salary and bonuses at the
discretion of the compensation committee of the board of directors. During the first year of the Agreement, an amount

equal to $55,000 of the base salary shall be paid by grant of stock options under the Company’s 2000 Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Plan to purchase 412,500 shares of the Company’s common stock, vesting in equal quarterly
installments over the year ending June 1, 2006, and the remaining $120,000 of the base salary is to be paid in cash.

The agreement with this Chief Financial Officer also provides, among other things, for reimbursement of certain

business expenses and for certain payments to be made to this Chief Financial Officer in the event of a change of

control. This Chief Financial Officer also received 1,733,750 incentive stock options which will vest over a five year

period and have an exercise price of $0.20, and 66,250 non-qualified stock options which vested on June 1, 2006 and

have an exercise price of $0.20. The agreement also provides for certain non-competition and nondisclosure

covenants.

On June 1, 2005, the Company entered into an employment and compensation agreement with Nicholas Anderson, the
Company’s former Chief Technology Officer. On May 15, 2006, the Company terminated Nicholas Anderson, for
cause, and cancelled his employment agreement with the Company. The Company has not accrued a loss related to
this termination and does not foresee any material loss in its ability to manufacture current products or develop new
products.
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On June 9, 2005, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with an advisor to serve as the Company’s Senior
Technical Advisor. The term of this agreement is for 24 months and calls for the advisor to assist the Company in

digitizing the Company’s technology. For his services, the Company agreed to issue the advisor 400,000 options,
vesting quarterly from the date of the agreement. In addition, the Company will reimburse all reasonable and

necessary expenses incurred by the advisor. In the event that the Company’s annual sales from digital products reaches
$5,000,000, the Company will pay the advisor a $100,000 one time bonus. The agreement contains confidentiality and

non-competition provisions. This agreement can be terminated in 90 days by either party by written notices. On June

6, 2007, the Company renewed the agreement with the advisor. In connection with the renewal, the Company granted

the advisor 1,000,000 warrants, which vest upon the approval of certain patents, created by the advisor, by the US

Patent Office, or the buy-out of the Company, whichever occurs first.

On March 1, 2007, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a sales and marketing consultant. The term
of this agreement is for 12 months and calls for the consultant to assist the Company in its business development, sales
and marketing efforts. For his services, the Company has agreed to issue the consultant 100,000 warrants, vesting
quarterly from the date of the agreement. In addition, the Company will reimburse all reasonable and necessary
expenses incurred by the consultant. This agreement contains confidentiality and non-competition provisions. Each
party has the right to cancel this agreement with no less than 10 days notice in writing.

On March 21, 2007, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a product manager. The term of this
agreement is for two years and calls for the product manager to assist the company in product development and
marketing. For his services, the Company agreed to pay the product manager $6,250 per month, due on the 15t of each
month, as well as 400,000 stock options, which vest over the term of the agreement. In addition, the Company will
reimburse all reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the product manager. The agreement contains
confidentiality and non-competition provisions. Each party has the right to cancel this agreement upon 30 days written
notice. This agreement was terminated on April 11, 2007 and all obligations have been satisfied in full, and all stock
options issued to the product manager were cancelled.

NOTE 18 - ISSUANCE OF SERIES B CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK:

On October 29, 2007, the Company issued and sold 113,500 units (the “Units”), each Unit consisting of one share of the
Company’s Series B Preferred Stock, par value $.001 per share (“Series B Preferred Stock™), and a warrant to purchase
50 shares of the Company’s common stock, resulting in the sale and issuance of an aggregate of 113,500 shares of
Series B Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase, initially, up to 5,675,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
(the “Warrants”), in a private offering (the “Preferred Offering”) for $5,675,000 in cash and cancellation of indebtedness
(See Note 16). Many of the purchasers of Units were either officers, directors or pre-existing stockholders or
noteholders of the Company (See Note 14).
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In connection with the Preferred Offering, the Company has agreed to use its reasonable best efforts to file a
registration statement (the “Registration Statement”) to register the common stock issuable upon conversion of the
Series B Preferred Stock issued, as well as the common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, not later than 60
days from the termination date of the Offering (the “Termination Date’), and must use its reasonable best efforts to have
the Registration Statement declared effective not later than 120 days from the Termination Date.

Each share of Series B Preferred Stock is initially convertible into 100 shares of the Company’s common stock, subject
to adjustment under certain circumstances. The Series B Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the holder at

any time. The Series B Preferred Stock is also subject to mandatory conversion in the event the average closing price

of the Company’s common stock for any ten day period equals or exceeds $1.00 per share, such conversion to be
effective on the trading day immediately following such ten day period. The Series B Preferred Stock has an 8%

dividend, payable annually in cash or stock, at the discretion of the Company’s board of directors. As such, none is
accredited in these financial statements.

The Preferred Offering was conducted pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities

Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to Regulation D, Section 4(2) and Rule 506 thereunder. No placement agent or

underwriter was used in connection with the Offering and there is no commission, finder’s fee or other compensation
due or owing to any party.

On November 8, 2007, the Company sold 5,000 units, resulting in the sale and issuance of 5,000 shares of Series B
Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase up to 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, for $250,000 under
the Preferred Offering.

On November 15, 2007, the Company sold 1,400 units, resulting in the sale and issuance of 1,400 shares of Series B
Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase up to 70,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, for $70,000 under the
Preferred Offering.

On December 20, 2007, the Company sold 9,500 units, resulting in the sale and issuance of 9,500 shares of Series B
Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase up to 475,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, for $475,000 under
the Preferred Offering.

On December 28, 2007, the Company sold 5,000 units, resulting in the sale and issuance of 5,000 shares of Series B
Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase up to 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, for $250,000 under
the Preferred Offering.
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NOTE 19 - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

On November 30, 2006, the Company issued and sold 10,700,008 shares of its common stock and 5,350,004 warrants
to purchase its common stock (the “Equity Warrants”), in a private offering (the “Offering”) for $3,210,000 in cash,
cancellation of indebtedness and in lieu of compensation owed to certain employees, officers and directors of the
Company. The per share purchase price of the common stock was $0.30. The Equity Warrants have a per share
exercise price of $0.40, are exercisable immediately and expire November 29, 2011. The Company must use best
efforts to file a Registration Statement to register the common stock issued, together with those issuable upon exercise
of the Equity Warrants, not later than 60 days from the termination of the Offering, and must use its best efforts to
have the Registration Statement declared effective not later than 120 days from the termination of the Offering.
Should the Company not be able to meet these registration requirements, the Company may be assessed liquidating
damages. The Offering terminated on March 31, 2007. The Equity Warrants have a cashless exercise provision, but
only if the Registration Statement is not then effective.

The $3,210,000 investment included $250,000 from Steven Strasser, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, $30,000
from John (BJ) Lackland, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, $30,000 from Robert Murray, the Company’s former
Chief Operating Officer, and $300,000 from George Boyadjieff, a Director of the Company.

The Offering was conducted pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, pursuant to Regulation D, Section 4(2) and Rule 506 thereunder. No placement agent or
underwriter is entitled to compensation in connection with either the Offering or the sale of the Notes and there is no
commission, finder’s fee or other compensation due or owing to any party.

On January 19, 2007, the Company issued and sold 666,668 shares of its common stock and 333,334 Equity Warrants,
in the Offering for $200,000 in cash, under the same terms as described above.

On March 2, 2007, the Company issued and sold 1,583,336 shares of its common stock and 791,668 Equity Warrants,
in the Offering for $475,000 in cash, under the same terms as described above.

On March 7, 2007, the Company issued and sold 333,334 shares of its common stock and 166,667 Equity Warrants, in
the Offering, for $100,000 in cash, under the same terms as described above.

On March 30, 2007, the Company issued and sold 500,000 shares of its common stock and 250,000 Equity Warrants,
in the Offering, for $150,000 in cash, under the same terms as described above.

On March 31, 2007, the Company issued and sold 333,334 shares of its common stock and 166,667 Equity Warrants
in the Offering, for $100,000 in cash, under the same terms as described above.
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NOTE 20 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

SFAS No. 107 “Disclosure About the Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, requires disclosure of fair value information
about financial instruments. The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of their short term nature.

NOTE 21 - 401(K) RETIREMENT PLANS:

On August 1, 2006, the Company adopted a 401(k) retirement plan (the 401(k) Plan). The 401(k) Plan is voluntary,
and available to all employees who have been with the Company for at least six months. The Company may make
discretionary contributions. The Company did not make any contributions in 2007 or 2006.

NOTE 22 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

On January 7, 2008, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a European sales and marketing
consultant. The agreement calls for the consultant to assist the Company in the business planning, and ultimately
commercial development and marketing of the Company’s MEC line of products in Europe. For his services, the
Company has agreed to pay the consultant 64,920 € per year, which is approximately equivalent to $100,000 per year.
In addition, the Company will reimburse all reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the consultant. The initial
term of this agreement is for 5 years, and can be terminated by either party upon 90 days written notice.

On January 21, 2008, the Company sold 5,600 units under the Preferred Offering, resulting in the issuance of 5,600
shares of its Series B Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase up to 280,000 shares of the Company’s common stock,
for $280,000. This was the final closing in the Preferred Offering.

On January 23, 2008, the Company signed an efficiency aggregation contract with San Diego Gas & Electric
Company (“SDG&E”). Under the terms of this contract, SDG&E will pay the Company $0.14 per kWh of energy saved
in the first year of operation of the MEC, for new installations of the MEC in SDG&E’s service area. Payment to the
Company is subject to certain inspections, approvals and time restrictions. The term of this contract is for 5 years, and
either party may terminate this contract upon written notice.
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The Company's certificate of incorporation provides that the personal liability of the directors of the Company shall be
limited to the fullest extent permitted by the provisions of Section 102(b)(7) of the General Corporation Law of the
State of Delaware, or the DGCL. Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL generally provides that no director shall be liable
personally to the Company or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director,
provided that the certificate of incorporation does not eliminate the liability of a director for (1) any breach of the
director's duty of loyalty to the Company or its stockholders; (2) acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve
intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; (3) acts or omissions in respect of certain unlawful dividend
payments or stock redemptions or repurchases; or (4) any transaction from which such director derives an improper
personal benefit. The effect of this provision is to eliminate the rights of the Company and its stockholders to recover
monetary damages against a director for breach of her or his fiduciary duty of care as a director (including breaches
resulting from negligent or grossly negligent behavior) except in the situations described in clauses (1) through (4)
above. The limitations summarized above, however, do not affect the ability of the Company or its stockholders to
seek nonmonetary remedies, such as an injunction or rescission, against a director for breach of her or his fiduciary
duty.

In addition, the certificate of incorporation provides that the Company shall, to the fullest extent permitted by Section
145 of the DGCL, indemnify all persons whom it may indemnify pursuant to Section 145 of the DGCL. In general,
Section 145 of the DGCL permits the Company to indemnify a director, officer, employee or agent of the Company
or, when so serving at the Company's request, another company who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a
party to any proceedings because of his or her position, if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Company and, with respect to any criminal action or
proceeding, has no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful.

The Company maintains a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy covering certain liabilities that may be
incurred by any director or officer in connection with the performance of his or her duties and certain liabilities that
may be incurred by the Company, including the indemnification payable to any director or officer. The entire
premium for such insurance is paid by the Company.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, may be permitted to
directors, officers, or persons controlling the Company pursuant to the foregoing provisions, the Company has been
informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public
policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is therefore unenforceable.

II-1

Table of Contents 226



Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

Item 25. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution

The following table sets forth the fees and expenses, other than any underwriting discounts and commissions incurred
by us in connection with the issue and distribution of our common stock being registered. All amounts are estimates
except the SEC registration fee.

SEC Registration Fee $ 300.65
Legal Fees 15,000.00
Accounting Fees 5,000.00
Printing Fees 1,150.00
Miscellaneous 5,000.00
Total $26,450.65

Item 26. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the last three years, we have issued unregistered securities as described below. None of these transactions
involved any underwriters, underwriting discounts or commissions, except as specified below, or any public offering,
and we believe that each transaction was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act by virtue of
Section 4(2) thereof and/or Regulation D promulgated thereunder. All recipients had adequate access, through their
relationships with us, to information about us.

Sales Made to Summit Energy Ventures. Commerce Energy Group and Commonwealth Energy Corporation

The following details several different sales of unregistered securities the Company made to Summit, Commonwealth
Energy Corporation, a former member of Summit (“Commonwealth”) and Commerce Energy Group, the parent
corporation of Commonwealth (“Commerce”). All of the sales were exempt from registration under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), pursuant to section 4(2) of the Securities Act.

On April 28, 2005, the Company issued 1,204,819 shares of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, convertible into
1,000,000 shares of common stock, and warrants to purchase 500,000 shares of common stock to Summit for an
aggregate purchase price of $200,000. The requisite percentage of current holders consented and waived the
anti-dilution provisions.

On April 28, 2005, the Company issued 180,723 shares of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, convertible into
150,000 shares of common stock, and warrants to purchase 75,000 shares of common stock, to Commerce, in
consideration of Commerce’s cancellation of a license agreement with the Company. The requisite percentage of
current holders consented and waived the anti-dilution provisions.

On July 8, 2005, the Company issued 3,000,000 shares of common stock and 1,500,000 warrants to Summit for
$300,000 in cash and the conversion of a $300,000 note payable.

On July 8, 2005, the Company converted all 4,714,279 outstanding shares of its Series A-1 Convertible Preferred
Stock owned by Summit and Commonwealth into 3,918,848 shares of common stock.

Sales Made to Purchasers Other than Summit Energy Ventures. Commerce Energy Group and Commonwealth Energy
Corporation

On July 8, 2005, the Company issued 9,150,000 shares of common stock to several accredited investors in a private
offering for $1,830,000.
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On August 31, 2005, the Company issued 2,350,000 shares of common stock to several accredited investors in the
second and final closing of this private offering for $470,000.
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On November 30, 2006, the Company issued 10,700,008 shares of common stock to several accredited investors in
the first closing of a private offering of common stock for $3,210,000, of which approximately $2,760,000 was from
new cash and $450,000 was from the exchange of debt. Of this amount, the CEO, CFO and one Director of the
Company invested a total of $510,000, of which approximately $260,000 was from new cash and $250,000 was from
the exchange of debt.

On January 19, 2007, the Company issued 666,668 shares of common stock to several accredited investors in the
second closing of a private offering of common stock for $200,000 in cash.

On March 2, 2007, the Company issued 1,583,336 shares of common stock to several accredited investors in the third
closing of a private offering of common stock for $475,000 in cash.

On March 7, 2007, the Company issued 333,334 shares of common stock to an accredited investor in the fourth
closing of a private offering of common stock for $100,000 in cash.

On March 30, 2007, the Company issued 500,000 shares of common stock to several accredited investors in the fifth
closing of a private offering of common stock for $150,000 in cash.

On March 31, 2007, the Company issued 333,334 shares if common stock to an accredited investor on the sixth and
final closing of a private offering of common stock for $100,000 in cash.

On January 21, 2008, the Company issued an aggregate of 140,000 units, each unit consisting of one share of the
Company’s Series B Preferred Stock, par value $.001 per share, and a warrant to purchase 50 shares of the Company’s
common stock, receiving aggregate consideration of $7,000,000, which included $5,150,000 of cash and the
cancellation of $1,850,000 of debt. The Series B Preferred Stock and warrants issued in the offering are convertible or
exercisable, as applicable, into an aggregate of up to 21,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.
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Item 27. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Exhibits
See Exhibit Index at page I1-9.
(b) Financial Statement Schedules

All such schedules have been omitted because the information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is
shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

Item 28. Undertakings
The undersigned smaller reporting company hereby undertakes to:

(1) For determining any liability under the Securities Act, treat the information omitted from this form of prospectus
filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by
the smaller reporting company under Rule 424(b)(1), or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act of 1933 as part of this
registration statement as of the time the Securities and Exchange Commission declared it effective.

(2) For determining any liability under the Securities Act, treat each post-effective amendment that contains a form of
prospectus as a new registration statement for the securities offered in this registration statement, and that offering of
the securities at that time as the initial bona fide offering of those securities.

The undersigned smaller reporting companyhereby undertakes with respect to the securities being offered and sold in
this offering:

(1)To file, during any period in which it offers or sells securities, a post- effective amendment to this Registration
Statement to:

(a) Include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act;

(b) Reflect in the prospectus any facts or events which, individually or together, represent a fundamental change in the
information in this registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of
securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any
deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of
prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the
changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set
forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and include any additional
or changed material information on the plan of distribution.

(2)For determining liability under the Securities Act, treat each post- effective amendment as a new registration
statement of the securities offered, and the offering of the securities at that time to be the initial bona fide offering.

(3)File a post-effective amendment to remove from registration any of the securities that remain unsold at the end of
the offering.

Insofar as indemnification by the undersigned smaller reporting company for liabilities arising under the Securities

Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the smaller reporting company pursuant to the
foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the smaller reporting company has been advised that in the opinion of the
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Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act,
and is, therefore, unenforceable.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Company certifies that it has reasonable
grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements of filing on Form S-1 and authorized this Registration

Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned in the City of Las Vegas, State of Nevada on July 25, 2008.

POWER EFFICIENCY

CORPORATION

By: /s/ STEVEN Z.
STRASSER
Steven Z. Strasser
Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer
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KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Steven Z. Strasser and John (BJ) Lackland as their true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full
power of substitution, with power to act alone, to sign (1) any and all amendments (including post-effective
amendments) to this Registration Statement and (2) any registration statement or post-effective amendment thereto to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, and
to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to
do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all
intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact
and agents, or any of them, or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement was signed
by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates stated:

Name Title Date

/s/ STEVEN Z. STRASSER Chairman and Chief Executive July 25,2008

Officer
Steven Z. Strasser (Principal Executive Officer)
* Chief Financial Officer July 25, 2008
John (BJ) Lackland (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
* Director July 25, 2008
Richard Morgan
* Director July 25, 2008
Douglas M. Dunn
* Director July 25, 2008
George Boaydjieff
* Director July 25, 2008
Gary Rado
* Director July 25, 2008

Raymond J. Skiptunis
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Document

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1

32

33

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.1 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-SB filed on October 20, 2000.

Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company dated June 5, 2002,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Company's Current Report on Form §-K
filed on June 18, 2002.

Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company dated July 6, 2005,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Form SB-2 Registration
Statement filed October 25, 2005.

Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company dated October 13,
2005, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Company’s Form SB-2
Registration Statement filed October 25, 2005.

Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company dated March 23, 2004,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-QSB filed on May 14, 2004.

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Designation of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock of Power Efficiency Corporation, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 25, 2003.

Certificate of Certificate Eliminating Reference To A Series Of Shares Of Stock
From the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated October 22, 2007.*

Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock of Registrant dated October 24, 2007.*

Form of Placement Agent Warrant issued pursuant to Exhibit 10.45, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K Filed on July
15, 2005

Form of Investor Warrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 15, 2005

Specimen common stock certificate of the Company, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Form SB-2/A Registration Statement filed December
8, 2005.

Agreement dated April 22, 2005, between the Company and Summit Energy
Ventures, LLC, for the issuance of preferred stock and warrants, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed
October 25, 2005.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

I1-7

Edgar Filing: LEGACY RESERVES LP - Form 10-K/A

Agreement dated April 22, 2005, between the Company and Commerce Energy
Group, Inc., for the issuance of preferred stock and warrants, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed
October 25, 2005.

Form of Equity Warrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 24, 2007

Form of Equity Warrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 8, 2007

Form of Warrant, issued to certain investors in the Company’s private placement of
units on January 21, 2008.*

Opinion of Ellenoff Grossman & Schole LLP*

United States Patent #5,821,726, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) to
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-SB filed on October 20, 2000.

1994 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(i) to Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-SB filed on October 20, 2000.

Patent License Agreement (DN-858) with NASA, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to Company's Amended Annual Report on Form 10-SB/A filed on
October 26 2001.

Patent License Agreement (DE-256) with NASA incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to Company's Amended Annual Report on Form 10-SB/A filed on
October 26 2001.
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10.5 Settlement and Release Agreement with NASA incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to Company's Amended Annual Report on Form 10-SB/A filed on
October 26 2001.

10.6 Modification No. 1 to Patent License Agreement (DE-256) with NASA,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Company's Amended Annual Report
on Form 10-SB/A filed on October 26 2001.

10.7 Product Warranty, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Company's
Amended Annual Report on Form 10-SB/A filed on October 26 2001.

10.8 Test Report from Medsker Electric, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17
to Company's Amended Annual Report on Form 10-SB/A filed on October 26
2001.

10.9 Test Report from Oak Ridge National Laboratory, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to Company's Amended Annual Report on Form 10-SB/A filed on
October 26 2001.

10.10 Test Report from Oregon State University - The Motor Systems Resource Facility,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Company's Amended Annual Report
on Form 10-SB/A filed on October 26 2001.

10.11 Test Report from Otis Elevator Co., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to
Company's Amended Annual Report on Form 10-SB/A filed on October 26 2001.

10.12 Certificate of Amendment of Warrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 25, 2003.

10.13 Settlement Agreement and Mutual General Release with Stephen L. Shulman and
Summit Energy Ventures, LLC dated October 3, 2003, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed November 14,
2003.

10.14 Amendment to the Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agreement among
Anthony Caputo, Nicholas Anderson, Philip Elkus, Stephen Shulamn, Performance
Control, LLC, Summit Energy Ventures, LLC and Power Efficiency Corporation
dated September 22, 2003, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed November 14, 2003.

10.15 Business Property Lease with Arens Investment Company dated November 1, 2003,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to Company's Annual Report on Form
10-KSB filed March 10, 2004.

10.16 Letter agreement with Pali Capital, Inc. dated February 25, 2004, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.40 to Company's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed
March 10, 2004.

10.17
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10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.24

10.25

10.26
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Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan dated
February 23, 2004, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed March 10, 2004.

Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.42 to Company's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed March 10, 2004.

Single Phase Licensing Agreement with Commerce Energy Group, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed
November 15, 2004.

Business Property Lease Amendment involving Glenborough LLC and Northwest
Power Management, Inc. dated February 7, 2005, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.48 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed on March 31,
2005.

Settlement and Consulting Agreement with Keith Collin dated September 27, 2004,

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-KSB filed on March 31, 2005.

Placement Agency Agreement dated as of June 1, 2005, between the Company and
Joseph Stevens & Co., Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to the
Company’s Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed October 25, 2005.

Consulting Agreement with George Boyadjieff, dated June 9, 2005, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.54 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB filed on March 31, 2006

Consulting Agreement with Steven Blum dated February 21, 2006, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.55 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB filed on March 31, 2006

Consulting Agreement with CEO Cast, Inc, dated January 2, 2006, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.56 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB filed on March 31, 2006
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10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39
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Letter Agreement with USBX Advisory Services, LLC, dated January 6, 2006,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.57 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB filed on
March 31, 2006

Employment Agreement with Steven Strasser dated June 1, 2005, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 8.1 to the Company’s Current Report of Form 8-K filed July 13,
2005.

Employment Agreement with John Lackland dated June 1, 2005, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 8.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July
13, 2005.

Interim Financing Agreement with EMTUCK, LLC dated April 18, 2006,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on April 24, 2006.

Promissory Note granted to EMTUCK, LLC dated April 19, 2006, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 24, 2006.

Security Agreement with EMTUCK, LLC dated April 19, 2006, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 24, 2006.

Form of EMTUCK Warrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2006.

Promissory Note granted to EMTUCK, LLC dated May 19, 2006, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
May 26, 2006.

Form of Pali Note Extension Consent Letter dated October 23, 2006, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
October 27, 2006.

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated November 30, 2006, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 5, 2006.

Form of Note, dated November 30, 2006, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2006.

Form of Debt Warrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2006.

Form of Equity Warrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2006.
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Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 24, 2007.

Consulting Agreement amendment with George Boyadjieff, dated June 9, 2007,
incorporated by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed on August
13, 2007.

Manufacturing Services Agreement, dated September 6, 2007 by and among the
Company and Sanima-Sci Corporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 13, 2007.
Consulting Agreement amendment with George Boyadjieff, dated June 9, 2007,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-QSB filed on August 13, 2007.

Manufacturing Services Agreement, dated September 6, 2007 by and among the
Company and Sanima-Sci Corporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2007.

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 27, 2007 by and between the
Company and certain Investors.*

Consent of Sobel & Co., LLC, Certified Public Accountants.
Consent of Ellenoff Grossman & Schole LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1).

Power of Attorney (included in signature page).

* filed herewith
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